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PART 1 - NOTIFICATION

Item 1. Significant Parties

The directors and executive officers of Valley Bancorp are as follows. The business address of each
such person is 370 N. Stephanie Street, Henderson, Nevada 89014, The residence addresses of such persons are
provided below.

Name
(a) Directors

George A. Brizendine

Don Hamilton

Mary Hausch

Barry L. Hulin

Thomas J. Krob

James A. McKellar

Robert O’Connell

Dick Rottman

William E. Snyder

Dan H. Stewart

Gary Vause

(b) Executive Officers

Steve Gilbert

Dick Holtzclaw

Residence Address

3118 Loma Vista
Las Vegas, NV 89120

3418 S. Seneca Drive
Las Vegas, NV 89109

1139 South Fifth Place
Las Vegas, NV 89104

9425 San Laguna Ct. #104

Las Vegas, NV 89134

1553 Champion Hills Lane

Las Vegas, NV 89134

3221 Montecito Drive
Las Vegas, NV §9120

7225 Montecito Circle
Las Vegas, NV 89120

265 Brunswick Mill Rd.
Reno, NV 89511

2270 Buckingham Ct.
Henderson, NV 89014

95 Wagon Box Rd.
Henderson, NV 89012

3020 Plaza De Monte
Las Vegas, NV 89102

84 Huntfield Dr.
Henderson, NV 89(G74

4840 Summerhill Rd.
Las Vegas, NV 89121

2 0f 935




Name

Barry L. Hulin

(c) Not Applicable.

(d) and (e) Principal Shareholders

Name

James Koehler

James A. McKellar

Kenneth M. Hamilton

® Promoters

Name

Ned Bearden

Ramona J. Steen Belote

Harold Boyer

George A. Brizendine

Don Hamilton

Mary E. Hausch

Thomas J. Krob

Christopher S. McKellar

James A. McKellar

Robert E. O’Connell

Residence Address

9425 San Laguna Ct. #104

Las Vegas, NV 89134

Residence Address

39074 Edgewood Lane
Aberdeen, SD 57401

3221 Montecito Drive
Las Vegas, NV 89120

3890 Nobel Dr. #1503

San Diego, CA 92122-4119

Residence Address

2314 S. Western Ave.
Las Vegas, NV 89102

3860 Riviera Drive, #102
San Diego, CA 92109

Deceased

3118 Loma Vista
Las Vegas, NV §9120

3418 S. Seneca Drive
Las Vegas, NV 89109

1139 South Fifth Place
Las Vegas, NV §9104

1553 Champion Hills Lane

Las Vegas, NV 89134

1219 Coast Blvd. #5
La Jolla, CA 92037

3221Montecito Drive
Las Vegas, NV 89120

7225 Montecito Circle
Las Vegas, NV 89120
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Name Residence Address

Henry & Margarete Sandstede 8275 El Pasco Grande
LaJolla, CA 92037

William E. Snyder 2270 Buckingham Ct.
Henderson, NV 89014

Dan H. Stewart 95 Wagon Box Rd.
Henderson, NV 89012

Gary Vause 3020 Plaza De Monte
Las Vegas, NV 89102

David F. Welles 1341 Imperial Drive
Henderson, NV 89052

John R. and Sally J. Wible 760 Fourth Street
Encinitas, CA 92024

(2 Affiliates of the Issuer. Valley Bank is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Valley Bancorp.

(h) Legal Counsel. Graham & Dunn PC, Seattle, Washington, 1420 Fifth Avenue, 33rd Floor,
Seattle, Washington 98101-2390 has advised the Issuer in connection with certain banking and securities aspects
of the offering. Stephens, Gourley & Bywater, 3636 N. Rancho Drive, Las Vegas, Nevada §9130, has advised
the Issuer in connection with certain matters related to Nevada law in connection with the offering, including the
shares to be issued in the offering.

(i) — (m) Not Applicable
Item 2. Application of Rule 262

(a) None of the persons identified in the response to Item 1 is subject to the disqualification
provisions set forth in Rule 262

(b) Not Applicable
Item 3. Affiliate Sales
Not Applicable
Item 4. Jurisdiction in Which Securities Are to be Offered
(a) The Shares will not be offered or sold by any underwriters, dealers or salespersons.

(b) The Issuer will offer and sell the shares to the general public. Although no priority or allocation
will be made with respect to existing shareholders, such shareholders will be offered an opportunity to participate
in the offering. According to shareholder records, the Issuer’s shareholders reside in the states of Alaska,
Arizona, California, Florida, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Towa, Massachusetts, Minnesota, Nevada, Pennsylvania,
South Dakota, Texas, Utah, Virginia, Washington and Wisconsin. The Issuer will also offer shares to new
shareholders, who may reside in the listed states or other states. All offers and sales will be accomplished in
accordance with applicable state securities laws. The shares will be offered on a best-efforts basis by certain
directors and executive officers of the Issuer, none of whom will receive bonuses, commissions or other
compensation directly or indirectly in connection with such sales.
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Item S. Unregistered Securities Issued or Sold Within One Year

No unregistered securities have been issued by the Issuer, predecessor or affiliated issuer within the past
year, other than shares that were issued by the Issuer pursuant to the exercise of stock options under the 1999
Employee Stock Option Plan or the 1999 Nonqualified Stock Option Plan.

Item 6. Other Present or Proposed Offerings

No offerings are present or proposed at the current time.

‘Item 7. Marketing Arrangements

Not Applicable

Item 8. Relationship with Issuer of Experts Named in Offering Statement
Not Applicable

Item 9. Use of a Solicitation of Interest Document

Not Applicable
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OFFERING CIRCULAR

370 N. Stephanie Street
Henderson, NV 89014
(702) 436-1515
www.vbnv.com

A Maximum of 320,000 Shares (No Minimum Number of Shares)
$12.50 Per Share

Valley Bancorp is offering up to 320,000 shares of its common stock to our shareholders and the general
public at $12.50 per share. The offering will commence on December 15, 2002, and will terminate on
February 28, 2003, unless we terminate it earlier or extend it for up to an additional 30 days.

The minimum purchase for new shareholders is 800 shares ($10,000).
In addition to other matters discussed in this document, you should also be aware of the following:

e There is no minimum offering amount, and we may receive less than $4,000,000 in gross proceeds;

e Because there is no minimum offering amount, we will have immediate access to subscription funds once
we have accepted a subscription;

¢ Once we have accepted a subscription, it cannot be withdrawn by the investor;

e We are selling shares directly ~ there is no underwriter involved in the offering;

e There is no established trading market for our shares, and there is very limited trading activity; and

e We have arbitrarily established the offering price at $12.50 per share, based on a variety of factors
considered by our board of directors.

Investment in the shares involves certain risks. See “RISK FACTORS” beginning on page 3 for
mformatlon that should be considered by each prospective investor.

THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION DOES NOT PASS
UPON THE MERITS OF OR GIVE ITS APPROVAL TO ANY SECURITIES OFFERED OR THE
TERMS OF THE OFFERING, NOR DOES IT PASS UPON THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS
OF ANY OFFERING CIRCULAR OR OTHER SELLING LITERATURE. THESE SECURITIES ARE
OFFERED PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION WITH THE COMMISSION;
HOWEVER. THE COMMISSION HAS NOT MADE AN INDEPENDENT DETERMINATION THAT
THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREUNDER ARE EXEMPT FROM REGISTRATION.

Underwriting Discounts and Proceeds to
Price to Public(1) Commissions(2) Bank(3)
Per Common Share $12.50 $-0- $12.50
Maximum Offering $4,000,000 $-0- $4,000,000
(§))] The offering price for the shares has been determined by Valley Bancorp based upon various factors. See “RISK FACTORS.”
) Neither an underwriter nor broker-dealer will be used in connection with the offering; all shares are being offered on a best-

efforts basis by certain directors and executive officers of Valley Bancorp and no commissions will be paid on sales. See

“TERMS OF THE OFFERING.”
3) Before deducting estimated expenses of the offering of approximately $60,000 including legal and accounting fees, printing and

other miscellaneous expenses payable by Valley Bancorp.

The date of this Offering Circular is December _, 2002.
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OFFERING CIRCULAR SUMMARY

The following summary explains the significant aspects of the stock offering. The summary is
qualified by the more detailed information and the financial statements appearing elsewhere in this
Offering Circular.

The Offering
Common Stock Offered....ccoovvviiiiicvciiiiiniciisnen 320,000 Shares

Common Stock to be Outstanding After the Offering.... 1,752,630 shares, assuming all offered shares
are purchased.

Minimum SubSCription .......ccecvereieeriiiniiieee e New shareholders must subscribe for at least
800 shares. There is no minimum requirement
for existing shareholders. See “TERMS OF
THE OFFERING.”

PriCE it $12.50 per share

Use of Proceeds .......cooovieiiiiiinin et To support our growth, including our branch
expansion in Las Vegas and for general
working capital purposes. See “USE OF
PROCEEDS.”

Special Factors to be Considered ..........cccovverriincennnne The securities offered involve certain risks.
See “RISK FACTORS.”

Plan of Distribution and Terms of the Offering

The offering will commence on December 15, 2002 and will continue until February 28, 2003
unless we determine in our sole discretion to terminate the offering earlier or to extend it, for up to 30
additional days.

The offering is to the general public; although we will provide offering materials to our existing
shareholders, they will not have priority in the offering. The offering will be conducted on a “first-come-
first served” basis. Among other things, the offering will allow persons residing or working in our
market area, including the areas served by our new Pahrump and Las Vegas branches, an opportunity to
become shareholders, as well as customers.

New shareholders must purchase a minimum of 800 shares ($10,000). There is no minimum
purchase requirement for existing shareholders.

Subject to any applicable regulatory approvals, availability of shares, and the discretion of the
board of directors, there is no maximum investment limit.

We reserve broad discretion in determining whether to sell shares to any particuiar person. See
“TERMS OF THE OFFERING - Sales to New Shareholders; Broad Company Discretion.”
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Conditions of the Offering

Completion of the offering is not conditioned upon receiving a minimum total offering amount.
There are no escrow arrangements with respect to this offering. Accordingly, subscription funds that we
receive and accept will be available for our immediate use.

We may accept or reject subscriptions in whole or in part for any reason. Once we accept a
subscription, you cannot withdraw it.

The shares will be marketed on a best efforts basis through certain of our executive officers and
directors, none of whom will receive any commissions or other form of compensation in connection with
such efforts. While no modification of the terms of the offering are anticipated, if there are any material
changes, subscribers will be resolicited and will be given an opportunity to rescind their investment.

See “TERMS OF THE OFFERING” for a more complete description of the offering.
About Valley Bancorp

Valley Bancorp is a Nevada state-chartered bank holding company formed in May 2001
primarily to hold all of the common stock of Valley Bank, a Nevada chartered bank that commenced
operations in October 1998. Valley Bancorp is headquartered in Henderson, Nevada, a suburb of Las
Vegas, and has opened branches in Pahrump, Nevada, and most recently, in Las Vegas, Nevada in
October 2002.

At September 30, 2002, we had consolidated total assets of approximately $140.41 million,
consolidated total liabilities of approximately $129.27 million, total net loans of approximately $106.64
million, total deposits of approximately $128.42 million, and shareholders’ equity of approximately
$11.14 million.

Through Valley Bank, Valley Bancorp provides a full range of retail banking services, including
the acceptance of demand, savings and time deposits; the making of loans to consumers and businesses;
the investment of excess funds in the purchase of federal funds, U.S government and agency obligations,
and state, county and municipal bonds; and other financial services usually handled for customers by
commercial banks. See “BUSINESS.”

Valley Bank maintains a web site at www.vbnv.com, which contains additional information
about the products and services offered, and which allows bank customers to conduct Internet banking
transactions through Valley Bank’s “Valley eBank.”
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RISK FACTORS

An investment in the shares being offered involves certain risks, including those described below.
There are many risks inherent in any business enterprise; the risks described below are risks that are
unique to our business and our market.

We have subjectively set the offering price ourselves, and the price may not reflect the actual value

We have established the offering price of $12.50 per share based solely on our belief of the fair
market value of the shares. The offering represents a multiple of 1.6 times the book value of the shares
as of September 30, 2002. We did not retain an independent investment banking firm or securities dealer
to assist in the valuation of the shares or in the determination of the offering price.

There is no minimum offering amount

We have not set a minimum number of shares that must be sold in the offering in order for the
offering to close. No escrow arrangements have been made with respect to the Offering. Thus, subject to
the acceptance of subscriptions (see “TERMS OF THE OFFERING - Sales to New Shareholders —
Broad Company Discretion”), subscription funds will be immediately available to us regardless of the
number of shares sold in the offering to such date or in the completed offering. There can be no
assurance that the maximum 320,000 shares will be sold, or that any particular amount of shares will be
sold. If the Offering is subscribed at significantly less than the maximum, our ability to support our
future growth (see “USE OF PROCEEDS”) will be affected.

We have a limited history of operations

Valley Bank commenced operations on October §, 1998, and our relatively brief operating
history is still insufficient to evaluate our long-term performance. Although Valley Bank’s performance,
as measured by growth in total assets and deposits, has been favorable through the period ended
September 30, 2002, there can be no assurance that such growth will continue.

Our primary market area is subject to unpredictable economic conditions

Nevada continues to rebound from the 2001 recession and the aftermath of the September 11"
attack. Clark County (Las Vegas) is growing slowly in employment, and the unemployment rate has
improved slightly to 5.8% (slightly better than the national average). Taxable sales and gaming revenue
continue to be down from last year. Gaming revenue is down 9% (as of June 30, 2002) from the previous
year. In light of the fact that in June 2001 the economy was already showing signs of a slowdown, the
decrease is even more drastic than it appears.

Passenger volume as of July 2002 was down 10.4% from the previous year. Commercial permits
in Clark County were also down 8% as of June 2002. It is generally believed that many visitors
previously flying to Las Vegas are now driving to the area. This theory may explain why Reno, Nevada
volume was up over the previous year, as visitors that would normally fly to Las Vegas from Northern
California may be driving to Reno.

Future economic growth on either the local or national level is problematic at the present time.
The local economy is very dependent on services and industries related to tourism and gaming, and a
downturn in the national economy could have a significant adverse effect. Commercial banks and other
financial institutions are affected by economic and political conditions, both domestic and international,
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and by governmental monetary policies. Conditions such as inflation, recession, unemployment, high
interest rates, short money supply, scarce natural resources, international disorders, acts of terrorism and
other factors beyond the control of Valley Bank may adversely affect its profitability.

We have a high concentration of loans secured by real estate

A significant portion of Valley Bank’s loans are secured by real estate. At September 30, 2002,
Valley Bank had a concentration of loans secured by real estate representing 77.7% of the loan portfolio.
Of the loans secured by real estate, approximately:

s 46.6% are commercial real estate;
o 17.5% are construction loans; and

® 8.4% are secured by land.

Valley Bank’s loan policy allows advances against the value of commercial properties up to 80%
of appraised value, however, the majority of the loans are limited to a 75% advance. Loans against
vacant land are limited to a 65% advance against the appraised value of the land, however, substantially
all of the loans secured by raw land are presently limited to a 50% advance.

These real estate-secured loans are 62% concentrated in the Las Vegas/Henderson, Nevada area.
A downturn in the local economy could have both a material adverse effect on borrower’s ability to repay
these loans, as well as the value of the real property held as collateral. See “BUSINESS - Lending
Activities.”

Approximately 9.9% of Valley Bank’s outstanding loans (8.4% of committed loans) are made to
borrowers outside the State of Nevada, and secured by real property outside the State. These real estate
loans are located in California and Arizona. See “BUSINESS — Lending Activities.” Such loans can be
more difficult than locally secured loans to evaluate and administer, and can result in additional costs
(such as legal fees) associated with nonperforming loans. All of the loans secured by real estate outside
of the State of Nevada are participations purchased from experienced lenders known to management as
competent in their respective markets. All of the Arizona and California properties are inspected by an
officer of Valley Bank to determine viability of the properties to be financed prior to funding.

You may have difficulty selling your shares, as there is little trading activity

There is no current trading market for the shares, and it is unlikely that an established market for
the shares will develop in the near future. Valley Bancorp presently does not intend to seek listing of the
shares on any securities exchange, or quotation on the NASDAQ interdealer quotation system. It is not
known whether significant trading activity will take place for several years, if at all. Accordingly,
subscribers should consider this as a long-term investment. See “VALLEY BANCORP — Market for
Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters.”

Fluctuating interest rates can adversely affect our profitability
Valley Bank’s profitability is dependent to a large extent upon net interest income, which is the

difference between its interest income on interest-earning assets and interest expense on interest-bearing
liabilities. The banking industry has in recent years experienced significant fluctuations in net interest

. income due to changing interest rates. Most recently, declining rates have narrowed the interest rate
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margins for many financial institutions as interest rates have fallen and competition for loans and
deposits has increased. Valley Bank will continue to be affected by changes in levels of interest rates and
other economic factors beyond its control.

There is intense competition in our market area

Commercial banking is a highly competitive business. Valley Bank competes with other
commercial banks, savings and loan associations, credit unions and finance companies operating in
Las Vegas and its environs and elsewhere, for loans and deposits. Valley Bank is subject to substantial
competition from other financial institutions in the market area. In certain aspects of its business, Valley
Bank also competes with credit unions, small loan companies, insurance companies, mortgage
companies, finance companies, brokerage houses, and other financial institutions, some of which are not
subject to the same degree of regulation and restriction as Valley Bank and some of which have financial
resources greater than those of Valley Bank. See “VALLEY BANK — Market Area and Competition.”

You will not likely receive cash dividends on the shares

We have never paid a cash dividend, and do not anticipate paying a cash dividend in the
foreseeable future. We expect to retain all earnings to provide capital for operation and expansion of our
subsidiary. Our ability to pay dividends in the future will depend primarily upon the earnings of Valley
Bank and its ability to pay dividends to Valley Bancorp. See “DIVIDEND POLICY” and
“SUPERVISION AND REGULATION - Distributions.”

TERMS OF THE OFFERING

Method of Offering

The offering will commence on December 15, 2002 and will terminate on February 28, 2003.
We may, in our sole discretion, determine to terminate the offering earlier than February 28, 2003, or to
extend it, for up to 30 additional days following that date.

New shareholders must subscribe for a minimum of 800 shares ($10,000). There is no minimum
subscription requirement for existing shareholders.

Subject to any applicable regulatory approvals, availability of shares, and the discretion of our
board of directors, there is no maximum investment limit.

The offering will be conducted on a “first-come-first-served” basis.
How to Subscribe

Complete and sign the enclosed subscription agreement and send it with full payment for the
shares subscribed to us.

We reserve broad discretion to accept or reject the subscriptions of new shareholders. See
“Sales to New Shareholders — Broad Company Discretion” below.

We also reserve discretion as to the manner and timing of the acceptance (or rejection) of
subscriptions of current shareholders, including subscriptions that may be subject to regulatory approval.

5
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Sales to New Shareholders - Broad Company Discretion

New shareholders should be aware that we are entitled to exercise broad discretion in
determining whether to sell shares to them. We may, in our absolute discretion, reject any
subscription of a new shareholder.

In exercising our discretion, we may consider, among other things:

¢  Whether or not the new shareholder is a bank customer, or a resident of Valley Bank’s
primary marketing area;

o  Whether or not the new shareholder is a resident of the State of Nevada, and if not,
whether the new shareholder’s state of residence imposes any restrictions on, or costs in
connection with, the sale of securities to its residents; and

o The number of shares the new shareholder has subscribed for. Among other reasons, we
may consider this factor due to our current desire to limit the number of our shareholders
to less than 500, so that we are not subject to the periodic reporting and other
requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

Subject to our absolute discretion, and the factors described above, if there are no countervailing
considerations, we will attempt to honor new shareholder subscriptions on a “first-come, first-served”
basis.

As noted above, there is no maximum investment limit in the offering. Potential subscribers
should note that regulations adopted by the Federal Reserve Bank under the Federal Change in Bank
Control Act require that individuals or members of a group “acting in concert” must file a notice
containing confidential biographical and financial information prior to acquiring 10% or more of Valley
Bancorp’s outstanding voting securities. Significant monetary penalties may be imposed on those failing
to comply with the Change in Bank Control Act and the related regulations.

Minimum Purchase Requirements for New Shareholders

We have established the minimum purchase requirement of 800 shares for new shareholders in
order to avoid the administrative, printing and related costs associated with maintaining a shareholder
base consisting of shareholders with very small holdings.

Offering Expiration Date

We must receive at our offices, completed and executed subscriptions, together with full
payment for the shares subscribed, no later than 5:00 p.m. on February 28, 2003, unless the offering is
terminated earlier or extended, for up to 30 days, by us in our sole discretion.

Subscription Funds

We will hold all subscription funds, pending acceptance, in a segregated, non-interest bearing
account at Valley Bank. If a subscription is rejected for any reason, subscription funds will be promptly
returned to the subscriber, without charge or deduction. We reserve the right to hold subscription funds

. Possible Regulatory Filings — Ownership of 10% or More of Valley Bancorp Shares
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in such segregated account for a reasonable period pending receipt by us or the subscriber, as the case
may be, of any applicable regulatory approvals in connection with such subscription.

Once you have delivered or mailed your subscription agreement to us, you cannot revoke it,
Commissions

We will not pay any commissions, fees, or other remuneration to any of our directors, officers, or
employees, or to any other person, for selling the shares in this offering.

Delivery of Stock Certificates

We will issue certificates for shares duly subscribed, paid for and accepted as soon as practicable
after completion of the offering.

Purchase Intentions of Directors and Executive Officers

Our directors and executive officers are eligible to participate in this offering on the same terms
being offered to all other shareholders. Our directors and executive officers presently beneficially own
333,119 shares in total (not including shares that could be purchased upon the exercise of stock options).
Our directors and executive officers have indicated that they plan to purchase, in the aggregate,
approximately 31,300 shares, subject to availability. Assuming they purchase this number of shares, they
will own in the aggregate 20.79% of the then outstanding shares (again, not including shares that could
be purchased upon the exercise of stock options).

Certain directors of the Company were granted stock options in December 1999, in connection
with the formation of Valley Bank. There are currently options outstanding for an aggregate amount of
24,750 shares in total, exercisable at $8.00 per share (adjusted for subsequent stock splits). Such options
are included in the under “Security Ownership of Management and Certain Shareholders.” Such options
vested in January 2000, and expire on January 26, 2003. We anticipate that the directors holding such
options will exercise substantially all of such options prior to their expiration.

DILUTION

The net book value of Valley Bancorp at September 30, 2002 was $11.14 million, or $7.78 per
share. Net book value per share is determined by dividing the net worth of the company (assets less total
liabilities) by the number of shares outstanding. Without taking into account any changes in such net
book value after September 30, 2002, other than to give effect to the sale of 320,000 shares offered by us
in this offering (after deducting estimated offering expenses), the pro forma net book value of the
outstanding shares at September 30, 2002 would have been $15.08 million or $8.60 per share. This
represents an immediate increase in net book value to present shareholders of $0.82 per share and an
immediate dilution to new investors of $3.90 per share. The following table illustrates the dilution on a
per-share basis:
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Offering price per share $12.50
Net book value per share prior to offering (1) $7.78
Increase in net book value per share attributable to new investors $0.82
Pro forma net book value per share after offering $8.60
Dilution per share to new investors (2) $3.90

(1) At September 30, 2002, total shareholders’ equity was $11.14 million, which represents a net
book value of $7.78 per share. Net book value per share represents Valley Bancorp’s total
shareholders’ equity divided by the total number of shares outstanding.

(2) Net book value dilution per share represents the difference between the amount per share paid by
purchasers in the offering and the pro forma book value per share immediately after the
completion of the offering.

Although our current shareholders will not experience net book value dilution of their shares as a
result of the offering, they will experience a dilution in their respective ownership percentages of Valley
Bancorp to the extent that such persons do not participate in the offering.

DIVIDEND POLICY

We currently intend to retain any earnings to help fund future growth of Valley Bank, and we do
not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. We cannot predict when such
dividends, if any, will ever be made. The payment of dividends, if any, will at all times be subject to the
ability of Valley Bank to pay dividends to Valley Bancorp, which is subject to the payment of Valley
Bank’s expenses, the maintenance of adequate liquidity and loan loss allowance, and minimum capital
requirements for commercial banks, and other factors. See “SUPERVISION AND REGULATION -

Distributions.”
USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from the sale of shares offered, assuming that all 320,000 shares offered by
means of this Offering Circular are sold, are estimated to be $4,000,000 before deducting estimated
expenses of the offering of approximately $60,000. As this offering is not conditioned on the sale of a
minimum number of shares, the net proceeds to Valley Bancorp will be reduced to the extent that the
maximum number of shares in this offering are not subscribed for. There can be no assurance that the
maximum proceeds of $4,000,000, or any other amount, will be attained.

The net proceeds of the offering will be utilized to support recent and anticipated future growth
of Valley Bank, including potential branch expansion and to allow Valley Bank to increase its lending
limits, and for general corporate purposes.

Valley Bancorp’s business plan calls for moderate growth in the future. To the extent that the
offering is subscribed at a level significantly below the maximum offering amount of $4,000,000, our
future growth could be restricted, depending upon the profitability of operations. In such event, Valley
Bancorp may consider options such as additional equity financing or borrowing funds, which it would
contribute to Valley Bank, to fund growth.
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BUSINESS

Vallev Bancorp

Valley Bancorp Financial Overview

We are a bank holding company organized under the laws of Nevada, chartered in May 2001.
We had consolidated total assets of approximately $140.41 million at September 30, 2002. We are
located in Henderson, Nevada, and conduct our operations through our subsidiary, Valley Bank, a
Nevada state-chartered bank, which commenced operations in October 1998. We do not engage in any
substantial activities other than acting as a bank holding company for Valley Bank. We believe that we
can present an alternative to large financial institutions by offering local ownership, local decision-
making and other personalized services characteristic of community banks. The holding company
structure provides flexibility for expansion of our banking business through acquisition of other financial
institutions and allows us to provide additional banking-related services that a traditional commercial
bank may not be able to provide. See “SUPERVISION AND REGULATION.”

Valley Bancorp Selected Financial Information as of September 30, 2002
The following table present unaudited financial information regarding Valley Bancorp and

Valley Bank updated through September 30, 2002. This summary is qualified in its entirety by the
detailed financial information and financial statements appearing elsewhere in this offering circular.

Nine months ended Twelve months ended
September 30 December 31
2002 2001 2001 2000 1999 1998"
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (In thousands, except per share data)
Interest Income $ 6413 $§ 6109 $ 7967 $ 5581 $ 1926 $ 257
Interest Expense (2.399) (3.071) (3.907) (3.085) (858) (10)
Net Interest Margin 4,014 3,038 4,060 2,496 1,068 247
Provision for credit losses (1,397) (242) (340) (464) (233) (26)
Noninterest Income 155 145 218 89 25 2
Noninterest Expense (2,643) (2,378) (3.185) (1,984) _(1.415) (624)
Income (loss) before income
taxes $ 129 $ 563 $ 753  § 137 $ (555) $ @401
Income Tax Benefit
(expense) 38 54) 96) 117 — -
Net Income (loss) $ 91 §% 509 % 657 $ 254 $ (555) $ (40D
Earnings (loss) Per Share®
Basic $ 006 % 036 % 046 $ 020 $ (0.60) $ (043)
Diluted $ 006 $ 035 % 045 % 020 $ (0.60) $ (0.43)
Book Value per share $ 778 ¢ 762 $ 772 % 725 $§ 634 § 688
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Nine months ended Twelve months ended
September 30 December 31
2002 2001 2001 2000 1999 1998"
FINANCIAL POSITION: (In thousands, except per share data)
Interest-bearing deposits in
banks $ 5941 $ 5250 $ 2674 $ 2,173 $ 1,093 %

Federal Funds Soid 19,745 7,320 3,465 14,390 1,375 6,875
Investment Securities 1,006 2,757 728 3,390 3,035 -
Net Loans 106,635 87,017 92,172 64,603 29,892 2,568
Total Assets 140,409 108,687 105,476 90,609 39,202 10,318
Total Deposits 128,419 97,087 93,949 79,860 32,531 3,285
Shareholders Equity 11,139 10,894 11,038 10,348 6,490 7,006

1998 data represents activities from inception on October 8, 1998.
@ Earnings (loss) per share information has been retroactively adjusted for a 5-for-4 stock split that was effective
on February 14, 2000 and an 11-for-10 stock split that was effective on January 31, 2002.

Return on Assets and Equity

Following are performance ratios of Valley Bancorp for the nine months ended September 30,
2002 and 2001, and for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999:

Nine Months Ended Year ended
September 30 December 31
2002 2001 2001 2000 1999

Return on average assets 0.07% 0.52% 0.66% 0.40% (2.11%)
Return on average equity 0.81% 4.78% 6.12% 3.09% (8.27%)
Dividend payout ratio --- == - --- ---
Average equity to average assets 8.98% 10.95% 10.76% 12.81% 25.47%
Employees

Valley Bank had a total of 35.5 full-time equivalent employees at September 30, 2002. There are
no separate full-time employees of Valley Bancorp.

Property

Valley Bank owns the bank headquarters building at 370 North Stephanie Street, Henderson,
Nevada. In addition to the approximately 9,000 sq. ft. two-story building Valley Bank owns
approximately 0.8 acres of land on which the building stands. Valley Bank also owns the bank building,
of approximately 5,700 sq. ft. at 3500 W. Sahara, Las Vegas, Nevada, and the approximately 0.6 acres on
which the building stands. Valley Bank leases the branch office building, of approximately 5,700 sq. ft.,
at 3250 S. Highway 160, in Pahrump, Nevada.

Legal Proceedings

Valley Bank has initiated legal proceedings against various parties in connection with losses that
Valley Bank incurred as a result of the funding of a medical equipment leasing transaction entered into in
October 2001 (the “Lakes Medical Imaging Loan™). The lawsuit alleges, among other things, breach of
contract and fraud. The lawsuit is in a very early stage, and discovery has not yet begun. Although
management believes Valley Bank has a strong case against some or all of the defendants, it is too early
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in the proceeding to evaluate the chance of success or the ability of the defendants to satisfy any
judgment against them. Valley Bank intends to pursue the litigation vigorously.

One of the defendants in the Lakes Medical Imaging Looan lawsuit described above has
counterclaimed against Valley Bank, alleging among other things wrongful interference with prospective
economic advantage and defamation causing damage to the defendant and is seeking $5 million from
Valley Bank. Counsel for Valley Bank in this matter believes that the counterclaim has been brought
only for the strategic purposes of obtaining a jury trial and having leverage in resolving the primary issue
alleged by Valley Bank. Valley Bank denies the allegations and intends to vigorously defend the
counterclaim. Accordingly, Valley Bank has not recorded any provision related to this claim.

Valley Bank is a defendant in a lawsuit alleging breach of an equipment (primarily photocopy
machines) lease agreement. The plaintiff seeks approximately $427,000 in damages, plus fees and costs.
Valley Bank has counterclaimed against the plaintiff, alleging among other things, breach of contract,
breach of contractual rights of assignment, breach of express warranty and breach of contract — good
faith and fair dealing. Valley Bank and the plaintiff have agreed to early mediation before a magistrate
judge. Valley Bank’s management believers that Valley Bank will be able to resolve the matter in a
manner that will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition or results of operations of
Valley Bank or Valley Bancorp. Accordingly, Valley Bank has not recorded any material provision
related to this claim.

Aside from the matters described above, there are no material pending legal proceedings to
which we or Valley Bank is a party or to which any of our properties is subject; nor are there material
proceedings known to us to be contemplated by any governmental authority; nor are there material
proceedings known to us, pending or contemplated, in which any director, officer or any principal
security holder, or any associate of any of the foregoing, is a party or has an interest adverse to us or
Valley Bank.

Market for Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

No broker makes a market in our common stock, and trading has not been extensive. Trades that
have occurred cannot be characterized as amounting to an active market. The shares are traded by
individuals on a personal basis and are not listed on any exchange or traded on the over-the-counter
market. Due to the limited information available, the following price information may not accurately
reflect the actual market value of the shares. The following data includes trades between individual
investors. It does not include new issues of stock or the exercise of stock options, and does not include
transfers as to which we have no information as to the purchase or sale price. For periods before May 1,
2001, the data is provided for Valley Bank rather than for us. The price range has been adjusted to
reflect a Valley Bank 5-for-4 stock split on February 14, 2000, and a Valley Bancorp 11-for-10 stock
split that was effective January 31, 2002.

Period # of Shares Traded Price Range
2000 31,800 $ 7.20 -- $9.45
2001 8,125 $ 9.00 -- $9.45
2002 (through 9/30) 550 $10.00

To the best of our knowledge, the most recent transaction in the shares was June 13, 2002, in a
transaction, involving 550 shares at a price of $10.00 per share.
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At September 30, 2002, stock options for 209,000 shares were outstanding.

As noted above, Valley Bank declared a 5-for-4 stock split that was effective on February 14,
2000, and Valley Bancorp declared an 11-for-10 stock split that was effective on January 31, 2002.

In April and May, 2000, Valley Bank raised $3,604,350 in additional capital through the sale of
366,435 shares of common stock at $10.00 per share.

Number of Equity Holders
As of September 30, 2002, there were approximately 209 holders of record of shares.

Reports to Shareholders

Valley Bancorp delivers to each shareholder of record a quarterly consolidated summary
financial statement (unaudited) and an annual report including audited financial statements for the year
then ended and other periods described in such financial statements. Valley Bancorp is not subject to the
reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and thus does not file periodic reports,
proxy statements or other information with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Cash Dividends

We have never paid a cash dividend, and do not anticipate paying a cash dividend in the
foreseeable future. We expect to retain all earnings to provide capital for operations and expansion of
our subsidiary. Dividends, when and if paid, will be subject to determination and declaration by the
board of directors, which will take into account the financial condition of Valley Bancorp and Valley
Bank, results of operations, tax considerations, industry standards, economic conditions and other
factors. Our ability to pay dividends in the future will depend primarily upon the earnings of Valley
Bank and its ability to pay dividends to us. Valley Bank’s ability to pay dividends is governed by various
statutes. See “SUPERVISION AND REGULATION - Dividends.”

Valley Bank

Valley Bank primarily serves individuals and small and medium-sized businesses located in its
primary and secondary trade areas. Valley Bank offers its customers a full range of deposit services that
are typically available in most financial institutions, including checking accounts, savings accounts and
other deposits of various types, ranging from money market accounts to certificates of deposit. The
transaction accounts and time certificates are tailored to the principal market areas at rates competitive in
the area. Valley Bank’s deposits are attracted primarily from individuals, merchants, small and medium-
sized businesses, and professionals. All deposit accounts are insured by the FDIC up to the maximum
amount.

The principal sources of Valley Bank’s revenues are: (i) interest and fees on loans; (ii) interest
on investments (principally government securities); (iii) interest on federal funds sold (funds loaned on a
short-term basis to other banks); and (iv) deposit service charges. Valley Bank’s lending activity consists
of short-to-medium-term real estate and construction commercial loans, including operating loans and
lines, equipment loans, real estate loans, personal loans or lines of credit, home improvement and
rehabilitation loans. Valley Bank also offers safe deposit boxes, direct deposit of payroll and social
security checks, and automatic draft for various accounts.
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Market Area and Competition

Valley Bank competes with other commercial banks, savings and loan associations, credit unions
and finance companies operating in its primary service area, which is the city of Las Vegas and its
environs, including Henderson. There are approximately 15 state chartered local “community banks”
which are located in Valley Bank’s primary service area and directly target the same loan and deposit
markets of Valley Bank. These banks range in asset size from approximately $800 million to under $30
million. Additionally, there are approximately 10 larger regional and national banks with offices located
within Valley Bank’s primary service areas which also provide competition to Valley Bank.

Valley Bank is subject to substantial competition in all aspects of its business. Intense
competition for loans and deposits comes from other financial institutions in the market area. In certain
aspects of its business, Valley Bank also competes with credit unions, small loan companies, insurance
companies, mortgage companies, finance companies, brokerage houses and other financial institutions,
some of which are not subject to the same degree of regulation and restriction as Valley Bank and some
of which have financial resources greater than those of Valley Bank. The future success of Valley Bank
will depend primarily upon the difference between the cost of its borrowing (primarily interest paid on
deposits) and income from operations (primarily interest or fees earned on loans, interest earned on
investment securities and Fed funds sold). Valley Bank competes for funds with other institutions,
which, in most cases, are significantly larger and are able to provide a greater variety of services than
Valley Bank and thus may obtain deposits at lower rates of interest.

Products and Services

In conjunction with the growth of its asset base, Valley Bank has introduced new products and
services to position itself to compete in its highly competitive market. Valley Bank’s customers demand
not only a wide range of financial products but also efficient and convenient service. In response to these
demands, Valley Bank has developed a mix of products and services tailored to its market. Additionally,
Valley Bank offers a wide range of commercial and retail banking products and services to its customers.
Deposit accounts include certificates of deposit and other time deposits, checking and other demand
deposit accounts, interest-bearing checking accounts, savings accounts and money market accounts.
Loans include real estate construction and development, commercial, installment and consumer loans.
Other products and services include electronic funds transfers, electronic tax payment, and safe deposit
boxes. Valley Bank also provides internet banking services through its “Valley eBank,” and plans to add
a bill-payment service to such internet banking services in the near future.

Lending Activities

The two main areas in which Valley Bank has directed its lendable funds are commercial and
real estate loans. At September 30, 2002, these categories accounted for approximately 21.4% and
77.7%, respectively, of Valley Bank’s total loan portfolio. Valley Bank’s major source of income is
interest and fees charged on loans.

In general, Valley Bank is permitted by Nevada law to make loans to single borrowers in
aggregate amounts of up to twenty-five percent (25%) of the stockholders’ equity of Valley Bank,
actually paid in. Valley Bank’s goal is to reduce the risk of undue concentrations of loans to multiple
borrowers engaged in similar activities that would cause them to be similarly impacted by economic or
other conditions. At September 30, 2002, Valley Bank had a concentration of loans secured by real
estate representing approximately 77.7% of the loan portfolio. Of the loans secured by real estate,
approximately 46.6% are commercial real estate, 17.5% are construction loans, and 8.4% are secured by
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land. These loans are concentrated 62% in the Las Vegas, Nevada area. Due to the diversity of the
borrowers and product types, Valley Bank does not believe this loan concentration represents a
significant risk, although a downturn in the Las Vegas area real estate market could have an adverse
effect on Valley Bank and its operations. As Valley Bank matures, management intends to further
diversify and broaden its loan portfolio.

Additionally, approximately 9.9% of Valley Bank’s outstanding loans (8.4% of committed loans)
are made to borrowers outside the State of Nevada, and secured by real property outside the State. These
real estate loans are located in California and Arizona, where Valley Bank’s management has extensive
experience. Management believes that such loans reduce Valley Bank’s economic exposure by reducing
its concentration of loans secured by real estate in the Las Vegas area. Each of the out of state loans are
loan participations involving reputable lenders that are experienced in the real estate market in which the
properties are located. Additionally, Valley Bank generally sends its own representatives to conduct on-
site evaluations of the borrowers and the properties securing the loans.

Valley Bank on occasion sells participations in loans when necessary to stay within lending
limits or to otherwise limit its exposure. All such sales of participations in loans are on a non-recourse
basis, limiting the exposure of Valley Bank to the amount of the loan that it has retained.

In the normal course of business there are various commitments outstanding and commitments to
extend credit which are not reflected in the financial statements. These commitments generally require
the customers to maintain certain credit standards and have fixed expiration dates or other termination
clauses. Valley Bank uses the same credit policies in making commitments as it does for loans.
Management does not expect that all such commitments will be fully utilized.

Lending activities are conducted pursuant to a written loan policy, which has been adopted by the
board of directors of Valley Bank. See “Loan Policy” below.

Valley Bank has entered into agreements with other banks to participate in certain of its
commitments to extend credit to customers.

Valley Bank’s loan policy provides that accrual of interest on loans will be discontinued when
there is reasonable doubt as to the full, timely collections of interest or principal. When a loan becomes
contractually past due 90 days with respect to interest or principal, it will be reviewed and a
determination is made as to whether it should be placed on nonaccrual status. When a loan is placed on
nonaccrual status, all interest previously accrued but not collected is reversed against current period
interest income. Income on such loans is then recognized only to the extent that cash is received and
where the future collection of principal is probable. Interest accruals are resumed on such loans only
when they are brought fully current with respect to principal and interest and when, in the judgment of
management, the loans are estimated to be fully collectible as to principal and interest. Restructured
loans are those loans on which concessions in terms have been granted because of a borrower’s financial
difficulty. Interest is generally accrued on such loans in accordance with the new terms.

Valley Bank currently has one loan on nonaccrual status, the Lakes Medical Imaging loan
discussed under “Risk Elements — Nonaccrual, Past Due and Restructured Loans” below.

Loan Policy

Interest income on loans is based on principal amounts outstanding, at applicable interest rates.
Accrual of interest on impaired loans is discontinued when reasonable doubt exists as to the full, timely
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collection of interest or principal or when payment of principal or interest is contractually past due 90
days, unless the loan is well secured and in the process of collection. When a loan is placed on
nonaccrual status, all interest previously accrued, but not collected, is reversed against current period
interest income. Income on such loans is then recognized only to the extent that cash is received and
when future collection of principal is probable. Interest accruals are resumed on such loans only when
they are brought current with respect to both principal and interest and when, in the opinion of
management, the loans are estimated to be fully collectible as to both principal and interest.

In the normal course of business there are various commitments outstanding and commitments to
extend credits that are not reflected in the financial statements. These commitments generally require the
customers to maintain certain credit standards and have fixed expiration dates or other termination
clauses. Valley Bank uses the same credit policies in making commitments as it does for loans.
Management does not expect that all such commitments will be fully utilized.

Lending activities are conducted under a written loan policy that has been adopted by Valley
Bank’s board of directors. Each loan officer has a defined lending authority. Regardless of lending
authority, individual secured and unsecured loans over $750,000 are approved by the Valley Bank
Directors’ Loan Committee.

Loan commitments are underwritten within Valley Bank’s established guidelines for each loan
category and carry no unusual risk.

At September 30, 2002 Valley Bank had loan commitments to loan monies totaling
approximately $18.81 million. Of this amount, approximately $10.98 million (58.35%) is secured by real
estate. Commercial and other loan commitments total approximately $7.83 million (41.65%) of total
commitments.

Valley Bank has entered into agreements with other banks to participate in certain of its
commitments to extend credit to customers. As noted above under “Lending Activities,” all such
agreements provide that the loan participations sold to other banks are sold on a non-recourse basis, thus
limiting the potential exposure of Valley Bank to the amount of the loan that it retains (does not sell
through a participation). Loan participations are customary in the banking industry, and the terms of the
agreements between Valley Bank and the banks to which it sells loan participations contain customary
terms and conditions.

Loan Portfolio: Loans Receivable

Total net loans of $106.64 million at September 30, 2002 reflected an increase of $14.47 million
or 15.70%, compared to total loans for the year ended December 31, 2001.

The following table sets forth the composition of Valley Bank’s loan portfolio at September 30,
2002, and December 31, 2001, 2000, 1999 and 1998.
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September 30, 2002 December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
Percent Percent Percent
of Total of Total of Total
Amounts Loans Amounts Loans Amounts Loans
(dollars in thousands)
Gross Loans:
Commercial $ 23,127 21.35% $ 29,310 31.30% $ 20,756 31.56%
Real Estate:
Construction 28,024 25.87% 14,395 15.37% 14,991 22.79%
Mortgage 56,097 51.79% 48,942 52.26% 29,654 45.09%
Consumer 1,077 0.99% 1,002 1.07% 366 0.56%
Total $ 108,325 100.00% $ 93,649 100.00% $ 65,767 100.00%
December 31, 1999 December 31, 1998
Percent Percent
of Total of Total
Amounts Loans Amounts Loans
(dollars in thousands)
Gross Loans:
Commercial $ 5,802 19.11% $ 10 0.38%
Real Estate:
Construction 7,477 24.62% 0.00%
Mortgage 16,964 55.87% 2,600 99.62%
Consumer 122 0.40% - 0.00%
Total $ 30,365 100.00% $ 2,610 100.00%

Total mortgage loans secured by real estate mortgages at September 30, 2002 are composed of

loans secured by 1-4 family residential (9.96%) and commercial real estate (90.04%). All mortgage
loans are underwritten within Valley Bank’s established lending guidelines.

The following table sets forth the maturities and interest sensitivities of Valley Bank’s loan
portfolio at September 30, 2002.

Due in
One Year Due after One Due after Five
or Less through Five Years through Ten Years QOver Ten Years
[ Amount | [ Fixed | Varable | [ Fixed | Variable | [ Fixed [ Variable | [ Total |
Gross Loans:
Commercial $ 9,234 $ 4,689 $ 5,430 $ 252 $ 2,695 $ $ 827 $ 23,127
Real Estate:
Construction 18,971 1,494 7,559 - --- - 28,024
Mortgage 9,081 10,007 2,656 1,356 27,964 5,033 56,097
Consumer 608 469 - --- -- 1,077
Total $37,894 $16,659 $15,645 $ 1,608 $30,659 $ $ 5,860 $108,325

Loans with either fixed or variable interest rates are categorized by their maturity: Less than one

year; one to five years; five to ten years; and over ten years. At September 30, 2002 Valley Bank had
total loans of $37.89 million maturing in less than one year. Of this amount, $37.08 million or 97.85%
are considered variable rate, indexed to the prime lending rate.
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Valley Bank’s real estate loan portfolio is secured by office buildings, land for development,
single family homes and other real property located primarily in the Las Vegas, Nevada area.
Substantially all of these loans are secured by first liens with an initial loan to value ratio of generally not
more than 75%. Valley Bank’s loan policy provides for a loan to value ratio of 75%, and Valley Bank’s
loan policy authorizes an increase in this requirement to 80% in certain circumstances.

Valley Bank had loans at December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2000 that were classified as
impaired as defined by SFAS 114. See Note 3 to the audited financial statements that are included in this
Offering Circular.

Asset and Liability Management

The matching of assets and liabilities may be analyzed by examining the extent to which such
assets and liabilities are “interest rate sensitive” and by monitoring an institution's interest rate sensitivity
“gap.” An asset or liability is said to be interest rate sensitive within a specific time period if it will
mature or reprice within that time period. The interest rate sensitivity gap is defined as the difference
between the amount of interest-earning assets maturing or repricing within a specific time period and the
amount of interest-bearing liabilities maturing or repricing within that time period. A gap is considered
positive when the amount of interest rate sensitive assets exceeds the amount of interest rate sensitive
labilities. A gap is considered negative when the amount of interest rate sensitive liabilities exceeds the
amount of interest rate sensitive assets. During a period of rising interest rates, a negative gap would
tend to adversely affect net interest income while a positive gap would tend to result in an increase in net
interest income. During a period of falling interest rates, a negative gap would tend to result in an
increase in net interest income while a positive gap would tend to adversely affect net interest income.

The principal focus of asset/liability management is the identification, measurement, control and
monitoring of processes and strategies that will enhance net interest margins and capital values during
periods of changing interest rates. -

Valley Bank’s board of directors has adopted an asset/liability policy that establishes a prudent
interest rate risk management plan. Valley Bank’s Asset and Liability Management Committee is
responsible for measuring, controlling and monitoring its interest rate position. Management uses
various tools and techniques to quantify the exposure to changing interest rates including traditional
“gap” analysis, earnings at risk and economic value at risk models.

At September 30, 2002, Valley Bank had a negative cumulative repricing gap within one year of
approximately $8.03 million, or approximately 5.95% of total earning assets. This negative repricing gap
indicates that our future earnings may be materially adversely impacted by a rise in market interest rates,
and such impact would primarily be felt in the twelve month period after such a rise in rates.

The following table represents interest sensitivity profiles for Valley Bank as of September 30,
2002. The table represents a static point in time and does not consider other variables, such as changing
spread relationships or interest rate levels. “Interest sensitive gap” is the difference between total earning
assets and total interest-bearing liabilities repricing in any given period. '
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Rate Sensitive Assets:

Loan Portfolio (Gross)

Investment Portfolio

FF Sold and Int. bearing
deps.

Total

Rate Sensitive

Liabilities:

Savings, NOW and

interest checking
Time deposits
Total

Interest sensitive gap
Cumulative gap

Assets

Within One Year One Year to Five Years Over Five Years
% of % of
% of Total Total Total 9% of Total
Eamning Earning Earning Grand Earning
Total Assets Total Assets Total Assets Total Assets
(dollars in thousands)
$ 59,997 44.44% $ 47,183 34.95% $ 1,145 0.85% $108,325 80.23%
0.00% 1,000 0.75% - 0.00% 1,006 0.75%
25,686 19.02% 0.00% 0.00% 25,686 19.02%
$ 85,683 63.46% $ 48,189 35.70% $ 1,145 0.85% $135,017 100.00%
$ 44,457 32.93% 3 --- 0.00% $ - 0.00% $ 44,457 32.93%
49,256 36.48% 22,178 16.43% 0.00% 71,434 52.91%
$ 93,713 69.41% $ 22,178 16.43% 3 --- 0.00% $115,891 85.84%
S (8,030) (5.95%) $ 26,01 19.26% $ 1,145 0.85% $ 19,126 14.17%
$ (8,030) (5.95%) $ 17,981 13.32% $ 19,126 14.17%

At September 30, 2002, total assets were $140.41 million, an increase of $34.93 million from
December 31, 2001. This growth has primarily occurred in loans and investments. Total average assets
for the year 2001 were $99.72 million.

Management of Valley Bank considers many criteria in managing assets, including credit-
worthiness, diversification and structural characteristics, maturity and interest rate sensitivity. The
following table sets forth Valley Bank’s interest earning assets by category at September 30, 2002, and at
December 31, 2001, 2000, 1999 and 1998.

Loan Portfolio (Net)
Investment Portfolio
FF Sold and Int.

Bearing Deps.
Total

Loan Portfolio (Net)
Investment Portfolio
FF Sold and Int.

Bearing Deps.
Total

m26504-387045.9.doc

Earning Assets

September 30, 2002

December 31, 2001

December 31, 2000

% Earning % Earning % Earning

Amount Assets Amount Assets Amount Assets
$106,635 79.98% $ 92,172 93.07% $ 64,603 76.40%
1,006 0.75% 728 0.74% 3,390 4.01%
25,686 19.27% 6,139 6.19% 16,563 19.59%
$133,327 100.00% $ 99,039 100.00% $ 84,556 100.00%

December 31, 1999

December 31, 1998

% Earning % Earning
Amount Assets Amount Assets
$ 29,892 84.45% $ 2,568 27.19%
3,035 8.57% 0.00%
2,468 6.98% 6,875 72.81%
$ 35,395 100.00% $ 9,443 100.00%
18
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At September 30, 2002 and at December 31, 2001 and 2000, obligations of the United States
Government or its agencies and obligations of states and political subdivisions represented 99.70%,
100.00% and 41.09%, respectively, of the investment portfolio.

The following tables present the maturity distribution of the amortized cost and estimated market
value of Valley Bank’s debt securities at September 30, 2002, December 31, 2001 and 2000. The
weighted average yields on these instruments are presented based on final maturity. Yields on
obligations of states and political subdivisions have not been adjusted to a fully taxable equivalent basis.

September 30, 2002 December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
(in thousands)

U.S. government and agency securities $ 1,003 $ 728 $ 1,393
Mortgage-backed securities — - ---
Total $ 1,003 $ 728 $ 1,393
September 30, 2002
Dueg in Over one Over five
one year or less through five vears through ten vears Over ten years
Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield

(dollars in thousands)

U.S. government and agency
securities --- $1,003 3.01% --- --- ---

Mortgage-backed securities —-- — - -
Total

December 31, 2001
Over one Over five
Due in one vear or less _ through five years through ten years Qver ten years
Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield
(dollars in thousands)

U.S. government and agency
securities $728 3.28% --- --- --- --- --- ---

Mortgage-backed securities --- - - --- - --- --- -
Total

Investment Policy

The objective of Valley Bank’s investment policy is to invest funds not otherwise needed to meet
the loan demand of its market area to earn the maximum return for Valley Bank, yet still maintain
sufficient liquidity to meet fluctuations in Valley Bank’s loan demand and deposit structure. In doing so,
Valley Bank balances the market and credit risks against the potential investment return, makes
investments compatible with the pledge requirements of Valley Bank’s deposits of public funds,
maintains compliance with regulatory investment requirements, and assists the various public entities
with their financing needs. The Chief Executive Officer and the Executive Vice President/Chief
Financial Officer are authorized to execute security transactions for the investment portfolio, subject to
Valley Bank’s investment policy and monthly review by Valley Bank’s board of directors.

Valley Bank’s investment securities portfolio of $1 million at September 30, 2002 consisted of
securities available for sale, which are carried at market value. In addition, unrealized gains on
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investment securities available for sale were $0 and unrealized losses were $6,997. Valley Bank’s
investment securities portfolio of $730,000 at December 31, 2001 consisted of securities available for
sale, which are carried at market value. In addition, unrealized gains on investment securities available
for sale were $15,521 and unrealized losses were $0.

At September 30, 2002 Valley Bank had no mortgage-backed securities in the available for sale
category. Mortgage-backed securities have uncertain cash flows that are driven by interest rate
movements and expose Valley Bank to greater market risk than traditional medium-term notes. All of
Valley Bank’s investments of this type are government agency issues (primarily Federal Home Loan
Bank and Federal National Mortgage Association).

Investment Portfolio

As described above, Valley Bank’s investment policy is to establish a portfolio which will
provide liquidity necessary to facilitate making loans and to cover deposit fluctuations while at the same
time achieving a satisfactory investment return on the funds invested. The investment policy is reviewed
annually by Valley Bank’s board of directors. Valley Bank stresses the following attributes for its
investments: safety of principal, liquidity, yield, price appreciation and pledgeability. With its
implementation of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 115, Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities, Valley Bank is required to classify its portfolio into three
categories: Held to Maturity, Trading Securities, and Available for Sale.

Held to Maturity includes debt securities that Valley Bank has positive intent and ability to hold
to maturity; these securities are reported at amortized cost. At December 31, 2001 Valley Bank had no
securities Held to Maturity.

Trading Securities include debt and equity securities that are purchased and held solely for the
purpose of selling them in the short-term future for trading profits. Trading Securities are reported at fair
market value with unrealized gains and losses included in earnings. As of December 31, 2001 Valley
Bank held no securities as Trading Securities.

Available for Sale securities include those which may be disposed of prior to maturity. These
securities are reported at fair market value with unrealized gains and losses excluded from the earnings
and reported as a separate component of shareholders’ equity.

The following table sets forth weighted average yields earned by Valley Bank on its earning
assets and the weighted average yields paid on its average deposits and other interest-bearing liabilities
for the periods indicated. The table also presents a summary of changes in interest income, interest
expense, and the interest rate differential aggregated by the changes in volumes and rates.
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Changes in interest income and expense and the amounts attributable to rate and volume changes
for the nine months ended September 30, 2002 and the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 are
presented below. For purposes of this analysis, changes in rate/volume are allocated to rate and volume
in the ratio that the absolute value of each bears to the absolute total.

Earning assets:

Loans

Federal funds sold
Interest bearing deposits
Investment securities

Interest income

Interest bearing liabilities:

Interest bearing demand deposits

Savings deposits

Certificates of deposit less than
$100,000

Certificates of deposit $100,000 or more

Total interest bearing deposits
Short-term borrowings
Total interest expense

Net interest income

D Annualized

Deposits

(in thousands)

Net change Rate : Volume

9/30/02 12/31/01  12/31/00  9/30702V  12/31/01  12/31/00 9/30/02Y  12/31/01  12/31/00 -
705 $ 2,886 $ 3,121 $ (808) $ (5000 $ 74 $ 1,513 $ 3,386 $ 3,047
(99) 221) 222 (179) (197 87 80 (24) 135
(12) (125) 172 (49) (75) 21 37 (50 151
10y (154) 140 16 (94) 14 (26) (60 126
S84 % 238 $ 3.655 $(1,0200) $ (866) $ 196 $ 1,604 $ 3,252 § 3,459
85 $§ 126 $ 392 $ (284) $ (241) $ 28 $ 199 $ 367 $ 364
(39) (86) 97 51 (98) 3 12 12 89
(495) 370 1,381 (684) (29) 115 189 399 1,266
_(90) 412 356 215) (26) 12 125 438 344
(709) $ 822 $ 2,226 $(1234) $ (394) § 163 $ 525 5 1216 § 2,063
- § 35 3 $ $ $ s s -
$ (709) $ 822 § 2226 $(1.234) $ (394 $§ 163 $§ 525 $ 1216 $ 2.063
$ 1293 $ 1564 1429 §_ 214 $ @72 $ 33 S 1079 $ 203 $ 1396

Valley Bank’s primary sources of funds are interest-bearing deposits. The following table sets
forth Valley Bank’s deposit structure at September 30, 2002 and December 31, 2001, 2000, 1999 and

1998:

Non-interest bearing demand
Interest-bearing demand
Money market
Savings
Certificates of deposit
less than $100,000
Certificates of deposit
$100,000 or more

Total deposits

m26504-387045.9.doc

September 30, 2002

December 31, 2001

December 31, 2000

(dollars in thousands)

% Total % Total % Total
Amount Deposits Amount Deposits Amount Deposits
$ 12,527 9.75% § 8923 9.50% $ 5315 6.66%
8,903 6.93% 6,353 6.76% 2,966 3.71%
28,740 22.38% 20,870 22.21% 14,158 17.73%
6,814 5.31% 5,352 5.70% 4,096 5.13%
45,770 35.64% 32,733 34.84% 38,986 48.82%
25,665 19.99% 19,718 20.99% 14,339 17.95%
$128419 100.00% $ 93.949  100.00% $ 79860 100.00%
23
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Non-interest bearing demand
Interest-bearing demand
Money market
Savings
Certificates of deposit
less than $100,000
Certificates of deposit
$100,000 or more

Total deposits

December 31, 1999

December 31, 1998

% Total % Total

Amount Deposits Amount Deposits
$ 2,028 6.23% $ 791 24.08%
501 1.54% 135 4.11%

5,085 15.63% 1,075 32.72%
4,115 12.65% 182 5.54%
14,827 45.58% 502 15.28%
5,975 18.37% 600 18.27%

$ 32,531  100.00% $ 3,285 100.00%

The following tables present a breakdown by category of the average amount of deposits and the
weighted average rate paid on deposits for the periods as indicated:

Non-interest bearing demand
Interest-bearing demand
Savings

Certificates of deposit

Total

Non-interest bearing demand
Interest-bearing demand
Savings

Certificates of deposit

Total

Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2002

Years Ended

December 31, 2001

December 31, 2000

(dollars in thousands)

December 31, 1999

December 31, 1998

Average | Avg. Rate Average | Avg. Rate
deposits Paid deposits Paid
$ 1,821 0.00% 3 85 0.00%
3,433 4.19% 148 3.75%
2,368 4.27% 17 4.16%
11,807 5.19% 97 5.00%
$ 19,429 4.42% 3 347 3.25%

Average | Avg. Rate Average | Avg. Rate Average | Avg. Rate

deposits Paid deposits Paid deposits Paid

$ 10,540 0.00% $ 7,133 0.00% $ 3210 0.00%
36,538 1.58% 23,975 2.76% 10,682 5.02%
5,806 1.26% 4,843 2.31% 4,308 4.60%
59,609 4.27% 52,180 6.00% 37,377 6.29%

$112,493 2.84% $ 88,131 4.43% $ 55,577 5.55%

Years Ended

At September 30, 2002, December 31, 2001, 2000, 1999 and 1998, certificates of deposit of
$100,000 or more aggregated approximately $25.67 million, $19.72 million, $14.34 million,
$5.98 million, and $0.6 million, respectively. The following table indicates, as of the dates indicated, the
dollar amount of $100,000 or more certificates of deposit by the time remaining until maturity:
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September 30, December 31, December 31, December 31, ' December 31,
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Maturity in:

Three months or less $ 3,599 $ 3354 $ 3736 $ $ ---

Over three months
through 6 months 4,380 6,817 2,352 -—-
6 — 12 months 8,231 8,505 5,339 5,975 600
Over twelve months 9,455 1,042 2,912 ---
Total $ 25,665 $ 19,718 $ 14339 $ 5975 $ 600

Credit Risk Management and Allowance for Loan Losses

Credit risk and exposure to loss are inherent parts of the banking business. Management seeks to
manage and minimize these risks through its loan and investment policies and loan review procedures.
Management establishes and continually reviews lending and investment criteria and approval
procedures that it believes reflect the risk sensitive nature of Valley Bank. The loan review procedures
are set to monitor adherence to the established criteria and to ensure that on a continuing basis such
standards are enforced and maintained.

Management’s objective in establishing lending and investment standards is to manage the risk
of loss and provide for income generation through pricing policies. To effectuate this policy, Valley
Bank has established specific terms and maturity schedules for each loan type, such as commercial, real
estate, consumer, etc.

The loan portfolio is regularly reviewed and management determines the amount of loans to be
charged-off. In addition, such factors as Valley Bank’s previous loan loss experience, prevailing and
anticipated economic conditions, industry concentrations and the overall quality of the loan portfolio are
considered. While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans and real estate
owned, future additions to the allowance may be necessary based on changes in economic conditions. In
addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review
the allowances for losses on loans and real estate owned. Such agencies may require Valley Bank to
recognize additions to the allowances based on their judgments about information available at the time of
their examinations. In addition, any loan or portion thereof which is classified as a *“loss” by regulatory
examiners is charged-off.

The allowance for credit loss is maintained at a level that management considers adequate to
provide for estimated losses based on evaluating known and inherent risks in the loan portfolio. The
allowance is reduced by loans charged off and increased by provisions charged to earnings and
recoveries on loans previously charged off. The allowance is based on management’s periodic
evaluation of factors underlying the quality of the loan portfolio, including changes in the size and
composition of the portfolio, actual loan loss experience, current economic conditions, and detailed
analysis of individual loans for which full collectability may not be assured. The evaluation is inherently
subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information
becomes available.

When information confirms that specific loans are uncollectible, these amounts are charged off
against the allowance for credit losses. The existence of some or all of the following criteria will
generally confirm that a loss has been incurred; the loan is significantly delinquent and the borrower has
not evidenced the ability or intent to bring the loan current; Valley Bank has no recourse to the borrower,
or if it doers, the borrower has insufficient assets to pay the debt; the estimated fair market value of the
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collateral is significantly below the current loan balance; and there is little or no near-term prospect for
improvement.

The allowance for loan loss is viewed by management as a single, unallocated allowance
available for all loans. Rules and formulas relative to the adequacy of the allowance, although useful as
guidelines to management, are not rigidly applied. The allowance for credit losses at September 30, 2002
was $1.23 million, or 1.13% of loans outstanding. The allowance for credit losses at year end 2001 was
$900,000, or 1.01% of loans outstanding, net of unearned income, compared to $720,000, or 1.10%, at
year end 2000. The following table presents data related to Valley Bank’s allowance for credit losses for
the nine months ended September 30, 2002 and for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, 1999 and
1998.

Summary of Credit Loss Experience and Related Information
(in thousands)

Nine months ended Year ended
September 30 December 31
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Balance at beginning of period $ 947 $ 722 % 259 § 26 § -
Charge-offs:

Commercial 1,118 19 -- --- -

Real estate construction - 96 - --- -

Real estate mortgage --- - --- - ---

Consumer - --- - --- --

Total charge-offs $ 1,118 $ 115 § 1 % - % -

Recoveries:

Commercial --- --- --- --- -

Real estate construction --- -

Real estate mortgage --- --- - - -

Consumer --- -

Total recoveries $ $ - % - % - 3 ---

Net charge-offs $ 1,118 $ 115 % 1 & - $5 -
Provision charged to operations $ 1397 $ 340 $ 464 § 233 $§ 26
Balance at end of period $ 1,226 $ 947 $ 722 $ 259 $ 26
Loans outstanding:

End of period (Gross) $ 108,325 $93,649 $65,767 $30,365 $ 2,610

Average during the period 101,506 82,780 45,395 15,334 1,305
Ratio of allowance for credit losses at end of period

to:

Loans outstanding at end of period 1.13% 1.01% 1.10% 0.85% 1.00%

Average loans outstanding during the period 1.21% 1.14% 1.59% 1.69% 1.99%
Ratio of net charge offs during the period to

average loans outstanding during the period 1.10% 0.14% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

2 55@6025‘3
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Loan Loss Reserves Allocation
(dollars in thousands)

September 30, 2002 December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
| Allocation | Percentage™ | [ Allocation | Percentage™ | [ Allocation | Percentage

D |

Commercial $ 231 21.35% $ 253 31.30% $ 172 31.56%
Real estate 775 51.79% 551 52.26% 438 45.09%
Construction 190 25.87% 125 15.37% 107 22.79%
Consumer 30 0.99% 18 1.07% 5 0.56%

$ 1,226 100.00% $ 947 100.00% $ 722 100.00%

December 31, 1999 December 31, 1998
IAllocation I Percentage“q mlocation I Percentage'” I

Commercial $ 49 19.11% $ - 0.38%
Real estate 144 55.87% 26 99.62%
Construction 64 24.62% --- 0.00%
Consumer 2 0.40% --- 0.00%

$ 259 100.00% $ 26 100.00%

(UPercentage of loans in each category to total loans.

The allocation of the allowance is presented based in part on evaluations of past history and
composition of the loan portfolio. Since these factors are subject to change, the current allocation of the

' allowance is not necessarily indicative of the breakdown of future losses.

The following table sets forth information regarding non-performing loans of Valley Bank on the
dates indicated.

Risk Elements - Nonaccrual, Past Due and Restructured Loans
(in thousands)

At September 30, 2002 and December 31, 2001

September 30, 2002 December 31, 2001
Loans accounted for on a nonaccrual basis $ 200 $2,265
Accruing loans which are contractually past due 90 days or more 182 116

Restructured loans - -
Total 382 2,381

As of October 31, 2002, Valley Bank has one loan balance on nonaccrual, the $200,000
remaining balance of the Lakes Medical Imaging Loan (see “BUSINESS - Legal Proceedings™ above).
Of that total, Valley Bank has reserved $160,000 in the loan loss reserve for this specific credit. The
remainder of the balance is expected to be reduced though the liquidation of some of the collateral taken
in connection with that transaction.
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At December 31, 2001 and 2000

(in thousands)
90 Days or More
Past Due Nonaccrual Restructured Lost Interest
12/31/01  12/31/00 12/31/01  12/31/00 12/31/01 12/31/00 12/31/01 12/31/00

Commercial $116 $1,500 $637 $ 50 $ 16
Real estate --- - 765 - -—- --- 19 ---
Consumer --- _— — — - — - -

Total $116 —— $2.265 $ 637 $ 69 $ 16

Accrual of interest is discontinued when there is reasonable doubt as to the full, timely collection
of interest or principal. When a loan becomes contractually past due 90 days with respect to interest or
principal, it is reviewed and a determination is made as to whether it should be placed on nonaccrual
status. When a loan is placed on nonaccrual status, all interest previously accrued but not collected is
reversed against current period interest income. Income on such loans is then recognized only to the
extent that cash is received and where the future collection of principal is probable. Interest accruals are
resumed on such loans only when they are brought fully current with respect to principal and interest and
when, in the judgment of management, the loans are estimated to be fully collectible as to principal and
interest. Restructured loans are those loans on which concessions in terms have been granted because of
a borrower's financial difficulty. Interest is generally accrued on such loans in accordance with the new
terms.

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The financial statements and related financial data presented in this offering circular have been
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles which require the measurement of
financial position and operating results in terms of historical dollars without considering the changes in
the relative purchasing power of money over time and due to inflation. The impact of inflation on
operations of Valley Bank is reflected in increased operating costs. Unlike most industrial companies,
virtually all of the assets and liabilities of Valley Bank are monetary in nature. As a result, interest rates
have a more significant impact on Valley Bank’s performance than the effects of general levels of
inflation. Interest rates do not necessarily move in the same direction or in the same magnitude as the
price of goods and services.

Liquidity Management

Liquidity management involves the ability to meet the cash-flow requirements of customers who
are depositors desiring to withdraw funds and borrowers requiring assurance that sufficient funds will be
available to meet their credit needs. Valley Bank’s liquidity management practices focus on the ability to
generate cash within a reasonable time frame and at a reasonable cost. Valley Bank’s primary sources of
liquidity are total cash and due from banks, federal funds sold and its investment portfolio. Valley
Bank’s investment portfolio is relatively short in nature and is structured to provide a steady and
predictable stream of income cash flows. The majority of the portfolio could also quickly be converted
to cash or used as collateral against borrowings at the Federal Reserve Bank. Valley Bank also maintains
credit lines with its correspondent banking relationships.

In order to ensure adequate funds are available at all times, Valley Bank has policies and
procedures in place to monitor liquidity levels on a regular basis. Valley Bank is not subject to any
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specific liquidity requirements imposed by regulatory orders. Valley Bank is subject to general FDIC
safety and soundness guidelines. Management believes that its current liquidity levels are adequate.

Capital Resources and Adequacy

Capital adequacy refers to the level of capital required to sustain asset growth over time and to
absorb losses. Our objective is to maintain a level of capitalization that is sufficient to take advantage of
profitable growth opportunities while meeting regulatory requirements. This is achieved by improving
profitability through effectively allocating resources to more profitable businesses, improving asset
quality, strengthening service quality, and streamlining costs. The primary measures used by
management to monitor the results of these efforts are the ratios of average equity to average assets,
average tangible equity to average tangible assets, and average equity to net loans.

The Federal Reserve Board has adopted capital guidelines governing the activities of bank
holding companies. These guidelines require the maintenance of an amount of capital based on risk-
adjusted assets so that categories of assets with potentially higher credit risk will require more capital
backing than assets with lower risk. In addition, banks and bank holding companies are required to
maintain capital to support, on a risk-adjusted basis, certain off-balance sheet activities such as loan
commitments.

The capital guidelines classify capital into two tiers, referred to as Tier I and Tier II. Under risk-
based capital requirements, total capital consists of Tier I capital which is generally common
shareholders' equity less goodwill and Tier II capital which is primarily a portion of the allowance for
credit losses and certain qualifying debt instruments. In determining risk-based capital requirements,
assets are assigned risk-weights of 0% to 100%, depending primarily on the regulatory assigned levels of
credit risk associated with such assets. Off-balance sheet items are considered in the calculation of risk-
adjusted assets through conversion factors established by the regulators. The framework for calculating
risk-based capital requires banks and bank holding companies to meet the regulatory minimums of 4%
Tier I and 8% total risk-based capital. In 1990 regulators added a leveraged computation to the capital
requirements, comparing Tier I capital to total average assets less goodwill.

On September 30, 2002 Valley Bank exceeded the regulatory minimums and qualified as a well-
capitalized institution under the regulations.

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1992 established five capital
categories for banks and bank holding companies. The bank regulators adopted regulations defining
these five capital categories in September 1992. Under these new regulations each bank is classified into
one of the five categories based on its level of risk-based capital as measured by Tier I capital, total risk-
based capital, and Tier I leverage ratios and its supervisory ratings. See Note 9 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for capital ratios.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATIONS

The purpose of this discussion and analysis is to provide the reader with a concise description of
the financial condition and changes to financial condition and results of operations for Valley Bancorp
and Valley Bank for the nine months ended September 30, 2002 and 2001, and for the years ended
December 31, 2001 and 2000.

Results of Operations

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2002 and 2001

Valley Bancorp had net income of $91,000 or $0.06 per adjusted common share outstanding for
the first nine months of 2002 compared to a net income for the first nine months of 2001 of $509,000 or
$0.39 per adjusted common share outstanding. Our returns on average assets and average common
equity for the first nine months of 2002 were 0.07% and 0.82%, compared to 0.52% and 4.78%,
respectively, for the first nine months of 2001.

Net income for the first nine months of the year was significantly impacted by an approximately
$1.11 million charge off on the “Lakes Medical Imaging” loan (see legal proceedings above), taken in the
second quarter. The after tax cost of approximately $740,000 led to a second quarter loss of $417,000.
Profitability of $208,000 in the first quarter and $300,000 in the third quarter allowed us to maintain
positive net income for the first nine months of the year.

Net interest income for the first nine months of 2002 increased $976,000 to $4.01 million versus
$3.04 million for the first nine months of 2001. The increase is attributable to loan growth. Loans grew
22.55% from the September 30, 2001 total of $87.02 million, to a total of $106.64 million as of
September 30, 2002. Total company assets were $140.41 million at September 30, 2002, compared to
$108.69 million as of September 30, 2001, which represents a growth of 29.18%.

The net interest margin was 4.52% for the first nine months of 2002 compared to 4.42% for the
same period in 2001. The yield on the investment portfolio was 2.07% for the first nine months of 2002
compared to 4.53% for the same period in 2001.

Non-interest income increased $10,000 for the first nine months of 2002 to $155,000 from
$145,000 for the same period in 2001. The increase is attributable to increased volume in service
charges. Non-interest expenses for the first nine months of 2002 increased $313,000 to $2.64 million,
compared to $2.38 million for the first nine months of 2001. The increase in operation expenses is due to
an increase in personnel expense of $67,000, and professional fees of $115,000. However, as a
percentage of average assets, personnel expense and professional fees decreased to 1.27% for the first
nine months of 2002, from 1.44% for the same period in 2001. Total non-interest expenses as a
percentage of average assets have decreased to 2.12% as of September 30, 2002, compared to 2.45% as
of September 30, 2001.

For the Years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000

Valley Bancorp’s net income for the year 2001 was $657,000, which represents an increase of
158.66% compared to $254,000 for the year 2000. Our return on average assets was 0.66% for 2001 and
0.40% for 2000. Return on average common equity was 6.12% for 2001 and 3.09% for 2000.

31
m26504-387045.9.doc

28 of 33



Net interest income for 2001 increased $1.56 million to $4.06 million compared to $2.50 million
for 2000. Higher loan volume of $92.17 million at December 31, 2001 versus $64.60 million accounted
for most of the net interest income increase.

Net interest margin for 2001 was 4.31% versus 4.14% for 2000. Although interest rates such as
Prime Rate and Federal Funds Rate had dropped eleven (11) times for a total of 4.75% in the year 2001,
Valley Bancorp was successful in maintaining its net interest margin.

Non-interest income increased $129,000 to $218,000 for 2001 from $89,000 for 2000. This
increase was due primarily to higher service charges on deposit accounts.

Non-interest expenses for the year 2001 of $3.19 million increased $1.20 million from the year
2000 of $1.99 million. Of the $1.20 million increase, $683,000 or 57% came from personnel expense.
As a percentage of average assets, non-interest expenses represented 3.19% for 2001 and 3.09% for
2000. The following table sets forth the composition of Valley Bancorp’s non-interest expenses for the
years ended December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2000.

Non Interest Expense
(dollars in thousands)

% %
Average Average
2001 Assets 2000 Assets

Salaries & Benefits $ 1,809 1.81% $ 1,126 1.75%
Occupancy 198 0.20% 110 0.17%
FF&E Expense 188 0.19% 147 0.23%
Administrative Expenses 183 0.18% 139 0.22%
Professional Fees 123 0.12% 74 0.12%
Office Supplies & Printing 107 0.11% 62 0.10%
Data Processing 155 0.16% 106 0.16%
Business Development 121 0.12% 70 0.11%
Outside Services 145 0.15% 96 0.15%
Other Operating Expenses 156 0.16% 55 0.09%
Total Operating Expenses $ 3.185 3.19% $ 1.985 3.09%

Financial Position

Valley Bancorp’s total assets grew 33.12% or $34.93 million during the first nine months of
2002, to a total on September 30, 2002 of $140.41 million. The growth in assets is primarily attributable
to deposit growth from business customers and our ability to lend out those funds.

Portfolio investments increased by $19.82 million during the first nine months of 2002 to $26.69
million from $6.87 million at December 31, 2001.

Net loans increased by $14.47 million or 15.70% from $92.17 million at December 31, 2001 to
$106.64 million at September 30, 2002. This growth was primarily in commercial, commercial real
estate, and commercial construction loans, which grew $13.97 million.
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Deposits grew during the first nine months of 2002 by $34.47 million or 36.69% to $128.42
million at September 30, 2002. The majority of this growth was in time deposits.

Capital Requirements

Valley Bancorp’s equity capital was $11.14 million at September 30, 2002 compared to $11.04
million at December 31, 2001. This increase of $0.10 million primarily consists of net income. No
dividends were paid during 2001 and Valley Bancorp does not anticipate that any dividends will be paid
in the foreseeable future.

At December 31, 2001, Valley Bancorp’s Tier I Capital to Average Assets was 10.24%, Tier I
capital to Risk Weighted Assets was 11.33% and Total Capital was 12.31%. Valley Bancorp would be
considered “well capitalized” within applicable Federal regulatory guidelines at December 31, 2001. See
Note 9 to Valley Bancorp’s Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this offering circular for a
table that shows the requirements for being “well capitalized” under such guidelines.

Liquidity Resources

Liquidity management focuses on the need to meet both short-term funding requirements and
long-term growth objectives. Primary sources of funds for liquidity include deposits, loan repayments
and security repayments or sales if available for sale securities. Valley Bank also has borrowing lines at
PCBB correspondent banks in the aggregate amount of $3 million.

Valley Bancorp’s and Valley Bank’s capital amounts are well above minimum capital adequacy
(see Note 9 to Valley Bancorp’s Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this offering circular).
Our short-term plans call for growth to continue, with such growth expected to be funded through
increased deposits and borrowings, continued profits and future stock sales. However, due to uncertainty
that the market, and the U.S. economy generally, have recently experienced, it is possible that our future
growth will not increase at historic rates.

$49.26 million of our certificates of deposit mature within the next year. In the normal course of
business and consistent with our past experience we expect most of these deposits to be renewed. With a
modest loan to deposit ratio of 83% plus unused borrowing lines of $3 million, plus short-term
investments of $26.7 million, we have significant liquidity to meet any need that could arise from these
certificates not being renewed as anticipated.

Asset Quality

The Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses (“ALLL”), a reserve set-aside on an ongoing basis to
allow for potential loan losses, increased $1.40 million for the first nine months of 2002. This was a
$1.16 million increase over the same period allocation in 2001 of $.24 million. The majority of the
increased reserve was the allocation for the Lakes Medical Imaging Loan referred to earlier in the “Legal
Proceedings” section. In the normal course of events, the reserve total is increased due to ongoing,
monthly analysis of the loan portfolio as well as general economic conditions, historic loan loss
experience and loan mix. Due to the circumstances involved in the Lakes Medical Imaging Loan, the
Bank elected to take the most conservative approach, and charge the majority of the loan to the loss
reserve. With the size of the loss, the Bank had to significantly increase its allocation to replenish the
reserve. Other losses experienced by the Bank in its history have been insignificant, and have been
covered by the amounts allocated through the monthly analysis.
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Accruing loans that are contractually past due 90 days or more were $.18 million at
September 30, 2002, compared to $.12 million at December 31, 2001. Of that total of $.18 million,
$.15 million is secured by real estate sufficient to prevent a loan loss.

Non-performing loans as a percentage of net loans before the ALLL was 2.56% as of
December 31, 2001, and 0.98% as of December 31, 2000. The ALLLL to non-performing loans, which is
a measure of Valley Bank’s ability to cover problem assets with existing reserves, was 320.94% as of
September 30, 2002.
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MANAGEMENT

Directors and Executive Officers

The directors and executive officers of Valley Bancorp and Valley Bank are as follows:

Name Age  Director Since Position(s) Held

Directors

George A. Brizendine 65 1998 Director

Don Hamilton 65 1998 Director

Mary E. Hausch 33 1998 Director

Barry L. Hulin 56 1998 President and CEO, Director

Thomas J. Krob 52 1998 Vice Chairman of the Board

James A. McKellar, Sr. 83 1998 Director

Robert E. O’Connell 82 1998 Chairman of the Board

Dick Rottman 65 1999 Director

William E. Snyder 53 1998 Director

Dan H. Stewart 49 1998 Director

Gary Vause 64 1998 Director

Executive Officers

Steve Gilbert 47 N/A Executive Vice President & Chief
Credit Officer

Dick Holtzclaw 44 N/A Executive Vice President & Chief

Financial Officer

Our Bylaws provide that the number of directors must fall within a range between 5 and 15, the
exact number to be fixed by resolution of the board of directors. The board of directors has set the size
of the board at 11 persons.

Directors are elected for a term of three years and until their successors have been elected and
qualified. Our Bylaws provide that the terms of the directors be staggered such that approximately one-
third of the total number of directors is elected each year.

There are no family relationships among any of our directors and executive officers.

Directors

George A. Brizendine, Director. Mr. Brizendine, a 1963 graduate of Arizona State University
is a principal in the firm of Brizendine Engineering. A 35-year resident of Nevada, Mr. Brizendine has
served 12 years on the Nevada State Board of Registered Professional Engineers/Land Surveyors,
including four years as Chairman.
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Don Hamilton, Director. Mr. Hamilton, a graduate of the University of Southern California,
has been the owner and manager of a variety of businesses in the Las Vegas area for the past 30 years.
He currently owns a group of childcare and preschool centers known as “Happy Days”. Mr. Hamilton
has also been involved in an advertising agency, management of political campaigns, and real estate
investments, including such properties as the Valley View Shopping Center in Henderson.

Mary Hausch, Director. Ms. Hausch, a 1970 cum laude graduate of Ohio University, is
currently an Assistant Professor in the Greenspun School of Communications at the University of
Nevada, Las Vegas. Prior to her current position Ms. Hausch worked for more than ten years as
Managing Editor of the Las Vegas Review Journal. She is a member of various boards and commissions
and in 1986 received the first Media Woman of the Year Award from the Las Vegas Chamber of
Commerce. In 1990 she was honored with the Governor’s Business Excellence Award for Women.

Barry L. Hulin, President & CEQ, Director. Mr. Hulin has extensive experience in the
banking and finance industries with a career that spans 30 years. A 1967 graduate of Rockford College
in Rockford, Illinois, Mr. Hulin in 1983 received a diploma from the American Bankers Association
Schools for Corporate Bankers at Northwestern University. He has served in various capacities with
banks in California, Washington and Alaska, where he was President of Alaska Mutual Bank and First
Federal Bank. As CEO of Alaska Housing Finance Corporation he was responsible for managing a
$5 billion housing finance agency with 200 employees. Mr. Hulin has been involved with Valley Bank
since June 1997 and helped successfully organize Valley Bank and plan for its October 1998 opening.

Thomas J. Krob, Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors. Mr. Krob is Principal Electrical
Engineer of TJ Krob Consulting Engineers, Inc., which has been providing electrical engineering services
in Las Vegas since 1981. Mr. Krob received his BS degree in 1972 from Iowa State University and is
currently registered as a Professional Engineer in 10 states. Mr. Krob is active in the Boy Scouts, Las
Vegas Rotary and the Salvation Army.

James A. McKellar, Director. Mr. McKellar, a graduate of Stanford Law School and Harvard
Business School, is a long-time developer of affordable single family homes as well as condominiums
and apartments in San Diego, San Francisco and Las Vegas. Mr. McKellar, a long time resident of Green
Valley, has been active in the banking business as the founder of Great West Savings and Loan in Las
Vegas and Scripps Bank in La Jolla, California. For the past 16 years Mr. McKellar has served as a
Director of Scripps Bank and has served as a member of several key committees of the board of directors.

Robert E. O’Connell, Chairman of the Board of Directors. Mr. O’Connell, a 30-year resident
of Las Vegas retired after 37 years of service with the J.C. Penney Company. He is currently a licensed
real estate broker and is the holder of a Nevada restricted gaming license. Mr. O’Connell has long been
active in the local community as a member of the board of directors of the Las Vegas Chamber of
Commerce, President of the Nevada Association of Independent Businesses, President of the Las Vegas
Rotary Club and President of the Boulder Dam Area Council of Boy Scouts of America. In February
2000, a corporation owned by Mr. O’Connell (LCVI) filed a petition for bankruptcy. The petition was
filed in order to forestall foreclosure on a hotel facility owned by LCVI. Prior to the filing of the
petition, the hotel facility, which was on leased land, was under contract for sale. The lessor of the real
property withheld approval of the proposed sale, and the hotel was subsequently foreclosed upon. LCVI
has initiated a lawsuit in connection with the matter. LCVI’s losses were funded entirely by Mr.

O’ Connell personally, and no third party sustained any economic loss.

William E. Snyder, Director. Mr. Snyder is a member of the American Institute of Architects
and principal of Tate & Snyder Architects in Henderson. A 21-year resident of Nevada, Mr. Snyder
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served in Vietnam with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers and was awarded the Bronze Star. He is a
trustee of the Community College of Southern Nevada Foundation, trustee of the UNLV foundation, a
member of the Blue Ribbon Commission on Educational Excellence and Youth Opportunity for the City
of Henderson and is a recipient of the State of Nevada Silver Medal.

Dan H. Stewart, Director. Mr. Stewart is the President and CEO of The LandWell Company, a
land development company in Henderson. A 1978 graduate of Brigham Young University, Mr. Stewart
received his masters degree in civil engineering in 1979 from Stanford University. A native Nevadan,
Mr. Stewart is past President of the Associated General Contractors, and Chairman of the UNLV
Engineering Advisory Council. He is also involved with the UNLV Academic Corporate Council, the
UNLYV Presidents Associates, the Las Vegas Founders Club, the Nevada Development Authority and the
board of directors of the St. Rose Dominican Hospital Health Foundation.

Gary Vause, Director. Mr. Vause, a native of Las Vegas, is a graduate of the University of
Utah. He is the owner of Lit’l Scholar Child Care Pre Schools with locations through the Greater Las
Vegas area. Mr. Vause has long been active in local civic affairs including the Chamber of Commerce,
Las Vegas Rotary Club, and various local, state and national childcare organizations.

Dick Rottman, Director. Mr. Rottman, a graduate of the University of Pennsylvania, holds a
Ph.D. in Business and Economics. A past Insurance Commissioner for the State of Nevada from 1971 to
1978, Mr. Rottman also served on the board of Nevada First Bank and Nevada First Thrift from 1985 to
1989. Mr. Rottman is Chairman and CEO of A & H Insurance, Inc. and Western Insurance Company and
serves as CEOQ of Bell United Insurance Company and Western Thrift and Loan.

Executive Officers

Steve Gilbert, Executive Vice President & Chief Credit Officer. A graduate of Arizona State
University, Mr. Gilbert has more than 19 years of bank lending experience. After spending 13 years with
the Arizona Bank he came to Las Vegas in 1993 with Bank of America. He is well versed in the areas of
commercial, consumer and real estate lending, including both commercial and residential construction.

Dick Holtzclaw, Executive Vice President & Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Holtzclaw has 18
years of extensive experience in the financial services industry. Prior to joining Valley Bank,
Mr. Holtzclaw served for six years as Chief Financial Officer of IBEW Plus Credit Union in Las Vegas.
Mr. Holtzclaw received his MBA from the University of Georgia, is a Certified Public Accountant, a
Certified Financial Planner and a Certified Credit Union Executive.

Remuneration of Directors and Officers

Directors. Non-employee directors of Valley Bank receive an annual fee of $2,000, except the
Chairman, who receives an annual fee of $4,000. In addition, directors of Valley Bank receive a fee of
$250 per board of directors’ meeting attended and $150 per committee meeting attended. Directors
receive no fees in connection with service as directors of Valley Bancorp. Directors are eligible to
receive stock option grants under Valley Bancorp’s Nonqualified Stock Option Plan, and each of the non-
employee directors has been granted an option to purchase 2,750 shares pursuant to such Plan. See
“Stock Option Plans.”

Executive Officers. The following table sets forth compensation paid by Valley Bancorp to its
three most highly paid executive officers during 2001.
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Name of Individual Capacities in Which
or Identity of Group Remuneration Was Received Aggregate Remuneration
Barry Hulin President and Chief Executive
Officer of Valley Bancorp and
Valley Bank $169,358
Steve Gilbert Executive Vice President, Chief
Credit Officer of Valley Bancorp $122,117
and Valley Bank
Dick Holtzclaw Executive Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer of Valley Bancorp $110,816
and Valley Bank
All Executive Officers
as a group (3 persons) $402,291

Employment Agreement. Valley Bank entered into a three-year employment agreement, dated as
of March 22, 2000, with Barry L. Hulin, its President and Chief Executive Officer. In October 2002, the
board of directors of Valley Bancorp approved the extension of the agreement for an additional three
years, so that it will continue until six years following the effective date (that is, until March 22, 2006).
The agreement was also amended to include Valley Bancorp as a party to the agreement. Under the
employment agreement, if Mr. Hulin is terminated by Valley Bancorp and/or Valley Bank without cause
(as defined in the agreement) or resigns from Valley Bancorp and/or Valley Bank with good reason (as
defined in the agreement), he will receive a monthly termination payment for the longer of the remainder
of the term under the agreement or 18 months. The termination payment will be an amount equal to the
sum of (a) Mr. Hulin’s monthly base salary in effect at the time his employment terminates and (b) one-
twelfth (1/12) of his annual bonus for the year immediately preceding the year in which his employment
terminates. For so long as Mr. Hulin is employed with Valley Bancorp and/or Valley Bank under the
employment agreement or receiving any termination payments, he cannot become involved in any
business in Clark County, Nevada, that competes with Valley Bancorp and/or Valley Bank.

Mr. Hulin will also be entitled under certain circumstances to receive a lump-sum change in
control severance payment in an amount equal to three times his highest W-2 income received from
Valley Bancorp and/or Valley Bank over the preceding five years. If a change in control (as defined in
the agreement) closes while Mr. Hulin is employed during the term, or if Valley Bancorp and/or Valley
Bank enters into an agreement for a change in control, or a change in control is announced or required to
be announced while Mr. Hulin is employed within six months following expiration of the term, he will
receive the change in control severance payment upon closing of the change in control. Alternatively, if
Mr. Hulin’s employment during the term is terminated by Valley Bancorp and/or Valley Bank without
cause or if Mr. Hulin resigns with good reason, and within six months thereafter Valley Bancorp and/or
Valley Bank enters into an agreement for a change in control, or a change in control is announced or
required to be announced, he will receive the change in control severance payment upon the closing of
such change in control, less the amount of any termination payments already received.

Change in Control Severance Agreements. Valley Bank has also entered into Change in Control
Severance Agreements (the “Severance Agreements”), dated as of March 22, 2000, with Steve Gilbert,
Valley Bank’s Executive Vice President and Chief Credit Officer, Dick Holtzclaw, Valley Bank’s
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, and Sue Garland, Valley Bank’s Senior Vice
President, Operations. In October 2002, the board of directors of Valley Bancorp approved the
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amendment of the Severance Agreements so that they will apply to a change in control of either Valley
Bancorp or Valley Bank.

The Severance Agreements are not employment agreements, and the officers are at-will
employees of Valley Bank.

Under each officer’s Severance Agreement, if a change in control closes while the officer is
employed by Valley Bank, the officer will receive a lump-sum change in control severance payment in an
amount equal to one and one-half (1.5) times his or her highest W-2 income received from Valley Bank
over the preceding three years. If the officer is terminated without cause (as defined in the agreement) or
if the officer resigns for good reason (as defined in the agreement), and within six months thereafter
Valley Bancorp and/or Valley Bank enters into an agreement for a change in control, or a change in
control is announced or required to be announced, the officer will receive the change in control severance
payment upon the closing of such change in control.

Stock Option Plans

Employee Stock Option Plan. Valley Bank’s board of directors adopted an Employee Stock
Option Plan in December 1999, and the Plan was approved by Valley Bank’s shareholders in January
2000. The Plan was adopted by Valley Bancorp in connection with its formation as a holding company.
The Plan provides for the granting of stock options that are either Incentive Stock Options (“ISOs™) or
Nonqualified Stock Options (“NQ Options”) for purposes of the Internal Revenue Code. The Plan
provides that the exercise price for options granted (whether ISOs or NQ Options) must be no less than
the fair market value of Valley Bancorp’s shares (or the net book value, if that figure is higher) on the
date of the grant.

The Plan is administered by our board of directors. The Plan may be amended by the board of
directors without shareholder approval, except that without the approval of at least a majority of Valley
Bancorps’s outstanding common stock, no amendment may increase the number of shares that may be
issued pursuant to the Plan.

Under the Plan, options for a total of 210,000 shares may be granted to key employees of Valley
Bancorp and Valley Bank. Options to purchase 165,000 shares at were outstanding at September 30,
2002. Of such options, 122,994 vested 40% on the first anniversary of the date of grant and 20% on each
of the following three anniversaries of the date of grant. The remaining 42,006 options vested 20% on the
date of shareholder approval of the Plan, and 20% on each of the first four anniversaries of the date of
grant. All options expire on the 10" anniversary of the date of grant.

Nongualified Stock Option Plan. Valley Bank’s board of directors adopted a Nonqualified Stock
Option Plan (the “NQ Plan”) in December 1999, and the NQ Plan was approved by Valley Bank’s
shareholders in January 2000. Like the Employee Stock Option Plan, the NQ Plan was adopted by
Valley Bancorp when it became the holding company for Valley Bank. The NQ Plan provides for the
granting of NQ Options to directors and incorporators of Valley Bancorp and Valley Bank. The exercise
price for options granted under the NQ Plan must be no less than the fair market value of our shares (or
the net book value, if that figure is higher) on the date of grant. '

The NQ Plan is administered by our board of directors. The NQ Plan may be amended by the
board of directors without shareholder approval, except that without the approval of at least a majority of
Valley Bancorp’s outstanding common stock, no amendment may increase the number of shares that

may be issued pursuant to the NQ Plan.
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Under the NQ Plan, options for a total of 90,000 shares may be granted to directors and
incorporators. Options to purchase 44,000 shares at $8.00 per share were outstanding at September 30,
2002. Each of the granted options fully vested on the date of shareholder approval of the NQ Plan, and
expire on the third anniversary of the date of grant.

Security Ownership of Management and Certain Shareholders

The following table sets forth, as of September 30, 2002, the number and percentage of shares of
Valley Bancorp’s outstanding common stock beneficially owned by (i) each of the three highest paid
executive officers of Valley Bancorp; (ii) each of our directors; (iii) each person known to us to own 5%
or more of Valley Bancorp’s outstanding stock; and (iv) all executive officers and directors as a group.
Neither Mr. James Koehler nor Mr. Ken Hamilton is a director or officer of Valley Bancorp. Each
named beneficial owner has sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares listed unless
otherwise indicated. Shares that may be purchased within 60 days by exercise of stock options are
deemed to be beneficially owned, and are included in the table as indicated.

Beneficial Owner Amount Percent of Class
James A. McKellar 144,574% 9.49%
James Koehler 137,500 9.02%
Ken Hamilton 85,5259 5.61%
William E. Snyder 48,5377 3.19%
Dick Rottman 41,2499 2.71%
Barry L. Hulin 35,859% 2.35%
Gary Vause 30,319¢ 2.00%
Steve Gilbert 23,9047 1.57%
Dan H. Stewart 22,000® 1.44%
Thomas J. Krob 21,1759 1.39%
George A. Brizendine 20,900"% 1.37%
Don Hamilton 20,625 1.35%
Dick Holtzclaw 18,3010 1.20%
Robert E. O’Connell 16,500"? 1.08%
Mary E. Hausch 14,5741 0.96%

All Directors and Executive
Officers as a Group 458,517 30.10%

Total held by shareholders of
5% or more who are not

Directors or Executive Officers 223.025 14.63%
TOTAL 681.542 44.73%

) Includes 2,750 shares exercisable under NQ Stock Option Plan. Also includes indirect
ownership of 2,062 shares over which he has direct voting control. Includes 139,762 shares held
in James A. McKellar Family Trust.

(2) Includes 85,525 shares held in Hamilton Family Trust.
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3) Includes 2,750 shares exercisable under NQ Stock Option Plan. Also includes 45,787 shares
held in Snyder Family Trust.

€)) Includes 2,750 shares exercisable under NQ Stock Option Plan. Also includes 38,362 shares
over which Mr. Rottman has sole voting power.

5) Includes 32,422 shares exercisable under Employee Stock Option Plan. Also includes 3,437
shares held as custodian by Dain Rauscher for LR.A.

(6) Includes 2,750 shares exercisable under NQ Stock Option Plan. Also includes 27,569 shares
held in Vause Family Trust.

€ Includes 16,926 shares exercisable under Employee Stock Option Plan. Also includes 6,978
shares held as custodian by Dain Rauscher for LR.A.

(8) Includes 2,750 shares exercisable under NQ Stock Option Plan. Also includes 13,750 shares
held in the name of Henry Stewart Family Trust of which Mr. Stewart is Trustee. Also includes
5.500 shares over which Mr. Stewart has voting power.

&) Includes 2,750 shares exercisable under NQ Stock Option Plan. Also includes 4,675 shares held
as custodian by Dan Rauscher for LR.A. Also includes 13,750 shares held in Krob Family
Investment Trust.

(10)  Includes 2,750 shares exercisable under NQ Stock Option Plan.
(11)  Includes 16,926 shares exercisable under Employee Stock Option Plan.

(12)  Includes 2,750 shares exercisable under NQ Stock Option Plan. Includes 13,750 shares held in
O’Connell Family Trust.

(13)  Includes 2,750 shares exercisable under NQ Stock Option Plan. Also includes 1,374 shares
owned by minor children over which Ms. Hausch has voting power.

Stock Options

The following information is provided with respect to options granted to the persons listed in the
Executive Officer Compensation Table under “Remuneration of Directors and Officers.” The shares
included in the Security Ownership Table above as “‘exercisable within 60 days” with respect to Mr.
Hulin are stock options exercisable at $8.00 per share (30,731 shares) and at $9.54 per share (1,691
shares) The shares included in the Security Ownership Table with respect to Messrs. Holtzclaw and
Gilbert are stock options exercisable at $8.00 per share (15,386 shares as to each of them) and at $9.54
per share (1,540 as to each of them).

In addition to the shares subject to options included in the table above, Mr. Hulin has been
granted options to purchase 20,488 shares at $8.00 per share, of which 10,244 vest on January 26, 2003,
and 10,244 vest on January 26, 2004. Further, Mr. Hulin has been granted options to purchase 6,160
shares at $9.54 per share, which vest in equal amounts of 1,691 shares on March 1* of the years 2003,
2004, 2005 and 2006.

In addition to the shares subject to options included in the table above, Mr. Holtzclaw has been
granted options to purchase 10,258 shares at $8.00 per share, of which 5,179 vest on January 26, 2003
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and 5,179 vest on January 26, 2004. Further, Mr. Holtzclaw has been granted options to purchase 6,160
shares at $9.54 per share, which vest in equal amounts of 1,540 shares on March 1% of the years 2003,
2004, 2005 and 2006.

In addition to the shares subject to options included in the table above, Mr. Gilbert has been
granted options to purchase 10,258 shares at $8.00 per share, of which 5,179 shares vest on January 26,
2003 and 5,179 vest on January 26, 2004. Further, Mr. Gilbert has been granted options to purchase
6,160 shares at $9.54 per share, which vest in equal amounts of 1,540 shares on March 1% of the years
2003, 2004, 2005 and 2006.

CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS AND RELATIONSHIPS

Some of the directors and officers of Valley Bank and the business organizations with which
they are associated, have been customers of, and have had banking transactions with, Valley Bank in the
ordinary course of its business, and Valley Bank expects to have such banking transactions in the future.
All loans and commitments to loan included in such transactions were made in substantially the same
terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions
with other persons of similar creditworthiness and, in the opinion of Valley Bank’s management, these
transactions do not involve more than a normal risk of collectibility or present other unfavorable features.

At December 31, 2001, and December 31, 2000, officers and directors of Valley Bank, or
companies in which they have 10% or more of beneficial interest, were indebted to Valley Bank in the
aggregate amount of $2,538,139 and $2,629,798, respectively, in connection with the banking
transactions referred to above. At September 30, 2002, loans to officers and directors totaled $2,561,510.
All such loans are currently in good standing and are being paid in accordance with their terms.
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SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

The following discussion is only intended to provide summaries of significant statutes and
regulations that affect the banking industry and is therefore not complete. Changes in applicable laws or
regulations, and in the policies of regulators, may have a material effect on our business and prospects.
We cannot accurately predict the nature or extent of the effects on our business and earnings that fiscal or
monetary policies, or new federal or state laws, may have in the future.

General

We are extensively regulated under federal and state law. These laws and regulations are
primarily intended to protect depositors, not shareholders. The discussion below describes and
summarizes certain statutes and regulations. These descriptions and summaries are qualified in their
entirety by reference to the particular statute or regulation. Changes in applicable laws or regulations may
have a material effect on our business and prospects. Our operations may also be affected by changes in
the policies of banking and other government regulators. We cannot accurately predict the nature or
extent of the possible future effects on our business and earnings of changes in fiscal or monetary
policies, or new federal or state laws and regulations.

Significant Changes In Banking Laws And Regulations

USA Patriot Act of 2001. On October 26, 2001, President Bush signed the Uniting and
Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism
(“Patriot Act”) of 2001. Among other things, the Patriot Act (1) prohibits banks from providing
correspondent accounts directly to foreign shell banks; (2) imposes due diligence requirements on banks
opening or holding accounts for foreign financial institutions or wealthy foreign individuals (3) requires
financial institutions to establish an anti-money-laundering compliance program, and (4) eliminates civil
liability for persons who file suspicious activity reports. The Patriot Act also increases governmental
powers to investigate terrorism, including expanded government access to account records. The
Department of the Treasury is empowered to administer and make rules to implement the Patriot Act.
While we believe the Patriot Act may, to some degree, affect our recordkeeping and reporting expenses,
we do not believe that it will have a material adverse effect on our business and operations.

Federal Bank Holding Company Regulation

General. Valley Bancorp is a bank holding company as defined in the Bank Holding Company
Act of 1956, as amended, and is therefore subject to regulation, supervision and examination by the
Federal Reserve. In general, the Bank Holding Company Act limits the business of bank holding
companies to owning or controlling banks and engaging in other activities closely related to banking.
Valley Bancorp must file reports with the Federal Reserve and must provide it with such additional
information as it may require. Under the Financial Services Modernization Act of 1999, a bank holding
company may apply to the Federal Reserve to become a financial holding company, and thereby engage
(directly or through a subsidiary) in certain activities deemed financial in nature, such as securities
brokerage and insurance underwriting.

Holding Company Bank Ownership. The Bank Holding Company Act requires every bank
holding company to obtain the prior approval of the Federal Reserve before (1) acquiring, directly or
indirectly, ownership or control of any voting shares of another bank or bank holding company if, after
such acquisition, it would own or control more than 5% of such shares, (2) acquiring all or substantially
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all of the assets of another bank or bank holding company, or (3) merging or consolidating with another
bank holding company.

Holding Company Control of Nonbanks. With some exceptions, the Bank Holding Company Act
also prohibits a bank holding company from acquiring or retaining direct or indirect ownership or control
of more than 5% of the voting shares of any company which is not a bank or bank holding company, or
from engaging directly or indirectly in activities other than those of banking, managing or controlling
banks, or providing services for its subsidiaries. The principal exceptions to these prohibitions involve
certain non-bank activities which, by statute or by Federal Reserve regulation or order, have been
identified as activities closely related to the business of banking or of managing or controlling banks.

Transactions with Affiliates. Subsidiary banks of a bank holding company are subject to
restrictions imposed by the Federal Reserve Act on extensions of credit to the holding company or its
subsidiaries, on investments in their securities and on the use of their securities as collateral for loans to
any borrower. These regulations and restrictions may limit Valley Bancorp’s ability to obtain funds from
Valley Bank for its cash needs, including funds for payment of dividends, interest and operational
expenses.

Tying Arrangements. We are prohibited from engaging in certain tie-in arrangements in
connection with any extension of credit, sale or lease of property or furnishing of services. For example,
with certain exceptions, neither Valley Bancorp nor Valley Bank may condition an extension of credit to
a customer on either (1) a requirement that the customer obtain additional services provided by us or (2)
an agreement by the customer to refrain from obtaining other services from a competitor.

Support of Subsidiary Banks. Under Federal Reserve policy, Valley Bancorp is expected to act as
a source of financial and managerial strength to Valley Bank. This means that Valley Bancorp is
required to commit, as necessary, resources to support Valley Bank. Any capital loans a bank holding
company makes to its subsidiary banks are subordinate to deposits and to certain other indebtedness of
those subsidiary banks.

State Law Restrictions. As a Nevada corporation, Valley Bancorp is subject to certain limitations
and restrictions under applicable Nevada corporate law. For example, state law restrictions in Nevada
include limitations and restrictions relating to indemnification of directors, maintenance of books,
records, and minutes, and observance of certain corporate formalities.

Federal and State Regulation of Valley Bank

General. Valley Bank is a Nevada chartered commercial bank with deposits insured by the FDIC.
As aresult, Valley Bank is subject to supervision and regulation by the Nevada Department of Business
and Industry, Financial Institutions Division (the “Nevada FID”) and the FDIC. These agencies have the
authority to prohibit banks from engaging in what they believe constitute unsafe or unsound banking
practices.

Lending Limits. State banking law generally limits the amount of funds that a bank may lend to a
single borrower to 25% of stockholders’ equity actually paid in. As of December 31, 2001, Valley
Bank's lending limit was approximately $3 million.

Control of Financial Institutions. No person may acquire "control" of a bank unless the

appropriate federal agency has been given 60 days prior written notice and within that time the agency
has not disapproved the acquisition. Substantial monetary penalties may be imposed for violation of the
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change in control or other provisions of banking laws. Nevada banking laws further require that changes
in ownership of 10% or more of a bank’s outstanding voting stock must be reported to the Nevada FID
within three business days. If 20% or more of the bank’s voting power is acquired by a natural person, or
10% or more is acquired by an entity, then the acquisition may be deemed a change in control requiring
prior approval of the Nevada FID.

Community Reinvestment. The Community Reinvestment Act requires that, in connection with
examinations of financial institutions within their jurisdiction, the Federal Reserve or the FDIC evaluate
the record of the financial institution in meeting the credit needs of its local communities, including low
and moderate income neighborhoods, consistent with the safe and sound operation of the institution.
These factors are also considered in evaluating mergers, acquisitions and applications to open a branch or
facility.

Insider Credit Transactions. Banks are also subject to certain Federal Reserve restrictions on
extensions of credit to executive officers, directors, principal shareholders or any related interests of such
persons (i.e., insiders). Extensions of credit (1) must be made on substantially the same terms and
pursuant to the same credit underwriting procedures as those for comparable transactions with persons
who are neither insiders nor employees, and (2) must not involve more than the normal risk of repayment
or present other unfavorable features. Certain lending limits and restrictions on overdrafts to insiders. A
violation of these restrictions may result in regulatory sanctions on the bank or its insiders.

Regulation of Management. Federal law (1) sets forth circumstances under which officers or
directors of a bank may be removed by the institution's federal supervisory agency; (2) limits lending by
a bank to its executive officers, directors, principal shareholders, and their related interests; and (3)
prohibits management personnel of a bank from serving as a director or in other management positions of
another financial institution whose assets exceed a specified amount or which has an office within a
specified geographic area.

Safety and Soundness Standards. Federal law imposes upon banks certain non-capital safety and
soundness standards. These standards cover internal controls, information systems and internal audit
systems, loan documentation, credit underwriting, interest rate exposure, asset growth, compensation,
fees and benefits, such other operational and managerial standards as the agency determines to be
appropriate, and standards for asset quality, earnings and stock valuation. An institution that fails to meet
these standards must develop a plan acceptable to its regulators, specifying the steps that the institution
will take to meet the standards. Failure to submit or implement such a plan may subject the institution to
regulatory sanctions.

Interstate Banking And Branching

The Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and Branching Efficiency Act of 1994 ("Interstate Act")
generally authorizes interstate branching. Currently, bank holding companies may purchase banks in any
state, and banks may merge with banks in other states, as long as the home state of neither merging bank
has opted out under the legislation. The Interstate Act requires regulators to consult with community
organizations before permitting an interstate institution to close a branch in a low-income area.

Nevada has enacted “opting in” legislation authorizing interstate mergers pursuant to the
Interstate Act. The Nevada statute permits out-of-state banks and bank holding companies meeting
certain requirements to maintain and operate the Nevada branches of a Nevada bank with which the out-
of-state company engaged in an interstate combination. An out-of-state depository without a branch in
Nevada, or an out-of-state holding company without a depository institution in Nevada, must first acquire
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the Nevada institution itself or its charter, before it can establish a de novo branch or acquire a Nevada
branch through merger.

Deposit Insurance

Valley Bank’s deposits are currently insured to a maximum of $100,000 per depositor through
the Bank Insurance Fund administered by the FDIC. Valley Bank is required to pay deposit insurance
premiums, which are assessed semiannually and paid quarterly. The premium amount is based upon a
risk classification system established by the FDIC. Banks with higher levels of capital and a low degree
of supervisory concern are assessed lower premiums than banks with lower levels of capital or a higher
degree of supervisory concern.

The FDIC is also empowered to make special assessments on insured depository institutions in
amounts determined by the FDIC to be necessary to give it adequate assessment income to repay amounts
borrowed from the U.S. Treasury and other sources or for any other purpose the FDIC deems necessary.

Dividends

The principal source of Valley Bancorp’s cash reserves is dividends received from Valley Bank.
Bank regulatory authorities may prohibit banks and bank holding companies from paying dividends that
would constitute an unsafe or unsound banking practice. In addition, a bank may not pay cash dividends
if doing so would reduce its capital below minimum applicable regulatory capital requirements.

Capital Adequacy

Federal bank regulatory agencies use capital adequacy guidelines in the examination and
regulation of bank holding companies and banks. If capital falls below minimum guideline levels, the
holding company or bank may be denied approval to acquire or establish additional banks or nonbank
businesses or to open new facilities.

The FDIC and Federal Reserve’s risk-based capital guidelines for banks and bank holding
companies are designed to make such capital requirements more sensitive to differences in risk profiles
among banks and bank holding companies. Assets and off-balance sheet items are assigned to broad risk
categories, each with appropriate weights. The resulting capital ratios represent capital as a percentage of
total risk-weighted assets and off-balance sheet items. The current guidelines, which are minimums,
require all bank holding companies and federally-regulated banks to maintain a minimum risk-based total
capital ratio equal to 8%, of which at least 4% must be Tier I capital. Tier I capital for bank holding
companies includes common shareholders’ equity, certain qualifying perpetual preferred stock and
minority interests in equity accounts of consolidated subsidiaries, less intangibles.

The Federal Reserve also employs a leverage ratio, which is Tier I capital as a percentage of total
assets less intangibles, to be used as a supplement to risk-based guidelines. The principal objective of the
leverage ratio is to constrain the maximum degree to which a bank holding company may leverage its
equity capital base. The Federal Reserve requires a minimum leverage ratio of 3%. However, for all but
the most highly rated bank holding companies and for bank holding companies seeking to expand, the
Federal Reserve expects an additional cushion of at least 1% to 2%.

Under FDIC regulations, an institution is assigned to one of five capital categories depending on
its total risk-based capital ratio, Tier I risk-based capital ratio, and leverage ratio, together with certain
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subjective factors. Institutions which are deemed to be "undercapitalized,” depending on the category to
which they are assigned, are subject to certain mandatory supervisory corrective actions.

Financial Services Modernization

Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999. The Financial Services Modernization Act of 1999, also
known as the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, brought about significant changes to the Jaws affecting banks
and bank holding companies. Generally, the Act (i) repealed the historical restrictions on preventing
banks from affiliating with securities firms, (ii) provided a uniform framework for the activities of banks,
savings institutions and their holding companies, (iii) broadened the activities that may be conducted by
national banks and banking subsidiaries of bank holding companies, (iv) provided an enhanced
framework for protecting the privacy of consumer information and (v) addressed a variety of other legal
and regulatory issues affecting both day-to-day operations and long-term activities of financial
institutions.

Bank holding companies that qualify and elect to become financial holding companies can
engage in a wider variety of financial activities than permitted under previous law, particularly with
respect to insurance and securities underwriting activities. In addition, in a change from previous law,
bank holding companies will be in a position to be owned, controlled or acquired by any company
engaged in financially related activities, so long as the company meets certain regulatory requirements.
The act also permits national banks (and, in states with wildcard statutes, certain state banks), either
directly or through operating subsidiaries, to engage in certain non-banking financial activities.

We do not believe that the act will negatively affect our operations in the short term. However,
to the extent the legislation permits banks, securities firms and insurance companies to affiliate, the
financial services industry may experience further consolidation. This consolidation could result in a
growing number of larger financial institutions that offer a wider variety of financial services than we
currently offer, and these companies may be able to aggressively compete in the markets we currently
serve.

Effects of Government Monetary Policy

Our earnings and growth are affected not only by general economic conditions, but also by the
fiscal and monetary policies of the federal government, particularly the Federal Reserve. The Federal
Reserve can and does implement national monetary policy for such purposes as curbing inflation and
combating recession. The nature and impact of future changes in monetary policies and their impact on
us cannot be predicted with certainty.

Enactment of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Congress recently enacted the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “Sarbanes Act’), which went
into effect on July 30, 2002. The Sarbanes Act and regulations adopted by the Securities and Exchange
Commission as required by the Sarbanes Act, implement a wide variety of measures designed to improve
corporate governance and accountability, including new requirements for audit committees, new
requirements for disclosure controls and procedures, and officer certification requirements. These
measures apply only to companies registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and thus do not
directly apply to Valley Bancorp. However, it is possible that federal or state regulatory agencies may in
the future adopt new corporate governance requirements, with objectives similar to those of the Sarbanes
Act, that do apply to Valley Bancorp. In any event, the enactment of the Sarbanes Act will likely result
in enhanced corporate governance standards for all companies, including Valley Bancorp.
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DESCRIPTION OF COMMON STOCK

General

Our Articles of Incorporation authorize us to issue up to 3,250,000 shares of stock. 2,750,000 of
such authorized shares are common stock, par value $0.73 per share, and 500,000 of such authorized
shares are preferred stock, par value $1.00 per share. There were 1,432,630 shares of common stock
issued and outstanding at September 30, 2002. In addition, options for 209,000 shares have been granted,
but have not been exercised, pursuant to our Employee Stock Option Plans and Director Stock Option
Plan. Approximately 45,000 shares remain available for future grant to our employees pursuant to the
Employee Stock Option Plan and 40,500 shares remain available for future grant to directors pursuant to
the Director Stock option Plan. The shares do not represent or constitute deposit accounts and are not
insured by the FDIC.

No shares of preferred stock are currently issued and outstanding.

Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws

Shareholders’ rights and related matters are governed by our Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws
and Nevada law. Our Articles of Incorporation may not be amended without the affirmative vote of at
least a majority of the outstanding shares unless a greater amount is required by law. Subject to the
approval of the Commissioner of Financial Institutions Division for the State of Nevada, if such approval
is required, our Bylaws may be amended by either the board of directors or by the affirmative vote of a
majority of our outstanding voting shares. The following is a summary of certain provisions of our
Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws.

Preferred Stock

No shares of preferred stock are issued and outstanding, and we have no current intent to issue
preferred stock in the immediate future. When and if preferred stock is authorized for issuance, the
board of directors is authorized to determine the voting rights, dividend rights, dividend rates, conversion
and/or redemption rights, liquidation preferences and other terms of any series of preferred stock, as well
as the number of shares constituting any series of preferred stock.

Among the rights and preferences that the board of directors may establish with respect to the
preferred stock are cumulative or noncumulative dividend rights, dividend rights in preference to the
dividend rights of holders of common stock, redemption rights or rights of conversion into other
securities of Valley Bancorp, voting rights, and other rights and provisions as the board of directors
deems advisable. The board of directors is authorized to establish such rights and preferences, and to
cause the preferred stock to be issued, without the approval of the holders of Valley Bancorp’s common
stock.

Voting Rights

Each share of common stock is entitled to one vote on all matters presented for a vote. Cumulative
voting for the election of directors is not authorized. Our Bylaws provide that action may be taken or
ratified, without a meeting, by shareholders holding the percentage of the voting power required to take such

action, by written consent if such writing is filed with our secretary.
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Dividends

Our shareholders are entitled to receive such dividends, if any, as may be declared by the board of
directors out of funds legally available for such purpose. Our ability to make dividend payments to our
shareholders is subject to statutory and regulatory restrictions that apply to Valley Bank. See
“SUPERVISION AND REGULATION —Capital Distributions.”

Preemptive Rights

Our Articles of Incorporation provide that holders of shares of common stock shall not have any
preemptive right (i.e. the right of first refusal to acquire shares offered by Valley Bancorp) to acquire
unissued shares of capital stock of Valley Bancorp.

Assessment
Shares of Valley Bancorp common stock are fully paid and non-assessable.
Indemnification

Indemnification. Our Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws contain provisions for the
indemnification of our officers and directors, and authorize us to pay reasonable expenses incurred by, or
to satisfy a fine or judgment against, a current or former director or officer in connection with certain
types of legal liability incurred by the individual while acting for Valley Bancorp within the scope of his
or her employment, except for acts or omissions that are finally adjudged to be intentional misconduct,
fraud, or a knowing violation of law and was material to the cause of action.

Limitation of Liability. Our Articles of Incorporation contain provisions eliminating the
personal liability of directors and officers to Valley Bancorp or our shareholders for damages for breach
of fiduciary duty as a director or officer, except for acts or omissions involving intentional misconduct,
fraud, a knowing violation of law, or payment of an unlawful distribution. These provisions do not affect
the availability of equitable remedies such as an action to enjoin or rescind a transaction involving a
breach of fiduciary duty.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be
permitted to officers, directors and controlling persons of Valley Bancorp pursuant to the foregoing
provisions, Valley Bancorp has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange
Commission, such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Act and is therefore
unenforceable.

Defensive Provisions of Nevada Law

Certain provisions of the Nevada Revised Statutes, summarized below, may be considered to
have an anti-takeover effect and may delay, deter, or prevent a tender offer, proxy contest or other
takeover attempt that shareholders might consider to be in their best interest, including such an attempt
that might result in the payment of a premium over the market price of the shareholders’ shares. Valley
Bancorp is subject to the NRS provisions which are commonly referred to as Nevada’s “business
combination law” (codified in NRS Sections 78.411 through 78.444) (the “BCL”). Valley Bancorp has
not opted out of the NRS provisions which are commonly referred to as the “control share law” (codified
in NRS Sections 78.378 through 78.3793) (the “CSL”) and, therefore, became subject to the CSL when it

had 200 or more shareholders of record, at least 100 of whom are in Nevada.
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The BCL provides, among other things, for restrictions on business “combinations” (as broadly
defined in the BCL) between a corporation and a person (individually or in association with others) who
is deemed an “interested stockholder” because such person (i) has acquired ten percent or more of the
voting power of the corporation’s shares or (ii) has certain affiliations or associations with the
corporation and previously owned ten percent or more of such voting shares. Such business
combinations are prohibited for a three-year period specified prescribed by the BCL unless certain prior
approvals by the corporation’s board of directors have been obtained. After expiration of the three-year
period, such business combinations are still prohibited unless certain prior approvals by the corporation’s
board of directors or disinterested shareholders have been obtained or certain fair value requirements are
met.

The CSL provides, among other things, that a person (individually or in association with others)
who acquires a “controlling interest” (which, under the definition in the CSL, can be as small as 20% of
the voting power in the election of directors) in a corporation will obtain voting rights in the “control
shares” only to the extent such rights are conferred by a vote of the disinterested stockholders. In
addition, in certain cases where the acquiring party has obtained such stockholder approval for voting
rights, stockholders who voted against conferring such voting rights will be entitled to demand payment
by the corporation of the fair value of their shares.

EXPERTS

The financial statements as of and for the years ending December 31, 2001 and 2000 of Valley
Bancorp and Subsidiary included in this Offering Circular, have been audited by McGladrey & Pullen,
LLP, independent auditors, and are included herein in reliance upon the authority of said firm as experts
in accounting and auditing.

CERTAIN LEGAL MATTERS

Graham & Dunn, P.C., Seattle, Washington, has advised Valley Bancorp in connection with
certain banking and securities law aspects of the offering. Stephens, Gourley & Bywater, Las Vegas,
Nevada, has advised Valley Bancorp in connection with certain matters related to Nevada law in
connection with the offering.
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VALLEY BANCORP
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VALLEY BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002
(Unaudited)

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks
Federal funds sold
Cash and cash equivalents

Interest-bearing deposits at other financial institutions
Securities available for sale
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $1,226,639 for 2002 and
$946,929 for 2001 (Note 2)
Premises and equipment, net
Other real estate owned
Accrued interest receivable
Deferred taxes, net
Other assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Deposits:
Non-interest bearing demand
Interest bearing:
Demand
Savings
Time, $100,000 and over
Other time
Total deposits
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities
Total liabilities

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 3)

Stockholders' Equity (Note 4)
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value, 500,000 shares authorized;
none issued or outstanding
Common stock, $0.73 par value, 2,750,000 shares authorized
Surplus
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Total stockholders' equity
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

See Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.

F-1

$ 2,577,195
19,745,000

22,322,195

5,941,000
1,005,793

106,634,718
3,117,499
648,000
436,390
106,227
197,475

$ 140,409,297

$ 12,526,881

37,643,236

6,814,257
25,664,614
45,770,020

128,419,008
850,943

129,269,951

1,045,820
10,051,569
46,575
(4,618)

11,139,346

$ 140,409,297
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VALLEY BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2002 and 2001
(Unaudited)

2002 2001
Interest income on:
Loans $ 6,144,501 5,700,901
Securities available for sale 34,640 28,114
Federal funds sold and interest-bearing deposits at other
financial institutions 233,747 379,843
Total interest income 6,412,888 6,108,858
Interest expense on deposits 2,398,556 3,071,012
Net interest income 4,014,332 3,037,846
Provision for loan losses (Notes 2 and 3) 1,397,614 241,788
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 2,616,718 2,796,058
Other income:
Service charges on deposit accounts 135,577 119,643
Other 19,753 25,883
155,330 145,526
Other expense:
Salaries and employee benefits 1,438,161 1,371,123
Equipment rentals, depreciation and maintenance 166,738 136,289
Occupancy 182,895 141,559
Data processing 185,178 107,302
Legal, professional and consulting 357,559 220,753
Advertising and public relations 63,466 99,221
Other 248,887 301,373
2,642,884 2,377,620
Net income before income taxes 129,164 563,964
Income tax expense 37,777 54,113
Net income $ 91,387 509,851
Basic income per common share $ 0.06 0.36
Diluted income per common share $ 0.06 0.35

See Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.
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VALLEY BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2002 and 2001

See Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.

F-4

(Unaudited)
. 2002 2001
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income $ 91,387 509,851
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation of premises and equipment 161,299 148,773
Deferred taxes 80,325 (78,625)
Net amortization of investment premium and discount 1,221 7,511
Provision for loan losses 1,397,614 241,788
Increase in accrued interest receivable (45,036) (44,720)
Increase in other assets (109,150) (19,113)
Increase in accrued interest payable and other liabilities 361,345 305,928
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,939,005 1,071,393
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Net increase in loans (15,860,684) (22,655,286)
Net increase in interest bearing deposits at other financial institutions (3,267,000) (3,077,000)
Purchase of securities available for sale (1,014,011) (1,750,881)
Proceeds from the maturities/sale of securities available for sale 712,544 2,395,000
Purchase of premises and equipment (318,141) (278,720)
Net cash used in investing activities (19,747,292) (25,366,887)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Net increase in deposits 34,470,390 17,226,244
Proceeds from issuance of common stock and stock options exercised 24,688 25,000
Net cash provided by financing activities 34,495,078 17,251,244
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 16,686,791 (7,044,250)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 5,635,404 16,946,125
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 22322195 § 9,901,875
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Cash payments for interest $ 2,409,176 $ 3,105,991
Cash payments for taxes $ 141,518 $ 70,625
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VALLEY BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

-Note 1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of Valley Bancorp and Subsidiary (collectively the
“Bank”) have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America for interim financial information. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes
necessary for a comprehensive presentation of financial condition and results of operations required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America for complete financial statements. In the opinion of
management, all normal recurring adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of results have been included. The
consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2001.

The interim consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Valley Bancorp and its wholly owned
subsidiary, Valley Bank. Intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated. The results of the interim

period ended September 30, 2002 are not necessarily indicative of the results expected for the year ending
December 31, 2002.

Note 2. Loans

The composition of the Bank's loan portfolio at September 30, 2002 was as follows:

Commercial, financial and industrial $ 23,127,000

Real Estate:
Commercial 50,508,000
Construction and land development 28,024,000
Residential 5,589,000
Consumer 1,077,000
108,325,000

Deduct:

Unearned net loan fees (463,643)
Allowance for ioan losses (1,226,639)
$ 106,634,718

63 of 335




VALLEY BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. Loans (continued)

Changes in the allowance for loan losses for the nine months ended September 30, 2002 were as follows:

Balance, beginning $ 946,929
Provision for loan losses 1,397,614
Recoveries of amounts charged off 200
Less amounts charged off (1,118,104)

Balance, ending $ 1,226,639

Information about impaired loans follows:

Total impaired loans $ 200,000
Related allowance for loan losses $ 135,000
Average balance during the period (based on month-end balances) $ 828,000
Interest income recognized on impaired loans $ 20,146
Note 3. Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments

In June 2002, the Bank entered into an agreement to purchase a building for $1,300,000, with the intention of
opening an additional branch. In connection with the agreement, the Bank assumed promissory note from the seller
for approximately $550,000. The note is secured by the property and guaranteed by the seller.

The note is due in monthly installments of approximately $6,100, including interest at 7.13%, through July 2013. The
Bank is subject to a prepayment penalty if the note is paid in full prior to April 2013.

The transaction closed in October 2002,

Contingencies

The Bank has initiated legal proceedings against various parties in connection with certain loan losses it incurred
during the period ended September 30, 2002. The lawsuit alleges, among other things, breach of contract and fraud.
The lawsuit is in preliminary stages, and pre-trial discovery has not begun. Although management believes the
lawsuit has substantial merit, and intends to vigorously pursue the case, they are not able at this time to predict the
ultimate effect of this litigation on the Bank'’s financial position or results of operations.

o of 231
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VALLEY BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 3. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Contingencies (continued)

One of the defendants in the above lawsuit has counterclaimed against the Bank, alleging among other things
wrongful interference with prospective economic advantage and defamation causing damage to the defendant and is
seeking $5 million from the Bank. The counterclaim appears to have been brought only for strategic purposes of
obtaining a jury trial and to have leverage in resolving the primary issues. Although no discovery has taken place
with respect to the counterclaim, the Bank denies the allegations and intends to vigorously defend the counterclaim.
The Bank has not recorded any provision related to this claim.

The Bank is a defendant in a lawsuit alleging breach of an equipment lease agreement. The plaintiff seeks
approximately $427,000 in damages, plus fees and costs. The Bank has counterclaimed against the plaintiff,
alleging among other things, breach of contract, breach of contractual rights of assignment, breach of express
warranty and breach of contract-good faith and fair dealing. The Bank and the plaintiff have agreed to early
mediation before a magistrate judge. The Bank’s management believes that the Bank will be able to resolve the
matter in a manner that will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition or results of operation of the
Bank. The Bank has not recorded any material provision related to this claim.

In addition, in the normal course of business, the Bank is involved in various other legal proceedings. In the opinion
of management, any liability resulting from such proceedings would not have a material adverse effect on the
financial statements.

Note 4. Regulatory Capital Requirements

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure
to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory - and possibly additional discretionary - actions
by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Bank's financial statements. Under capital
adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital
guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Bank's assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as
calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts and classification are also subject to
qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain minimum
amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier | capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-
weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier | capital (as defined) to average assets (as defined). Management
believes, as of September 30, 2002, that the Bank meets all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject.

As of September 30, 2002, the most recent notification from the FDIC categorized the Bank as well capitalized under
the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized, the Bank must maintain
minimum total risk-based, Tier | risk-based and Tier | leverage ratios as set forth in the table below. There are no
conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed the Bank's category.

The Company's capital amounts and ratios are substantially the same as the Bank. The Bank's actual capital
amounts and ratios are presented in the following table:

F-7
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VALLEY BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 4. Regulatory Capital Requirements {continued)

For Capital To be Well
Adequacy Capitalized Under Prompt
Actual Purposes Corrective Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

As of September 30, 2002:
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets) $ 12,310,000 105% § 9,366,000 8% § 11,708,000 10%
Tier | Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets) $ 11,083,000 95% § 4,683,000 4% 8 7,025,000 6%
Tier | Capital (to Average Assets) $ 11,083,000 82% § 5,415,000 4% $ 6,768,000 5%

Additionally, State of Nevada banking regulations restrict distribution of the net assets of the Bank because such
regulations require the sum of the Bank's stockholders' equity and allowance for loan losses to be at least 6% of the
average of the Bank's total daily deposit liabilities for the preceding 60 days. As a result of these regulations,
approximately $7,519,000 of the Bank's stockholders' equity was restricted at September 30, 2002.




% A MCGLADREY&PULLEN, LLP

Certified Public Accountants International

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Valley Bancorp
Henderson, Nevada

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Valley Bancorp and Subsidiary as of
December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders' equity and cash
flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Bank's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Valley Bancorp and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

W\c&w%* Qu&&m\\ Ll

Las Vegas, Nevada
February 6, 2002

McGladrey & Pullen, LLP

is an independent member

firm of RSM International,

an affiliation of independent

F-9 accounting and consulting firms.
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VALLEY BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2001 and 2000

2001 2000
ASSETS
Cash and due from banks $ 2,170,404 $ 2,556,125
Federal funds sold 3,465,000 14,390,000
Cash and cash equivalents ' 5,635,404 16,946,125
Interest-bearing deposits at other financial institutions 2,674,000 2,173,000
Securities available for sale (Note 2) 728,065 3,390,310
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $946,929 for 2001 and
$721,749 for 2000 (Notes 3, 7, 8 and 10) 92,171,648 64,603,398
Premises and equipment, net (Note 4) 2,960,657 2,854,926
Other real estate owned ) 648,000 -
Accrued interest receivable . 391,354 470,798
Deferred taxes, net (Note 6) , _ 178,896 117,541
Other assets 88,325 52,937
Total assets $ 105476349 $ 90,609,035
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Deposits:
Non-interest bearing demand $ 8922427 $ 5,315,994
Interest bearing:
Demand 27,223,003 17,124,177
Savings : 5,351,634 4,095,685
Time, $100,000 and over {Note 5) 19,658,976 13,339,515
Other time (Note 5) 32,792,578 39,985,090
Total deposits 93,948,618 79,860,461
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities 489,598 400,215
Total liabilities 94,438,216 80,260,676
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 7)
Stockholders' Equity (Notes 9 and 11)
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value, 500,000 shares authorized;
none issued or outstanding -
Common stock, par value of $0.727 for 2001, $0.80 for 2000;
shares authorized, 2,750,000 in 2001, 2,500,000 in 2000 1,039,935 1,037,935
Surplus 10,032,766 10,009,766
Accumulated deficit (44,812) (701,713)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 10,244 2,371
Total stockholders' equity 11,038,133 10,348,359

R4

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity 105,476,349 $ 90,609,035

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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VALLEY BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years Ended December 31, 2001 and 2000

2001 2000
Interest income on:
Loans $ 7,488,462 $ 4,601,462
Securities available for sale 56,646 211,220
Federal funds sold and interest-bearing deposits at other
financial institutions 422,500 768,989
Total interest income 7,967,608 5,581,671
Interest expense on deposits 3,907,124 3,085,496
Net interest income 4,060,484 2,496,175
Provision for loan losses (Note 3) 339,710 463,776
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 3,720,774 2,032,399
Other income:
Service charges on deposit accounts 133,874 59,452
Other 84,133 29,855
218,007 89,307
Other expense:
Salaries and employee benefits 1,809,038 1,125,643
Equipment rentals, depreciation and maintenance 187,868 147,002
Occupancy (Note 7) 197,895 109,580
Data processing 155,084 105,578
Legal, professional and consulting 123,179 74,160
Advertising and public relations 121,283 70,077
Other 591,140 352,894
3,185,487 1,984,934
Net income before income taxes 753,294 136,772
Income tax expense (benefit) (Note 6) 96,393 (117,541)
Net income $ 656,901 $ 254,313
Basic income per common share $ 046 $ 0.20
$ 045 § 0.20

Diluted income per common share

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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VALLEY BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2001 and 2000

2001 2000
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income $ 656,901 $ 254,313
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation of premises and equipment 200,953 159,484
Deferred taxes (66,632) (117,541)
Net amortization of investment premium and discount (10,014) (164,538)
Provision for loan losses 339,710 463,776
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable 79,444 (266,048)
Increase in other assets (35,388) (22,023)
Increase in accrued interest payable and other liabilities 89,383 219,327
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,254,357 526,750
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Net increase in loans (28,555,960) (35,174,851)
Net increase in interest bearing deposits at other financial institutions (501,000) (1,080,000)
Purchase of securities available for sale (4,209,591) (13,209,469)
Proceeds from the maturities of securities available for sale 4,395,000 10,766,000
Proceeds from the sale of securities available for sale 2,500,000 2,256,317
Purchase of premises and equipment (306,684) (146,599)
Net cash used in investing activities (26,678,235) (36,588,602)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Net increase in deposits 14,088,157 47,329,135
Proceeds from issuance of common stock and stock options exercised 25,000 3,599,901
Net cash provided by financing activities 14,113,157 50,929,036
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (11,310,721) 14,867,184
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 16,946,125 2,078,941
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 5635404 $ 16,946,125
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Cash payments for interest $ 3,942,103 § 2,890,466
Cash payments for taxes $ 130,000 § -
Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Activity
Other real estate acquired in settlement of loans S 648,000 $

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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VALLEY BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of business

Valley Bancorp (the Company) is a bank holding company that provides a full range of banking services to
commercial and consumer customers through its wholly owned subsidiary, Valley Bank (the Bank), a Nevada state
chartered bank. These entities are collectively referred to herein as the Bank. Segment information is not presented
since principally all of the Bank’s revenues are attributable to one reportable segment. The Bank's business is
concentrated in Southern Nevada and is subject to the general economic conditions of this area. '

A summary of the significant accounting policies utilized by the Company and the Bank are as follows:

Use of estimates in the preparation of financial statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. A material estimate that is particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term relates to the
determination of the allowance for loan losses.

Principles of consolidation and exchange of common stock

During the year ended December 31, 2001, stockholders of Valley Bank exchanged their common stock in Valley
Bank for common stock in the newly formed holding company, Valley Bancorp.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiary, Valley
Bank, and reflect the historical carrying amounts in a manner similar to pooling of interest accounting. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, amounts due from banks
(including cash items in process of clearing) and federal funds sold. Cash flows from loans originated by the Bank
and deposits are reported net.

The Bank maintains amounts due from banks, which at times may exceed federally insured limits. The Bank has not
experienced any losses in such accounts.
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VALLEY BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Securities available for sale

Securities classified as available for sale are those debt securities that the Bank intends to hold for an indefinite
period of time, but not necessarily to maturity. Any decision to sell a security classified as available for sale would be
based on various factors, including significant movements in interest rates, changes in the maturity mix of the Bank's

. assets and liabilities, liquidity needs, regulatory capital considerations and other similar factors. Securities available

for sale are carried at fair value. Unrealized gains or losses are reported as a separate component of other
comprehensive income. The amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts are recognized in interest income
over their contractual lives. Realized gains or losses, determined on the basis of the cost of specific securities sold,
are included in earnings.

Loans

Loans are stated at the amount of unpaid principal, reduced by net deferred loan fees and an allowance for loan
losses.

The allowance for loan losses is established through a provision for loan losses charged to expense. Loans are
charged against the allowance for loan losses when management believes that collectibility of the principal is
unlikely. The allowance is an amount that management believes will be adequate to absorb estimated losses on
existing loans that may become uncollectible, based on evaluation of the collectibility of loans, prior loss experience
and peer bank experience. This evaluation also takes into consideration such factors as changes in the nature and
volume of the loan portfolio, overall portfolio quality, review of specific problem credits and current economic
conditions that may affect the borrower's ability to pay. Due to the credit concentration of the Bank’s loan portfolio in
real estate secured loans, the value of collateral is heavily dependent on real estate values in Southern Nevada.
While management uses the best information available to make its evaluation, future adjustments to the allowance
may be necessary if there are significant changes in economic or other conditions. In addition, the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and the Financial Institutions Division of the Department of Business and Industry of
the State of Nevada, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically reviews the Bank's allowance for
loan losses and may require the Bank to make additions to the allowance based on their judgment about information
available to them at the time of their examination.

A loan is impaired when it is probable the Bank will be unable to collect all contractual principal and interest
payments due in accordance with the terms of the loan agreement. Impaired loans are measured based on the
present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's effective interest rate or, as a practical
expedient, at the loan's observable market price or the fair value of the collateral, if the loan is collateral dependent.
The amount of impairment, if any, and any subsequent changes are included in the allowance for loan losses.
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VALLEY BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Interest and fees on loans

Interest on loans is recognized over the terms of the loans and is calculated using the effective interest method. The
accrual of interest on impaired loans is discontinued when, in management's opinion, the borrower may be unable to
meet payments as they become due. When interest accrual is discontinued, all unpaid accrued interest is reversed.
Cash collections on impaired loans are generally credited to the loan receivable balance and no interest income is
recognized on these loans until the principal balance has been collected.

Loan origination and commitment fees and certain direct loan origination costs are deferred and the net amount
amortized as an adjustment to the related loan's yield. The Bank is generally amortizing these amounts over the
contractual life of the loan. Commitment fees based upon a percentage of a customer's unused line of credit are
recognized over the commitment period.

Premises and equipment

Land is stated at cost. Building, equipment and furniture and fixtures are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets,
which is generally five to ten years for equipment and furniture and fixtures and 40 years for the building.

Other real estate owned

Other real estate owned (OREOQ) is held for sale and is carried at the lower of cost or fair value less estimated costs
of disposal. Any write-down to fair value at the time of transfer to OREQ is charged to the allowance for loan losses.
Property is evaluated regularly to ensure the recorded amount is supported by its current fair value and valuation
allowances to reduce the carrying amount to fair value less estimated costs to dispose are recorded as necessary.
Revenue and expense from the operations of OREO and changes in the valuation allowance are included in loss on
foreclosed real estate.

Transfers of financial assets

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales, when control over the assets has been surrendered. Control
over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when (1) the assets have been isolated from the Bank, (2) the
transferee obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or
exchange the transferred assets, and (3) the Bank does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets
through an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity.
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VALLEY BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Income taxes

Deferred taxes are provided on an asset and liability method whereby deferred tax assets are recognized for
deductible temporary differences; and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards and deferred tax liabilities are
recognized for taxable temporary differences. Temporary differences are the differences between the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance
when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will
not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effect of changes in tax laws and rates on the
date of enactment.

Income per share

Components used in computing income per share for the year ended December 31, 2001 are summarized as
follows:

Income Shares Per-share
{Numerator) {Denominator) Amount

Basic Income Per Share

Income available to common stockholders $ 657,000 1,428,505 $ 0.46
Effect of Dilutive Securities

Options - 38,631 {0.01)
Diluted Income Per Share

Income available to common stockholers

plus assumed conversions $ 657,000 1,467,136 § 0.45

Components used in computing income per share for the year ended December 31, 2000 are summarized as
follows:

Income Shares Per-share
{Numerator) {Denominator) Amount

Basic Income Per Share

Income available to common stockholders $ 254,000 1,245656 $ 0.20
Effect of Dilutive Securities

Options - 23,310
Diluted Income Per Share

Income available to common stockholers

plus assumed conversions $ 254,000 1,268,966 $ 0.20

Off-balance-sheet instruments

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank has entered into off-balance-sheet financial instruments consisting of
commitments to extend credit. Such financial instruments are recorded in the financial statements when they are
funded.
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VALLEY BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Stock split

On January 15, 2002, the Bank's Board of Directors approved an 11-for-10 common stock split which reduced the
par value of the Bank's common stock from $0.80 per share to $0.73 per share and resulted in the issuance of
129,742 additional shares.

On January 26, 2000, the Bank’s Board of Directors approved a 5-for-4 common stock split which reduced the par
value of the Bank’s common stock from $1.00 per share to $0.80 per share and resulted in the issuance of 186,204
additional shares.

The earnings per comman share for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 have been retroactively adjusted
as if the splits occurred on January 1, 2000.

Fair value of financial instruments

Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement No. 107, Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial
Instruments, requires disclosure of fair value information about financial instruments, whether or not recognized in the
balance sheet, for which it is practicable to estimate that value.

Management uses its best judgment in estimating the fair value of the Bank's financial instruments; however, there
are inherent weaknesses in any estimation technique. Therefore, for substantially all financial instruments, the fair
value estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Bank could have realized in a
sales transaction at December 31, 2001 or 2000. The estimated fair value amounts for 2001 and 2000 have been
measured as of their year end, and have not been reevaluated or updated for purposes of these financial statements
subsequent to those dates. As such, the estimated fair values of these financial instruments subsequent to the
reporting date may be different than the amounts reported at year end.

The information in Note 13 should not be interpreted as an estimate of the fair value of the entire Bank since a fair
value calculation is only required for a limited portion of the Bank's assets.

Due to the wide range of valuation techniques and the degree of subjectivity used in making the estimate,
comparisons between the Bank's disclosures and those of other companies or banks may not be meaningful.

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Bank in estimating the fair values of its financial
instruments:

Cash and cash equivalents and interest-bearing deposits at other financial institutions

The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet for cash and due from banks, federal funds sold and interest-
bearing deposits at other financial institutions approximate their fair value.
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VALLEY BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

Securities available for sale

Fair value for securities available for sale are based on quoted market prices where available or on quoted
markets for similar securities in the absence of quoted prices on the specific security. Carrying amounts
approximate fair value for securities available for sale.

Loans

For variable rate loans that reprice frequently and that have experienced no significant change in credit risk, fair
value is based on carrying value. Variable rate loans comprised approximately 77% and 73% of the loan portfolio
at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Fair value of all other loans is estimated based on discounted cash
flows using interest rates currently being offered for loans with similar terms to borrowers with similar credit quality.
Prepayments prior to the repricing date are not expected to be significant. Loans are expected to be held to
maturity and any unrealized gains or losses are not expected to be realized.

Accrued interest receivable and payable

The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet for accrued interest receivable and payable approximate their
fair value.

Deposit liabilities

The fair value disclosed for demand and savings deposits approximate their carrying amounts, which represent
the amount payable on demand. The carrying amount for variable rate certificates of deposit approximate their fair
value. Fair values for fixed rate certificates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that
applies interest rates currently being offered on certificates of deposit to a schedule of aggregated expected
monthly maturities on time deposits. Early withdrawals of fixed rate certificates of deposit are not expected to be
significant.

Off-balance-sheet instruments

Fair value for off-balance-sheet instruments (lending commitments and standby letters of credit) are based on
quoted fees currently charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the
agreements and the counterparties’ credit standing.
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VALLEY BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. Securities Available for Sale

Carrying amounts and the estimated fair value of securities available for sale as of December 31, 2001 and 2000
have been summarized as follows:

2001
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains (Losses) Fair Value
U.S. Treasury Securities S 712544 § 15521 § - $ 728,065
2000
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains (Losses) Fair Value
U.S. Government Agencies $ 1392657 $ 820 $ - $ 1,393477
Commercial Paper and Other 1,995,282 1,551 - 1,996,833
$ 3387939 § 23711 % - $ 3,390,310

All securities available for sale as of December 31, 2001 mature in one year or less. There were no realized gains or
losses for the year ended December 31, 2001 and realized gains were insignificant for the year ended December 31,
2000.

Note 3. Loans

The composition of the Bank's loan portfolio at December 31 was as follows:

2001 2000
Commercial, financial and industrial $ 29,310,000 $ 20,756,000
Real Estate:
Commercial 45,073,000 27,716,000
Construction and land development 14,395,000 14,991,000
Residential 3,869,000 1,938,000
Consumer 1,002,000 366,000
93,649,000 65,767,000
Deduct:
Unearned net loan fees (530,423) (441,853)
Allowance for loan losses (946,929) (721,749)

§ 92,171,648 $ 64,603,398
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VALLEY BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 3. Loans (continued)

Changes in the allowance for loan losses were as follows:

2001 2000
Balance, beginning $ 721,749 % 259,071
Provision for loan losses 339,710 463,776
Less amounts charged off (114,530) (1,098)
Balance, ending $ 946,929 $ 721,749
Information about impaired loans as of and for the years ended December 31 was as follows:
: » 2001 2000
Total impaired loans $ 2,265,196 $ 636,739
Related allowance for loan losses $ 30616 $ 95,511
Average balance during the year (based on month-end balances) $ 2,169,000 $ 700,771
Interest income recognized on impaired loans $ 95,062 $ 63,363
Note 4. Premises and Equipment

The major classes of premises and equipment and the total accumulated depreciation at December 31 were as

follows:
2001 2000
Land $ 935635 $ 935,635
Building and improvements 1,340,797 1,306,321
Equipment 643,234 437,562
Furniture, fixtures and other 473,244 406,706
3,392,910 3,086,224
Less accumulated depreciation (432,253) (231,298)
$ 2960657 $ 2854926

F-21

79 of K39




G Uh O 3= & 00 B o) 8 e e

VALLEY BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 5. Deposits

At December 31, 2001 the scheduled maturities of time certificates were as follows:

Three months or less $ 9,006,287
Over three months through one year 41,252,919
Over one year through three years _ 1,887,910
Over three years 244,438
$ 52451554

Note 6. income Tax Matters

The provision for federal income taxes is comprised of the following for the years ended December 31, 2001 and
2000:

2001 2000
Current $ 163,025 $ -
Deferred tax benefit ‘ (66,632) (117,541)

5 96,393 _§ (117,541

The income tax provision differs from the amount of income tax determined by applying the U.S. federal income tax
rate to pretax income for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 due to the following:

2001 2000
Computed "expected tax expense" $ 264,000 $ 48,000
Increase (decrease) in income taxes resulting from:
Valuation allowance (158,000) (166,000)
Other (9,607) 459

$ 96,393 § (117,541)
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VALLEY BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 6. Income Tax Matters (continued)

The cumulative tax effects of the primary temporary differences which created deferred tax assets and liabilities at
December 31 are as follows:

2001 2000
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for loan losses $ 295,000 $ 211,000
Development stage costs 29,000 46,000
Net operating loss carryforwards - 157,000
Total deferred tax assets 324,000 414,000
Deferred tax liabilities:
Accrual to cash conversion 8,000 46,000
Premises and equipment 111,000 77,000
Securities available for sale 5,277 -
Other 20,827 15,000
Total deferred tax liabilities 145,104 138,000.
Net deferred tax asset 178,896 276,000
Less valuation allowance - (158,459)

$ 178,896 $ 117,541

The Bank had a $324,000 valuation allowance as of December 31, 1999. As of December 31, 2000, the valuation
allowance decreased by approximately $166,000. The Bank recorded a net deferred tax asset of approximately
$118,000 as of December 31, 2000. As of December 31, 2001, the valuation allowance decreased by approximately
$158,000 and no valuation allowance was considered necessary as management believes it is more likely than not
the deferred tax assets will be realized.

Note 7. Commitments and Contingencies

Contingencies

in the normal course of business, the Bank is involved in various legal proceedings. In the opinion of management,
any liability resuiting from such proceedings would not have a material adverse effect on the financial statements.
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VALLEY BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 7. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk

The Bank is party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the
financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments consist of commitments to extend credit.” They involve,
to varying degrees, elements of credit risk in excess of the amounts recognized in the balance sheets.

The Bank's exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other parties to the financial instruments for
these commitments is represented by the contractual amounts of those instruments. The Bank uses the same credit
policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments.

The contract amount of the Bank's exposure to off-balance-sheet risk from commitments to extend credit at
December 31, 2001 and 2000 is $16,418,000 and $16,599,000, respectively.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition
established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may
require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total
commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Bank evaluates each customer's
creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Bank upon
extension of credit, is based on management's credit evaluation of the party. Collateral held varies, but may include
accounts receivable, inventory, property and equipment, residential real estate and income-producing commercial
properties.

Lease commitments

In 2001, the Bank entered into a non-cancelable operating lease expiring in five years. The Bank opened an
additional branch in the leased space. The lease includes two renewal option periods for five years each. The
agreement requires monthly rental payments of approximately $7,120 for the first year with an escalation clause for
the subsequent years.

Total rental expense from this operating lease for the year ended December 31, 2001 was approximately $71,000.
At December 31, 2001, the future annual minimum lease payments under this operating lease are as follows:

Years Ending December 31,

2002 $ 87,048
2003 89,542
2004 91,596
2005 94,090
2006 15,754

$ 378,030
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VALLEY BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 7. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Financial instruments with concentrations of credit risk

Concentration by geographic location

The Bank makes commercial, commercial real estate, residential real estate and consumer loans to customers
primarily in southern Nevada. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, real estate loans accounted for approximately
68% of the total loans. Substantially all of these loans are secured by first liens with an initial loan to value ratio of
generally not more than 75%. The Bank's policy for requiring collateral is to obtain collateral whenever it is
available or desirable, depending upon the degree of risk the Bank is willing to take. The Bank's loans are
expected to be repaid from cash flow or from proceeds from the sale of selected assets of the borrowers. Less
than 6% and 3% of the Bank’s loan portfolio was unsecured at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

A substantial portion of the Bank's customers' ability to honor their contracts is dependent on the economy in the
area. The Bank's goal is to continue to maintain a diversified loan portfolio which requires the loans to be well
collateralized and supported by cash flows.

Employment and severance agreements

The Bank entered into a three year employment agreement with its president commencing on March 22, 2000. In the
event the Bank terminates the employment of the president without cause, or upon change in control of the Bank, the
Bank may be liable for a payment as outlined in the employment agreement. In addition, the Bank entered into
severance agreements with three executive officers, whereby upon change in control of the Bank, the Bank may be
liable for a payment as outlined in the severance agreements.

Note 8. Other Borrowed Funds

The Bank has entered into an agreement under which it can purchase up to $2,500,000 of Federal funds. The
interest rate charged on borrowings is determined by the lending institution at the time of borrowings. The line is
unsecured and the agreement can be terminated by the lending institution at any time. There were no balances
outstanding under this agreement at December 31, 2001 or 2000.

The Bank has also entered into an agreement under which it can obtain short term advances from the Federal
Reserve Bank. The interest rate charged on advances is determined by the Federal Reserve Bank at the time of the
advances. Advances are collateralized by 60% of certain qualifying commercial real estate loans. Loans available
for collateralization totaled approximately $7,165,000 and $7,773,000 at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
The agreement can be terminated by the Federal Reserve Bank at any time. There were no balances outstanding
under this agreement at December 31, 2001 or 2000.
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VALLEY BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 9. Regulatory Capital Requirements

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure
to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory - and possibly additional discretionary - actions
by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Bank's financial statements. Under capital
adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital
guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Bank's assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as
calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts and classification are also subject to
qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures estabiished by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain minimum
amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier | capital (as defined in the reguiations) to risk-
weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier | capital (as defined) to average assets (as defined). Management
believes, as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, that the Bank meets all capital adequacy requirements to which it is
subject.

As of December 31, 2001, the most recent notification from the FDIC categorized the Bank as well capitalized under
the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized, the Bank must maintain
minimum total risk-based, Tier | risk-based and Tier | leverage ratios as set forth in the table below. There are no
conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed the Bank's category.

The Company’s capital amounts and ratios are substantially the same as the Bank. The Bank's actual capital
amounts and ratios as of December 31 are presented in the following table:

For Capital To be Well
Adequacy Capitalized Under Prompt
Actual Purposes Corrective Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

As of December 31, 2001:
Total Capital {to Risk Weighted Assets) $ 11,937,000 123% § 7,757,000 8% $ 9,697,000 10%
Tier | Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets) $ 10,990,000 113% § 3,879,000 4% $ 5,818,000 6%
Tier | Capital (to Average Assets) $ 10,990,000 102% § 4,292,000 4% $ 5,364,000 5%
As of December 31, 2000:
Total Capital {to Risk Weighted Assets) $ 11,069,000 150% $ 5,803,000 8% $ 7,379,000 10%
Tier | Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets) $ 10,346,000 140% § 2,952,000 % $ 4,427,000 6%
Tier | Capital (to Average Assets) $ 10,346,000 125% $ 3,311,000 % $ 4,138,000 5%

Additionally, State of Nevada banking regulations restrict distribution of the net assets of the Bank because such
regulations require the sum of the Bank's stockholders' equity and allowance for loan losses to be at least 6% of the
average of the Bank's total daily deposit liabilities for the preceding 60 days. As a result of these regulations,
approximately $5,732,000 and $3,298,000 of the Bank's stockholders' equity was restricted at December 31, 2001
and 2000, respectively.
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VALLEY BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 10.  Transactions with Related Parties

The Bank has had and may be expected to have in the future, banking transactions in the ordinary course of
business with directors, significant stockholders, principal officers, their immediate families and affiliated companies
in which they are principal stockholders (commonly referred to as related parties). In management’s opinion, these
loans and transactions were on the same terms as those for comparable loans and transactions with non related
parties.

Aggregate loan transactions with related parties during the year ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 were as
follows:

2001 2000
Balance, beginning $ 2629798 $§ 2,052,670
New loans 50,000 613,814
Repayments (141,659) (36,686)
Balance, ending $ 2538139 § 2,629,798

None of these Ioans are past due, nonaccrual or restructured to provide a reduction or deferral of interest or principal
because of deterioration in the financial position of the borrower. There were no loans to related parties that were
considered classified loans at December 31, 2001 and 2000.

Note11.  Stock Option Plan

During the year ended December 31, 2000, the Bank adopted an Incentive Stock Option Plan and a Nonqualified
Stock Option Plan (the “Plans”) under which options to acquire common stock of the Bank may be granted to
employees, officers or directors at the discretion of the Board of Directors. The Plans, as amended, allow for the
granting of 165,000 incentive and 51,563 nonqualifying options as those terms are defined in the Internal Revenue
Code.

The Plans provide for the exercise price and term of each option to be determined by the Board at the date of grant,
provided that no options have a term greater than ten years and an option price not less than the fair market value of
the stock on the date of grant.
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VALLEY BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 11.  Stock Option Plan (continued)

The Bank applies APB Opinion 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related interpretations in
accounting for its Plans. Accordingly, no compensation cost has been recognized for its stock option plans. Had
compensation cost for the Bank’s stock-based compensation plan been recorded based on the fair value at the grant
dates for awards under the Plan consistent with the method of FASB Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation, the Bank’s net income for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 would have been adjusted
to the proforma amount indicated below:

2001 2000
Net income:
As reported $ 656,901 §$ 254,313
Proforma $ 566,000 $ 144,000

The proforma compensation cost was estimated using the minimum value method for options granted with the
following assumptions:

2001 2000
Incentive Nonqualified Incentive Nongqualified
Stock Options  Stock Options  Stock Options  Stock Options
Fair value per optional share $ 300 § 100 § 300 % 1.00
Expected life (years) 7 2 7 2
Risk-free interest rate 5.34% 3.31% 6.13% 5.63%
Dividends rate None None None None

- Blo of 239




VALLEY BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 11.  Stock Option Plan (continued)

A summary of stock option activity for the years ended December 31 follows:

2001 2000
Incentive Nonqualifying Incentive Nonqualifying
Stock Options  Stock Options Stock Options ~ Stock Options
Qutstanding options, beginning of year 122,995 49,500 - -
Granted 42,005 - 122,995 49,500
Exercised - (2,750) - -
Forfeited - - - -
Outstanding options, end of year 165,000 46,750 122,995 49,500
Options exercisable, end of year 49,198 46,750 24,599 49,500
Available to grant, end of year - 2,063 42,006 2,063
Weighted-average exercise price:
Outstanding options, end of year $ 831 § 8.31 $ 800 § 8.00
Options granted, during the year $ 955 § 8 800 § 8.00
Options exercised, during the year $ - S 8.00 $ $
Options exercisable, end of year $ 800 § 8.00 $ 800 § 8.00
Weighted-average expiration (in years) 8 1 9 2

All incentive options granted during the year ended December 31, 2001 expire ten years after the date of grant and
have exercise prices of $9.55. All incentive options granted during the year ended December 31, 2000 expire ten
years after the date of grant and have exercise prices of $8.00. All nonqualified stock options granted during the year
ended December 31, 2000 expire three years after the date of grant and have exercise prices of $8.00.

Incentive stock options vest and become exercisable over a period of five years and nonqualified stock options are
immediately exercisable upon grant.

Note 12.  Employee Benefit Plan

During 1999, the Bank adopted a qualified 401(k) employee benefit plan for all eligible employees. The plan went
into effect on January 1, 1999 and the first payroll deferral began April 1, 1999. Participants are able to defer
between 1% and 15% of their annual compensation to a limit of $10,500.

The plan also provides a profit sharing component where the Bank can make a discretionary contribution to the plan,
which is allocated based on the compensation of eligible employees. The Bank made no contributions to the plan
during 2001 or 2000.
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VALLEY BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 13. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The estimated fair values of the Bank's financial instruments at December 31 were as follows:

2001 2000
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Financial assets:
Cash and due from banks $ 2170404 $ 2,170,000 $§ 255,125 $ 2,556,000
Federal funds sold 3,465,000 3,465,000 14,390,000 14,390,000
Interest-bearing deposits at other
financial institutions 2,674,000 2,674,000 2,173,000 2,173,000
Securities available for sale 728,065 728,000 3,390,310 3,390,000
Loans, net 92,171,648 92,952,939 64,603,398 64,507,000
Accrued interest receivable 391,354 391,000 470,798 471,000
Financial liabilities:
Deposits 93,948,618 94,839,000 79,860,461 80,667,000
Accrued interest payable 283,230 283,000 318,209 318,000

Interest rate risk

The Bank assumes interest rate risk (the risk that general interest rate levels will change) as a result of its normal
operations. As a result, the fair values of the Bank's financial instruments will change when interest rate levels
change and that change may be either favorable or unfavorable to the Bank. Management attempts to match
maturities of assets and liabilities to the extent believed necessary to minimize interest rate risk. However, borrowers
with fixed rate obligations are less likely to prepay in a rising rate environment and more likely to prepay in a falling
rate environment. Also, depositors who are receiving fixed rates are more likely to withdraw funds before maturity in
a rising rate environment and less likely to do so in a falling rate environment. Management monitors rates and
maturities of assets and liabilities and attempts to minimize interest rate risk by adjusting terms of new loans and
deposits and by investing in securities with terms that mitigate the Bank's overall interest rate risk.

Fair value of commitments

Loan commitments on which the committed fixed interest rate is less than the current market rate were also
insignificant at December 31, 2001 and 2000.
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SIGNATURES

The issuer has duly caused this offering statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Henderson, State of Nevada, on _December 5 , 2002.

VALLEY BANCORP

By:
Barry L. Hulin, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Barry L. Hulin and Dick Holtzclaw,
and each of them, with full power to act alone without the other, his or her true and lawful attorney-in-fact and
agent, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him or her and in his or her name, place and stead, in
any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Offering Circular, and to file the same, with all
exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform
each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to fully to all intents and purposes as he or she might or
could do in person thereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents or any of them, or
their substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

In accordance with the requirements of Regulation A, this offering statement has been signed by the
following persons in the capacities indicated on _December 5  2002.
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. President, Chief Executive Officer and

Barry L. Hulin Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice
President
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Exhibit 2.1

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF
VALLEY BANCORP

ARTICLE |
NAME

The name of the corpdration is:
Valley Bancorp
ARTICLE I
PURPOSE

The purpose for which this corporation is organized is to engage in any bank holding
company business or activity not forbidden by law or these Articles of Incorporation.

ARTICLE 111
RESIDENT AGENT

The name and address of this corporation’s resident agent for service of process, which may
be changed from time to time by the Board of Directors, is:

Stephens, Gourley & Bywater
3636 N. Rancho Drive
~.Las Vegas, NV 89130

ARTICLE IV
CAPITAL STOCK

401 AUTHORIZED SHARES

The total number of shares of stock this corporation is authorized to issue shall be Three
Million (3,000,000). This stock shall be divided into two classes to be designated as “Common

Stock” and “Preferred Stock.”

402 COMMON STOCK

Two Million Five Hundred Thousand (2,500,000) shares of the authorized stock have a par
value of $0.80 per share and are designated Common Stock. Each share of Common Stock, when
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issued, shall have one (1) vote on all matters presented to the stockholders.

403 PREFERRED STOCK

Five Hundred Thousand (500,000) shares of the authorized stock have a par value of One
Dollar ($1.00) per share and are designated Preferred Stock. The Board of Directors shall have the
authority to authorize the issuance of the Preferred Stock from time to time in one or more classes
or series, and to state in the resolution or resolutions from time to time adopted providing for the
issuance thereof the following:

(a) Whether or not the class or series shall have voting rights, full or limited, the nature
and the qualifications, limitations and restrictions on those rights, or whether the class or series will
be without voting rights;

(b) The number of shares to constitute the class or series and the designation thereof;

(c) The preferences and relative, participating, optional or other special rights, if any, and
the qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, if any, with respect to any class or series;

(d) Whether or not the shares of any class or series shall be redeemable and if redeemable
the redemption price or prices, and the time or times at which, and the terms and conditions upon
which, such shares shall be redeemable and the manner of redemption;

(e) Whether or not the shares of a class or series shall be subject to the operation of
retirement or sinking funds to be applied to the purchase or redemption of such shares for retirement,
and if such retirement or sinking funds be established, the amount and the terms and provisions

thereof;

() The dividend rate, whether dividends are payable in cash, stock of the corporation,
or other property, the conditions upon which and the times when such dividends are payable, the
preference to or the relation to the payment of dividends payable on any other class or classes or
series of stock, whether or not such dividend shall be cumulative or noncumulative, and if
cumulative, the date or dates from which such dividends shall accumulate;

(g) The preferences, if any, and the amounts thereof which the holders of any class or
series thereof are entitled to receive upon the voluntary or involuntary dissolution of, or upon any
distribution of the assets of, the corporation,

(h) Whether or not the shares of any class or series are convertible into, or exchangeable
for, the shares of any other class or classes or of any other series of the same or any other class or
classes of stock of the corporation and the conversion price or prices or ratio or ratios or the rate or
rates at which such exchange may be made, with such adjustments, if any, as shall be stated and
‘expressed or provided for in such resolution or resolutions; and
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(1) Such other rights and provisions with respect to any class or series as may to the
Board of Directors seem advisable.

The shares of each class or series of the Preferred Stock may vary from the shares of any other class
or series thereof in any respect. The Board of Directors may increase the number of shares of the
Preferred Stock designated for any existing class or series by a resolution adding to such class or
series authorized and unissued shares of the Preferred Stock not designated for any other class or
series. The Board of Directors may decrease the number of shares of the Preferred Stock designated
for any existing class or series of the Preferred Stock and the shares so subtracted shall become
authorized, unissued and undesignated shares of the Preferred Stock.

404 PREEMPTIVE RIGHTS

Holders of Common Stock shall not have preemptive rights.
4.05 ASSESSMENT OF STOCK |

The capital stock of this corporation, after the amount of the subscription price has been fully
paid in, shall not be assessable for any purpose, and no stock issued as fully paid up shall ever be

assessable or assessed, except as provided by Chapter 661 of the NRS.

ARTICLE V
- DIRECTORS

5.01 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The governing body of this corporation shall be the Board of Directors. The members of the
Board of Directors shall be styled as directors. Directors must be stockholders.

5.02 INITIAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The imitial Board of Directors shall consist of eleven (11) members. The names and
addresses of the initial members of the Board of Directors are:

Name Address

Robert E. O’Connell 7225 Montecito Circle
Las Vegas, NV 89120

Thomas J. Krob 1533 Champion Hills Lane
Las Vegas, NV 89134

George A. Brizendine - ¢/o Brizendine Engineering
3650 S. Eastern Ave., Ste. 330
Las Vegas, NV 89109
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Name

Don Hamilton

Mary E. Hausch

~ Barry L. Hulin

James A. McKellar, Sr.»

William E. Snyder

Dan H. Stewart

Gary Vause

Dick L. Rottman

Address

3418 S. Seneca Drive
Las Vegas, NV 89109

1139 S. Fifth Place
Las Vegas, NV 89104

c/o Valley Bank
370 No. Stephanie Street
Henderson, NV 89014

c/o McKellar Resorts, Inc.
3340 S. Topaz, Ste. 240

~Las Vegas, NV 89121

c¢/o Tate and Snyder Architects
709 Valle Verde Court
Henderson, NV 89014

¢/o Basic Investments, Inc.
875 W. Warm Springs Road
Henderson, NV 89015

3020 Plaza De Monte
Las Vegas, NV 89102

¢/o Western Insurance Company
P.O. Box 21030
Reno, NV 89515

ARTICLE VI
INCORPORATOR

The name and address of the incorporator signing these Articles of Incorporation is as

follows:

Gordon E. Bywater
3636 N. Rancho Drive
Las Vegas, NV 89130
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‘ ARTICLE vII
LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY

7.01 DIRECTOR AND OFFICER LIABILITY

No director or officer of this corporation shall be personally liable to this corporation or to
any of its stockholders for damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director or officer involving any
act or omission of any such director or officer; provided, however, that the foregoing provision shail
not eliminate the liability of a director or officer for: (i) acts or omissions which involve intentional
misconduct, fraud or a knowing violation of law; or (ii) the unlawful payment of distributions. Any
repeal or modification of this Article VII by the stockholders of this corporation shall be prospective
only, and shall not adversely affect any limitation on the personal hability of a director or officer of
this corporation for acts or omissions prior to such repeal or modification.

7.02 STOCKHOLDER LIABILITY

The holders of this corporation’s capital stock shall not be individually responsible or liable
for the debts, contracts or liabilities of this corporation. Notwithstanding anything in these Articles
of Incorporation to the contrary, however, stockholders shall be liable as provided in Chapter 661
of the NRS. ‘

ARTICLE VIIl
INDEMNIFICATION

Every person who was or is a party to, or is threatened to be made a party to, or is involved
in any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, by reason
of the fact that he, or a person of whom he is the legal representative, is or was a director or officer
of this corporation, or is or was serving at the request of this corporation as a director or officer of
another corporation, or as its representative in a partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise,
shall be indemnified and held harmless to the fullest extent legally permissible under the laws of the
State of Nevada from time to time against all expenses, liability and loss (including attorneys’ fees,
judgments, fines and amounts paid or to be paid in settlement) reasonably incurred or suffered by
him in connection therewith. Such right of indemnification shall be a contract right which may be
enforced in any manner desired by such person. The expenses of officers and directors incurred in
defending a civil or criminal action, suit or proceeding must be paid by this corporation as they are
incurred and in advance of the final disposition of the action, suit or proceeding, upon receipt of an
undertaking by or on behalf of the director or officer to repay the amount if it is ultimately
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction that he is not entitled to be indemnified by this
corporation. Such right of indemnification shall not be exclusive of any other right which such
directors, officers or representatives may have or hereafter acquire, and, without limiting the
generality of such statement, they shall be entitled to their respective rights of indemnification under
any bylaw, agreement, vote of stockholders, provision of law or otherwise, as well as their rights
under this Article VIIL
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Without limiting the application of the foregoing, the Board of Directors may adopt bylaws
from time to time with respect to indemnification, to provide at all times the fullest indemnification
permitted by the laws of the State of Nevada, and may cause this corporation to purchase and
maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a director or officer of this corporation,
or is or was serving at the request of this corporation as director or officer of another corporation,
or as its representative in a partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprises against any liability
asserted against such person and incurred in any such capacity or arising out of such status, whether
or not this corporation would have the power to indemnify such person.

The indemnification provided in this Article VIII shall continue as to a person who has
ceased to be a director, officer, employee or agent, and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs,
executors and administrators of such person.

Notwithstanding the forgoing, the provisions of this Article VIII are subject to the .
requirements and limitations, if any shall apply, set forth in state and federal laws, rules, regulations,

or orders regarding indemnification and prepayment of legal expenses.

IN WITNESS WHEBEOF, 1 have hereunto executed these Articles of Incorporation this

20 ﬁday of snef— 2001

Gordon E. Bywater, Esq.

STATE OF NEVADA )
) SS.
COUNTY OF CLARK )

On this(éj day of.ﬁgﬂ-fa%',\ 2001, personally appeared before me, the undersigned, a Notary
Public in and for the County of Clark, State of Nevada, Gordon E. Bywater, Esq. personally known,
or proved, to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the above instrument, who
acknowledged that he executed the above instrument.

otary Public, in and for said

County and State

NOTARY PUBLIC
LAURA A. ELLIS
STATE OF NEVADA

% AUGUST 10, 2009
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CERTIFICATE OF VALLEY BANCORP FILED FEB 1 2 2002
- PURSUANT TO N.R.S. 78.207 AND 78.209

N THE GFF/ICE CF

 BARRY L. HULIN and DICK HOLTZCLAW, hereby certify that: DEAN AELLER, SECRETARY CF S

A. They are President and Secretary, respectively, of Valley Bancorp, a Nevada
corporation (the “Company”).

That Resolutions proposing and declaring advisable the following changes to the

number and par value of shares of authorized common stock, have been adopted by
the Company’s Board of Directors:

1. The number of authorized shares of stock which the Company is currently

authorized to issue is Three Million (3,000,000) shares, which consists of
Two Million Five Hundred Thousand (2,500,000) shares of common stock at
a par value of Eighty Cents (3.80) per share and five hundred thousand

(500,000) shares of preferred stock at a par value of One Dollar ($1.00) per
share.

o

Pursuant to Resolution approved and adopted by the Company’s Board of
Directors, the total number of authorized shares of stock which the company
1s authorized to issue is changed to Three Million Two Hundred Fifty
Thousand (3,250,000) shares, which shall consist of Two Million Seven
Hundred Fifty Thousand (2,750,000) shares of common stock at a par value
of Seventy-Three Cents ($.73) per share and Five Hundred Thousand
(500,000) shares of preferred stock at a par value of One Dollar ($1.00) per

l share. The number and par value of the authorized preferred stock of the

Company is not affected by this change.

L

This change is made pursuant to N.R.S. 78.207.1 without the necessity of
obtaining the approval of the stockholders of the Company.

This change shall become effective upon the date of filing of this Certificate.

W

This change has been separately approved by L. Scott Walshaw,

Commissioner, Financial Institutions Division, State of Nevada, by letter dated
January 3, 2002.

" IN WITNESS THEREOF, we do hereby execute this Certificate of Valley Bancorp, on the
[ day of January, 2002.

-

[
Barry L. Hulin, President




.

STATE OF NEVADA

N

) ss:
COUNTY OF CLARK

S

On the _[[zyday of January, 2002 personall

¥ appeared before me, a Notary Public, in and for
said County and State, Barry L.Hu

lin and Dick Holtzclaw, personally known to me to be the persons
o the above instrument as President and Secretary, respectively, of
edged that they executed the foregoing instrument.

Valley Bancorp, who acknow]

"/ NOTARY PUBLIC

NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF NEVADA
B County of Clark :

Y LA RAE MORTENSEN
Appt. No. 92-1018-1
My Appt. Expires Aug. 11, 2005

P R P
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- STEPHENS, GOURLEY & BYWATER
An Association of Professional Corporations

Attorneys At Law
3636 North Rancho Drive
David A. Stephens Las Vegas, Nevada 89130
R. Vaughn Gourley* (702) 656-2355
Gordon E. Bywater Facsimile (702) 656-2776
* Also Admitted in Utah E-Mail: GBywater@lvcm.com
October 9, 2002

VIA HAND DELIVERY
AND FACSIMILE (221-9295)

LaRae Mortenson
Valley Bank

3500 W. Sahara

Las Vegas, NV 89102

Re:  Certificate of Valley Bancorp - Stock Split

Dear LaRae:

Please find enclosed a file-stamped copy of the Certificate of Valley Bancorp Filed
Pursuant to N.R.S. 78.207 and 78.209, respecting the most recent stock split. I have also
enclosed a copy of the letter from Scott Walshaw whereby he approved the stock split.

If you need anything else, please don't hesitate to call.
Sincerely yours,
STEPHENS, GOURLEY & BYWATER

c;%rm%«fg/fvmé

Gordon E. Bywater, Esq.

GEB/geb
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STATE OF NEVADA
' FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS DIVISION
l DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY
' 406 E. Second Street, Suite 3
' Carson City, Nevada 89701-4758

(775) 687-4259 ., Fax (775) 687-6909
KENNY GUINN

L. SCOTT WALSHAW
ove rmor Commissioner

January 3, 2002

Mr. Gordon Bywater, Esquire
Stephens, Gourley & Bywater
3636 North Rancho Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89130

Re: Valley Bancorp — Increase in Authorized Shares/ Decrease in Par Value

Dear Mr. Bywater:

Pursuant to the provisions of NRS 661.035.1 the request to increase the number of
authorized shares of Valley Bancorp from 2,500,000 shares to 2,750,000 is hereby

approved. Additionally, this office hereby approves the proposed decrease in the par
value from $.80 to $.73.

Please provide this office with a copy of the filed amendment to the articles of
incorporation.

tt Walshaw
issioner

Cc: Barry Hulin
Valley Bancorp

JAN 0 8 2002

l G
' Yours truly,

oz 8§ I3t
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BYLAWS T
of
VALLEY BANCORP

A Nevada Bank Holding Cdmpany

ARTICLEL
OFFICES

1.01 PRINCIPAL OTFICE

The Board of Directors shall fix the locatioa of the principal executive office of |
Bancorp (hereinafter, the "Bank” or the "Corporation”) at any place within the State of Nev.

1.02 OTBER OFFICES

Branch or other subordinate offices may at ary time be established by the Board of Dii
at such other places, cither within or outside the State of Nevada, as it deems appropnate.

ARTICLI It
MEETING OF STOCE{HOLE}ERS

2.01 ANNUAL MEETINGS

The stockholders of the Corporation shall mee1 at lcast annually, at such date, time and
either within or outside the Siate of Nevada, as is designated by the Board of Directors
Corporation. Atsuch Annua) Meeting, directors shall be elected and any other proper busine:
be transacted. ‘ o

2.02 SPECIAL MEETINGS

Special meetings of the stockholders may be called at any time by the Board of Directo
Chairman of the Board, the Prestdent, or by any two or more stockholders owning in the agg:
not less than twenty-{ive percent (25%) of the outstar ding stock of the Corporation. Notice of
special meeting, uniess otherwise provided by law, siall be given in the same manner as for :
meetings of stockholders. ' ' '

2.03 QUORUM
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No business may be transacted at any meeting of stockholders, annual or special, 1
quorum shall be present. The presence in person or by proxy of the holders of a majority
outstanding shares cntitled to vote at any meeting shall constitute a quorum for the transa
business. If such majority is not present or represented at.any meeting of the stockhold
stockholders cntitled to vote thereat, present in person or by proxy, shall have power to adj

© meeting from time to time until such requisite amowit of vouing stock shall be present.

2.04 ADJOURNED MEETING AND NOTICE THEREOF

Any meeting of stockholders, whether or not a quorum is present, may be adjourn
time fo time by the vote of the majority of the shares, the holders of which are either pr
represented by proxy thereat, but in the absence of a guorum, except as prov:ded in Section
other business may be transacted at such meeting,.

When any meeting of stockholders, either axmual or special, 1s adjourned to anothe
place, notice need not be given of the adjourned meening if the time and place are announc
meeting at which the adjournment is taken. However, whenany meeting of stockholders 1s ac
for more than 45 days from the date sct for the original meeting or, if after adjournment, a ne
date 1s fixed for the adjourned meeting, notice of any <uch adjourned meeting shall be given
case of an original meeting. At any adjourned meeting the Corporation may transact any
which may have been transacted at the original meeting. :

2.05 NOTICE OF MEETINGS

All notices of meetings of stockholders shall be sent or otherwise given in accorda
Section 2.06 to each stockholder entitled to vote thereat not less than 10 or more than 60 da:
the date of the meeting. Such notice shall state the p.ace, date and hour of the mee‘ting an

(@  Inthe case of a special meeting, the general naturc of the business to be i
and no other business may be wansacted; or :

(b) In the case of the annual meeting, those matters which the Board of Directors, &
of the mailing of the notice, intends to present for ection by the stockholders, but, subj
provisions of applicable law, any proper matter may b presented at the meeting for such ac
notice of any meeting at which directors are to be clected shall include the proposed n
directors and the names of nominees intended at the 1ime of the notice to be presented by 1
of Directors for election, and the procedure for making writlen nominations.

If action is proposed to be taken at any meeting for approvél of (i) a contract or tr
in which a director has a direct or indirect interest, putsuant 1o Section 78.140 of the Nevad
Statutes ("NRS"), (i) an amendment of the Articles of Incorporation, (1i1) a reorganizat
Corporation, (iv) a voluntary dissolution of the Corpcration, or (v) a distribution in dissclu
than in accordance with the rights of outstanding p-eferred shares, the notice shall alsc
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general nature of that proposal.
2.06 MANNER OF GIVING NOTICE

Notice of a meeting of stockholders shall be wiven either personally or by first clas
facsimile or telegraphic or other written commurication, charges prepaid, addressed
stockholder at the address of that stockholder appearing on the books of the Corporation o
by the stockholder to the Corporation for the purpose of notice. Notice shall be deemed to ha
given at the time when delivered personally or depesited in the mail or sent by facsimil
telegram or other means of written communication. :

An affidavit of mailing or other means of giving any notice in accordance with th
provisions, executed by the Secretary, Assistant Secre.ary or other transfer agent shall be prir
evidence of the giving of the notice.

2.07 PROXIES

Every person entitled to vote shares or execut: written consents has the right to do s
in person or by one or more persons authorized by-a written proxy executed and dated
stockholder and filed with the Secretary of the Corporation prior to the convening of any me
the stockholders at which any such proxy is to be ust:d or prior to the use of such written ¢
A validly executed proxy which does not state that it is irrevocable continues in full force ar
unless (a) revoked by the person executing it, before thie vote pursuant thereto, by a writing d
to the Corporation stating that the proxy is revoked or by a subsequent proxy executed b
attendance at the meeting and voting in person by, tie person executing the proxy; or (b)
notice of the death or incapacity of the maker of the proxy is received by the Corporation be
vote pursuant thereto is counted; provided however, that no proxy shall be valid after the ex

of six months from the date of its cxecution unless nther\moe provided in the proxy or of
provided in Section 78.3355 of the NRS

2.08 VOTING LIST

The officer or agent having charge of the stock ledger (also known as the stock transt
for shares of the Corporation shall make, at least 10 deys before each meeting of stockholder
adjournment thereof, arranged in alphabetical order, with the address of and the number ¢
held by each, which list, for a period of 10 days prior to the meeting, shali be kept on fi
principal office of the Corporation and shall be subje:t to ms;ncctwn by any stockholder at
during usual business hours. :

(a) The list shall also be produced and kept cipen at the time and place of the stoc
meeting and shall be subject to the inspection of any stockholder during the wholc tin

meeting.
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(b) The original stock ledger shall be prima facie evidence as to who are the stockl
entitled to examine the lists or stock ledger or to vote at any meeting of stockholders.

(©) Failure to comply wnh the requirements of this Section docs not at" fectthe v al
any action taken at the meeting.

(d})  Anagent in charge of the stock ledger-who.fails to preparc the list of stockk
orto keep it on file for a period of 10 days, or produce and keep it open for inspection at the ir
as provided in this Section, is liable to any stockholder suffering damage on account of the fa

the extent of the damage.
2.09 NOMINATIONS FOR DIRECTORS

Nominations for election of members of the soard of Directors may be made by the
of Directors or by any stockholder of any outstand ng class of capital stock of the Corp
entitled to vote for the election of directors. Nominations shall be made in writing and ¢
delivered or mailed to the Chairman of the Board of t2¢ Corporation not less than 21 days n.
than 60 days prior to any meeting of the stockholijers called for the election of the di
provided, however, that if less than 21 days notice f the meeting is given to stockholde
nomination shall be mailed or delivered to the Chairman of the Board not later than the «
business of the tenth day following the day on which the notice of the meeting was 1

Such nomination shall contain the following information, to the extent known to then
stockholder: {a) the name and address of each propose 1 nominee; (b) the principal occupatior
proposed nominee; () the number of sharcs of capital stock of the Corporation owned
proposed nominee; and (d) the name and residence eddress of the nominating stockholder

2.10 VOTING

The stockholders entitled to notice of any mecting or to vote at any such meeting sl
be those persons in whose name shares stand on the stock ledger of the Corporation on th
date determined in accordance with Section 2,11, sutyject to any provisions of law relating t
of shares held by a fiduciary in the name of a corporation or in joint ownership.

The stockholders' vote may be by voice or baliot. On any marter, any stockholder r
part of the shares in favor of the proposal and refrain from voting the remaining shares or v
against the proposal, but if the stockholder fails to spe-ify the number of shares which the sto
is voting affirmatively, it will be conclusively presurm.ed that the stockholder's approving vo
respect to all shares that the stockholder is entitled 10 vate.

in deciding on questions at mceti_ngs ofstockl{.bldcrs, each stockholder shall be entitl

vote for each share of stock held. If a quorum is pr:sent, the affirmative vote of a major;
votes cast shall decide each matter submitted to the stockholders, shares presented at the me
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entitled to votc on any matter shall be the act of the stockholders, unless a larger vote ar vo
class is required by the NRS, the Articlcs of Incorpcration or these Bylaws.

In the election of directors, the candidates reveiving the highest numbcr of votes cas
the number of directors to be elected, shall be elected.

Cumulative voting shall not exist with respect o shares of Common Stock of the Bank,
as hereinafier provided. Cumulative voting rights shell exist with regard to the election of dis
but only if at least one stockholder gives notice prior to the commencement of voting of his
intention to cumulate votes. If such notice is given, euch stockholder has a number of votes'e
the number of shares owned by such stockholder, mul iplied by the number of directorsto be e
and each stockholder may cumulate such votes for a single candidate or dmmbutc such votes
as many candidates as the stockholder deems approt Tiate.

2.11  RECORD DATE

The Board of Direciors may fix, in advance, a record date for the determination
stockholders entitled 1o notice of any meeting or it vote, or entitled to receive payment
dividend or other distribution, or any allotment of rights, or to exercise rights in respect of an:
lawful action, The record date so fixed shall not be more than 60 days nor less than 10 days
the date of the meeting, nor more than 60 days prior to any other action. When a record dat
fixed, only stockholders of record on that date are ertitled to notice of and to vote at the mu
or to receive the dividend, distribution or allotment of ghts, or to exercise the rights, as the ca
be, notwithstanding any transfer of shares on the books of the Corporation after the record ¢
determination of stockholders of record entitled to notice of or 10 vote at a meeting of stockh
shall apply to any adjournment of the meeting unless 1the Board of Directors fixes$ a new recos
for the adjourned meeting. The Board of Directors shall fix a pew record date if the mee
adjourned for more than 45 days.

If no record date is fixed by the Board of Directors, the record date for deterx
stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of stockholders shall be at the cl
business on the business day next preceding the day or. which notice is given, or, if notice is w
the close of business on the business day next preceding the day on which the meeting is hek
record date for determining stockholders for any purpese shall be at the close of business on t]
on which the Board of Directors adopts the resolution related thereto, or if later, the sixtieth
day prior to the date of such other action.

2.12  CONDUCT OF MEETINGS

The President or, in his absence, the Chairpiérson of the Board of Directors shall
Chairperson at all meetings of the stockholders.

The Chairperson shall conduct each meeting in a business like and fair manner, but sh:
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be obliged to follow any technical, formal or parfiarnentary rules or principles of procedt
Chairperson's rulings on procedural matters shall be conclusive. Without limiting the generali
foregoing, the Chairperson shall have all the powers sually vested in the Chairperson of'a1
of stockholders. ,

2.13  CONSENT OF ABSENTEES

The transactions of any meeting of stockholdeurs, however called and noticed, and w
held, are as vahid as though done at a meeting duly held after regular call and notice, if aqu
present either in person or by proxy, and if, either before or after the meeting, each of the
entitled to vote, not present in person or by proxy, signs a waiver of notice or a consen
holding of the meeting or any approval of the minutes thereof. Al such waivers, cons
approvals shall be filed with the records of the Cor poratlon or made part of thc minute:
meeting. :

- Attendance of a person at a meeting shall cons:itute a waiver of notice of and presence
meeting, except when the person objects, at the beginning of the meeting, 10 the transaction
business because the mecting is not lawfully called or convened and except that attenda)
meeting is not a waiver of any right to object to the ccnsideration of matters required to be is
in the notice but not so included, if such objection is expressly made at the meeting.

Neither the business to be transacted at, nor ihe purpose of, any fegu_lar or special
of stockholders need be specified in any written waiver of notice, except that if action 1s t
proposed to be taken for approval of any of those matters specified in paragraph 2.05 (b) the
of notice or consent shall state the general nature of “he proposal

2.14 ACTIONBY WRITTEN CONSENT W ITH JUT A MI:ETING

Any action which may be taken atany armual T specz ial meeting of stockholders may 1
without a meeting and without prior notice, if a consent in writing, setting forth the action s
is signed by the holders of the outstanding shares having not less than the minimum number
that would be necessary to authorize to take such act on at a meeting at which all shares en
vote thereon were present and voted, or their proxies.

In the case of' the election of directors, such v;ﬁtten consent shall be effective onlyt
by the holders of all the outstanding shares entitled tp vote for election of directors.

All such consents shall be filed with the Secrerary of the Corporation and shall be ma’
in the records of the Corporation. Any stockholder giving a written consent may revoke the
by a writing received by the Secretary of the Corporétion before written consents of the nu
sheres required to authorize the proposed action hav- been filed with the Secretary.
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If the unanimous written consent of all stockholders entitled to vote shall not have
received, the Sccretary shall give promptnotice of the corporate action approved by the stockh
without meeting. In the case of approval of (a) contricts or transactions in which a Director
direct or indirect financial interest, (b) indemnification of agents of the Corporation,
reorganization of the Corporation, and (d) a distributicn in dissolution other than in accordanc
the rights of the outstanding preferred shares, the novice shall be given at least 10 days beft
consummation of any action authorized by that approval, pursuant 1o Section 2.05 .

2.15 INSPECTORS OF ELECTION

In advance of any meeting of stockholders, the Board of Directors may appoint any p
other than nominecs for office as inspectors of electicn to act at such meeting and any adjour
thereof, 1f no inspectors of election are appointed, or if any persons so appoihtcd fail to apj
fail or refuse to act, the Chairperson of any such meeling, and on the request of any stockho
stockholder's proxy, shall appoint inspectors of election at the meeung. The number of insg
shall be three. A vacancy may be filled by the Chatrperson. '

The duties of such inspectors shall include: determining the number of shares outstandi
the voting power of each; the shares represented at the meeting; the existence of a quory
authenticity, validity and the effect of the proxies; receiving votes, ballots or consents; heari
determining all challenges and questions in any way arising in connection with the right t
counting and tabulating all votes or consents; determir ing when the polls shall close; determin
result; and doing such acts as may be proper to corduct the election or vote with faines:
stockholders. The decision, act or certification of a majomy of the inspectors is cﬁ'cctw:
respects as the decision, act or certification of all. -

ARTICLE TN
DIRECTURS

3.01 STANDARD OF CARE

Each director shall exercise such powers and ¢ therwise perform such duties in good fe
in a manner such director reasonably believes to be in or not opposed to the best interest:
Corporauon and with such care, including reasonabl: inquiry, using ordinary prudence asa
in like position would use under sumlar circumstanc 2.

302 NUMBER AND QUALIFICATIONS OF DIRECTORS -

The property and business of this Corporatica shall be managed generally by the B
Directors. Except as otherwise permitted by the banking laws and regulations applicable
Corperation, the number of directors shall not be less than five (5) nor more than fifteen (1
no more than two being employees of the Corporatior., until changed by amendment to these
orby a resolution of the stockholders at any annual or special meeting thereofl The iaitial d
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shall hold officc upul the first meeting of the Annual .‘.'itockhclders Mecting.

The exact number of direc tors shall be fixed from time to time by reqo}utaon of a maj
the full Board of Directors. The number of directors me v be increased or decreased from time
by resolution of the Board of Directors or stockholders or by amendment to these Bylaws,
decrease shall have the effect of shortening the term of any incumbent director, nor decre
number of dircctors to less than five (5). Directors nzed not be residents of the State of N

The directors shall be elected cach year at the annual mecting of stockholders or at a
meeting called and held for that purpose. Each director shall be appointed to serve for aterm
years until his successor shall be appointed and qualiied. The terms of the directors shall |
such that approximately one-third of the total numbe:’ of directors 1s elected each year.

No person is cligible to serve as a director of this Corporation unless he or she is a b
owner of the stock of the Corporation or its parent corporation. The stock owned must hav
fair market value of $1,000 or more as of the date it vias purchased or the date the person't

a director. The stock must be fully paid and not pled L<:d

Without the prior consent of a majority of T,'he Board of Directors, no person sl
member of the Board of Directors of this Corporatioa:

(a) Who 1s a director, officer, employee, 2gent, nominee or attorney of any
corporation, bank holding company, thrift, savings and loari association or other type of it
engaged in business in Nevada and providing financial services in competition to the Corpo
of any affiliate or subsidiary thereof, other than this Corporation or any of s subsidiaries or
or o -

(b) Who was oris thc nominee of anyone whe: has a contract, a.n"angument or unde
with any such business or with any officer, director, employee, agent, nominee, attorne:
representative thercof that he will reveal or in any way utilize information obtained as a d
that he will, directly or indirectly, attempt to effect or encourage any action of this Corpx

303 POWERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Subject to the provisions of Chapters 78, 65 and 661 of the NRS and any limitati
Articles of Incorporation and these Bylaws relating to an action required to be approv
stockholders or by the outstanding shares, the business and affairs of the Corporatio:
managed and all corporate powers shall be exercised by or under the direction of the
Directors. The Board of Directors may delegate the management of the day to day opera
business of the Corporation to the officers of the Corporation, ‘provided that the business
of the Corporation shall be managed and all corporale powers shall be exercised under tt
dircetion of the Board of Directors. Without prejuciice to such general powers, but sut
same limitations, it is hereby expressly declared that the Boaxd of Directors shall have the
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powers in addition to the other POWETS enumeratcd in these Bylaws and in the laws of the ‘%t
Nevada: -

(2) To select and remove any officer, agent or employee of the Corporation; to preserit
powers and duties for each person that are consistent with law and with the Articles of Incorpo
and these Bylaws; to fix such person's comnensatxon and to require from such person secur:
faithful service;

(b) To conduct, manage and control the affairs and business of the Corporation and 1o
such rules and regulations therefor not inconsistent with law, or with the Articles of Incorpo
or these Bylaws as they deem best; -

(¢) To adopt, make and use a corporate seal, and to prescribe the forms of certific:
stock, and to alter the form of such seal and of such cer ificates from time to nrne as in their jud
they may deem best;

(d) To authorize the issuance of shares of stock of the Corporation from time to time
such terms and for such consideration as may be laveful and to take such other actions in
thereto as may be authorized by the Articles of Incororation;

() To borrow money and incur indebtedness for tbe purposes of the Corporation,
cause to be cxecuted and delivered therefor, in the corporate name, promissory and capital
bonds, debentures, deeds of trust, mortgages, pledges, hypothecations or other evidences of de¢
securitics therefor and any agreements pertaining thereto; '

63 To prescribe the manner in which, and the person or persons by whom, any o
the checks, drafts, notes, contracts and ¢ther corpora:e instruments shall be executed,

() To appoint and designate, by resolution aciopted by a majority of the authorized r
of directors, one or more committees, each consisting of two or more directors, includi
appointment of alternate members of any committes: who ma.y replace any absent member
meeting of the committee; and : '

(h) Generally, to do and pcrforrﬁ gvery act or thing whatever that may pertain
authorized by the Board of Directors of a commercial bank holding company under the law:
State of Nevada. :

3.04 OATH: SUBSCRIPTION AND FILING
Each director of this Corporation, upon taking office, after the Corporationn’s TECE

Certificate of Authority to transact business as a banls from the Nevada Commissioner of Fi
Institutions, shall make an oath or affinpation that: .
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(a) He or she will, so far as the duty devolves uyon him, dili gently and honestly admir
affairs of the Corporation, and will not knowingly violate, or willingly permn 10 be violate
the provisions of law applicable to the Corporation; <1nd

(b)  He or she is the owner, in good fajﬂz';and in his or her own right, of the nu
shares of stock standing in his or her name on the books of the Corporation, and that the stos
hypothecated or in any way pledged as security for any loan or debt

Such oath shall be subscnbed by the director and ccrtlﬁed by the ofﬁccr before wh
taken or by the Secretary of the Corporatlon

305 LOCATION OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at any place within the
Nevada which has been designated in the notice of meeting or if there is no.notice, at the p
executive office of the Corporation, or at a place desi znated by resolution of the Board of I
or by the written consent of all members of the Board of Directors. Any regular or special ;

is valid wherever held if held upon written consent of all members of the meenm and filed-
Secretary.

3.06 ORGANIZATION MEETING |

The President, or in his absence, the Chairperscn of the Board, upon receiving the certi
of the inspectors of election of the result of the appointment shall notify the diréctors-elect
appointment and of the time and day at which they are required 1o meet at the office
Corporation for the purpose of organizing the new Board of Directors and electing and apy
officers of the Corporation for the succeeding year. Such meeting shall be held on the da
clection or as soon thereafter as practicable, and in anv event, within 30 days thereof. If, at1
fixed for such meeting, there shall not be a quorum present, the directors present may adjc
meeting, from time to time, until a quorum 15 obtams d

3.07 REGULAR MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held without notice, no le
quarterly, at a time and place to be fixed by the Board of Directors ; provided, however, sho
day fall upon a legal holiday observed by the Corporation at its principal office, then said 1
shall be held at the same time and place on the next sueceeding full business day. Notice of’;
regular mectings of the Board of Directors is not required.

3.08 SPECIAL MEETINGS

Special mectings of the Board of Directors for any purpose or purposes may be calle:
tire by the Chairperson of the Board, the President, th2 Secretary or by the lesscr of eitheran
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of the Board of Directors or any five (5) directors.

Speciat meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held upon four (4) days written not
mail or 48 hours notice delivered personally or by telephone, facsimile or telegraph. Any such:
shall be addressed or delivered to each director at such director's address as 1t is shown upe
records of the Corporation or as may have been given to the Corporation by the director for pu
of notice or, if such address is not shown on such recerds or 1s not readily ascertainable, at the
1n which the meeting of the directors are regularly he'd. Such notice may, but need not, spec
purpose of the meetings, nor the placc if the meeting 13 to be held at the principal executi ve of
the Corporation. Notice of any meeting of the Board »f Directors necd not be given to any d
who attends the meeting without protesting the lack of potice to such director, either prior

or at its comupencement.

Notice by mail shall be deemed to have been given at the time a written notice s dej
inthe U.S. mail, postage prepaid. Any other written nutice shall be deemed 1o have been give:
ume it js persopally delivered to the recipient or is delivered to a common carrier for transm
or 1s actually transmitted by the person giving the notice by clectronic means to the rec

Oral notice shall be deemed to have been giveh at the time it is communicated, in per
telephone, facsimile or wireless, to the recipient or to-a person at the office of the recipient wk

persen giving the notice has reason to believe will promptly communicate it to the recipier

3.0  WAJVER OF NOTICE

The transactions of any meeting of the Board of Directors, however called and no
wherever held, shall be as valid as though had at 2 meeting held after regular call and no
guorum is present and if, either before or after the meeting, each of the directors pot prese;
a written waiver of notice, a consent to holding a meeting, or an approval of the m

The waiver of notice or consent need not specify the purpose of the meeting. £
waivers, consents and approvals shall be filed with the records of the Corporation or made
the minutes of the meeting. Notice of a meeting shall also be deemed given' to any direc
attends the meeting protesting before or at its comn}encemcnt, the lack of notice to thatm

3.10 ADJOURNMENT

A majority of the directors present, whether or not constituting a quorum, may adjc
meeting to another time and place. =~ .

3.1 NOTICE OF ADJOURNMENT
Notice of the time and place of holding an adjourhed meeting need not be given, u

meeting is adjourned for more than 24 hours, in whic 1 case notice of the time and place shall

‘H:
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before the time of the adjourned meeting, in the manner specified in Section 3.08, to the di
who were not present at the time of the adjournment.

312 ACTION WITHOUT MEETING -

Any action required or permitied to be taken by the Board of Directors may be.taken
ameeling, ifall members of the Board of Directors shall individually or collectively consent in
to that action. Such action by written consent shall hi:ve the same force and effect as a una
vote of the Board of Directors. Such written consent or consents shall be filed with the mir

the proceedings of the Baard of Directors.

3.13  VACANCIES

A vacancy or vacancies in the Board of Directors shall be deemed to exist in the ever
death, resignation or removal of any director, or if the Board of Directors by resolution «
vacant the office of a director for cause, or if the authiorized number of directors is increas:
the stockholders fail, at any meeting of stockholders at which any director or directors are
to elect the number of directors to be voted for at the meeting.

3.14 RESIGNATION

Any director may resign his or ber office at any time. Suchresignation shall be madeir
and shal] take effect immediately upon delivery to the President, Secretary or the Board of D
orat the time specified therein. No acceptance of a resignation shall be necessary or required
iteffective, unless expressly so provided in the resignistion. If the resignation of a directorise
at a futurc time, the Board of Directors may elect a successor to take office when the res
becomes effective. :

3.15 REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

Any director of the Corporation may be removed at any time, either with or witho
by the vote or written consent of stockholders representing not less than two-thirds of the is
outstanding capital stock entitled to voting power, pursuant to the terms-of Section 78.3.
Nevada Revised Statutes. »

No reduction of the authorized number of directors shall have the effect of remc
director before that director's term of office expires,

316 FILLING BOARD VACANCIES
Vacancies in the Board of Directors niay be filled by a majbrity of the remaining

though less than a gquorum, or by a sole remaining director; except that a vacancy creat
removal of a director by the vote or written consent of the stockholders or by a court ord:
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filled by the vote of a majority of the shares entitied o vote represented at a duly held meet
stockholders at which a2 quorum is present, or by unanimous written consent of holders

outstanding shares entitled to vate. Each director so elected shall hold office unti! the next
meeting of the stockholders and until a successor has been elected and qualified.

In the event a vacancy on the Board of Directars has not been filled by the directors
60 days of the vacancy, a director may be elected to fil. the vacancy by written consent of the t
of 2 majority of the outstanding shares eptitled to vote for the election of directors, excepting
case of a removal of a director pursuant to Section 74.335 of the NRS.

3.17 FEES AND COMPENSATION

Directors and members of committees may receive such compensation, if any, &
services, and such reimbursement for expenses, as mey be fixed or determined from ime to 1

resolution of the Board of Directors. This Section 3. 17 shall not be construed to preciude any ¢

from serving the Corporation in any other capacity as an officer, agent, employee or otherw;

receiving compensation for those services.

3.18 QUORUM AT BOARD MEETINGS

A majority of the authorized number of directors shall constitute a quorum of the B
Directors for the transaction of business, except to .1djourn as hereinafter provided. Ever
decision done or made by amajority of the directors present at a meeting duly held at which a.
1s present shall be regarded as the act of the Board of Directors, unless (a) a greater nu
required by law, by the Articles of Incorporation or »y these Bylaws or (b) the Board of
is approving committee appointments, indemnificat on of directors or contracts or transac
which a director has a direct or indirect material perional or ﬁnanual interest, in which ev

terms of Section 3.21 below shall apply.

A meeting at which a gquorum is initially present may continue to transact b
notwithstanding the voluntary withdrawal of directors, if any action taken is approved by :
majority of the required quorum for such meeting. .

3.19 MANIFESTATION OF DISSENT

A director who is present at a meeting of the Board of Directors at which actio
corporate matter is taken shall be presumed 1o bave assented to the action taken unless hi
shall be entered in the minutes of the meeting or unless he shall file his written dissent to su
with the Secretary of the meeting before the adjourniment thereof or shall forward such d
registered mail to the Secretary of the Coi‘noratwn immediately afterthe adjournment of the
Such right to dissent shall pot apply to a director whio voted in favor of such action.

320 INSPECTION BY DIRECTORS
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Every director shall have the absolule night at any reasonable time to inspect al
records and docwments of every kind and the physicz | properties of the Corporation and ez
subsidiary corporations. This inspection by a directcr may be made in person or by an au
agent or attorney and the right of inspection mch.dcs the right to copy and make exi
documents. »

321 TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN DIRECTORS AND CORPORATION

3.21.1 No contract or other transaction between the Coxporation and one or mo
dircetors or officers, or between the Corporation and 21y corporation, firm, partnership or ass
in which one or more of its directors or officers are directors or officers or are financially inr
1seither void or voidable solely for this reason or solely because any such director or officer i
at the meeting of the Board of Directors or a committee thereof which authorizes or appr
contract or transaction, or because the vote or votes of common or interested directors dre
for such purpose, if (a) the contract or transaction is fair to the Corporation at the ti
authorized or approved, and (b) the circumstances specificd in cither of the following exis

(i) The fact of the common dir(tctorship or financial interest is disc
known to the Board of Directc rs or commitiee and noted in the mint
the Board of Directors or committee authorizes, approves or rat
contract or transaction in gowd faith by a vote sufficient for the
without counting the vote or votes of such director or directors.

(i)  The fact of the common directorship or financial interest is disc.
known to the stockholders, and they approve or ratify the cor
transaction in good faith by a majority vote or written consent of stocl
holding a majority of the shares entitled to vote; the votes of the cor
interested directors or officurs shall be counted in any such
stockholders. ‘

3.21.2 Common or interested duectors may-be counted in determining the presc
quorim at a meeting of the Board of Directors or a commitiee thereof which authorizes, a
or ratifies a contract or transaction, and if the votes of the common or interested director:
counted at such meeting, then a majority of the disinterested directors may authorize, ap)
ratify a contract or transaction. ' '

3.21.3 Unless otherwise provided in the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws, it
of Directors may fix the compensation of directors fior services in any capacity.

ARTICLE IV
BOARD COMMITTEES
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4.0l GENERAL AUTHORITY

The Chairperson of the Board of Directors shall, from time to tirne, appoint such comr
of the Board of Directors as are deemed necessary o fulfill the needs of the Corporation,
appointments shall be approved by the Board of Directers. The membership of such committes
be composed of directors and/or officers or employes s of the Corporation.

Each commutice so appointed and approved sh.ll keep minutes of its proceedings whi
be available to the Board of Directors for review at aity and all times.

4.02  EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors may, in its discret’on, by resolution, constitute an Exc
Committee of the Board of Directors. The members of such Executive Committee shall be apy
by the Chairperson of the Board of Directors. Such Exccutive Committee shall be comprised ¢
to five members of the Board of Directors who will sarve at the pleasure of the Chairpersor
Board of Directors, but must be appointed at least annually. The Executive Committee shall h
power of immediate oversight and management of the business affairs of the Corporation, inc
the power to advise, direct and assist ‘the officers and employees of the Corporation b
management and decisions invelving, but not limited t:, the solvency, hqmdm and financial s
of the Corporation. The Executive Committee shall investigate, consider and recommend actic
procedures to the Board of Directors on 1ssues of major significance to the Corporatic
Executive Committee shall have such other powers and shall perform such other duties 2 the
of Directors may indicate to it in writing from time to time, The Executive Committee, howeve
have no power to declare dividends or to adopt, amend or repeal the Bylaws of the Corpo

In the absence of a duly constituted Board of D rectors Investment Committee, the Ex
Committee shall have the power to ensure adherence {0 the investment policy of the Corpora
determined by the Beard of Directors, to recommerd amendments thereto, to purchase &
securities, t cxercise authority regarding investments, und to exercise, when the Board of D
is notin session, all other powers of the Board of Directors reoardmg mv\.stments and securil
may be lawfully delegated. '

The Executive Committee shall act by a majority of the members thereof, and any act
taken by the Executive Committee within the course of its authority shall be binding
Corporation. , '

The Chairperson of the Board of Directors shall dppomt Lhc Chmrpex son of the Ex
Commultee,

The Executive Committee shall keep minutes of its meetings, and its actions shall ber
at the next regular meeting of the Board of Dircctors at which a quorum is present and an;
taken by the Board of Directors with respect thereto shall be entered into the minutes of th
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of Directors.
4.03 BOARD LOAN COMMITTEE

There shall be a Loan Committee compnsed of the President and three or more ¢
directors appointed by the Chairperson of the Board of Dircctors and approved by the B
Directors at least annually. The Loan Committee shall aave the power to discount and purchas
notes and other evidences of debt, to buy and sell bills of exchange, to examine and approv
and discounts, to exercise authorty regarding loans aid discounts, and to exercise when the
of Directors is not in session, all other powers of tie Board of Directors that may lawf
delegated. The Loan Committee shall keep minutes of its meetings, and such minutes s
submitted at the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors at which a quorum is prese
any action taken by the Board of Directors with respect thereto shall be entered into the mir
the Board of Directors. The Loan Committee will rece mmend 111@ Bank's house lending limit
Board of Directors for final approval as approprmtc

4.04 BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee shall consist of not less than three outside directors who are
officers nor employees of the Corporation and are frez from any relationship that, in the opi
the Board of Directors, would interfere with the exercise by such director of independent ju
as a committec member. No director who is an affiliate of the Corporation or an officer or en
of the Corporation shall be qualified for Audit Committee membership. A majorxty of th
Committee shall constitute a guorum. :

The Audit Committee shall assist the Beard of Dircctors in fulfilling its responsibilitie:
Corporation’s accounting and financial reporting pracices and provide a channel of commuy
between the Board of Directors and the Corporation's independent auditors.

4.05 COMPENSATION AND NOMINATIONS CGMMITTEE

The Compensation and Nominations Committee shall consist of the Chairperson of the
the President and no less than three outside directors appointed by the Chairperson of the E
Directors and approved by the Board of Director: at least annually. The Compensat)
Nominations Committee shall be responsible for studying and reviewing compensation and |
for all existing and new employees of the Bank and for recommending compensation.and
levelsto the Board of Directors for officers and emplo rees, except that the compensation and |
of the President shall be considered by the Compensation and Nominations Committee out
President’s presence, The absence of the President from the Compensation and Nom:
Committee while it is considering the President’s compensation and benefits shall not p
quorum from being present. The Compensation and Nominations Committee shall also study,
interview and recommend prospective candidates fcr nomination to the Board of Director:
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The Compensation and Nominations Comuniittee shall act by a mé‘omy of the m
thereof, and any action duly taken by the Compcnsatlc»n and Nominations Co'mmttce shall bet
on the Corporation.

The Compensation and Nominations Comumiitee shall keep miputes of its meetings,
actions shall be reported at the next reguiar meeting of the Board of Directors at which a quc
present and any action taken by the Board of Directors with respect thereto shall entered i
minutes of the Board of Directors. o

ARTICLL: V
OFFICERS

501 OFFICERS

The officers of the Corporation shall be a Chairperson of the Board, a President, a Sex
a Chicf Financial Officer, one or more Vice Presidens, and such other officers as from time-
may be recommended by the President and approved by the Board of Directors as neces.
desirable to properly manage the business of the Corporation,

502 ELECTION AND TERM

All officers of the Corporation shall be elecied annually by the Board of Director:
regular organizational meeting held immediately afte” the annual meeting of the stockholders
election of officers is not held at such meeting, such ¢lection shall be held as soon thereafter
be convenient. Each officer shall hold office untif h's or her successor has been duly elect
qualified, unti] his or her death, until he or she shall r¢sign, or until he or she shall be remove
office as hereinafter provided. An officer elected or appointed shall serve at will; such elec
appointment shall not of itself create any contract rigats. Nothing contained herein howeve
restrict the Board of Directors or the President, with the approval of the Board of Directors
entering into an employment contract with an officer, f:>rovided such contract specifically defi:
rights and duties of the partics thereto in the event that the officer is not reelected to his
position during the term of the contract. :

5.03 DUTIES AND POWERS OF OFFICERS

The duties and powers of officers of the Corpo1 ation shall beas follows and as may fro:
to time be set by resolution of the Board of Directors; -

5.03.1 Chairperson of the Board. Tae Board of Directors shall elect one
members to be Chairperson of the Board of Directors to serve at the pleasure of the Bc
Directors. The Chairperson, if present, shall preside over all meetings of the Board of Directo:
Chairperson of the Board of Directors shall supervise the carrying out of the policies adoy
approved by the Board of Directors, shall have the spacific powers conferred by these Bylav
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shall also have and may exercise such further pO\NCrS and duties as ﬁfom time to time
conferred upon, or assigned by the Board of Dxrectorw

5.03.2 Vice szaz'rper.s-on of the Board. The Board of Directors may appoin
its members to be Vice Chairperson to serve at the pleasure of the Board. In the absenc:
Chairperson, the Vice Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directc
supervise the carrying out of policies adopted or appraved by the Board of Directors, and w
the powers of the Chairperson. The Vice Chairperson shal) have and may exercise such pov
duties as from time to time may be uonfcrred upon or ussxgned by the (,haxrperbon or by th
of Directors.

5.03.3 President. Subject 1o such powers, if any, as may be given by the I
Directors 1o the Chairperson of the Board, the Board of Directors shall elect a President w
be the Chief Executive Officer and shall bave, subizct 10 the control of the Board of D:
general supervisiop, direction and control of the businss, officers and staff of the Corporatio
absence of both the Chairperson of the Board and the Vice Chairperson, or if there is n
President shall preside at all meetings of the stockholders and at all meetmgs of the E
Directors. :

The President has the general powers and dut:es of management usually vested in t}
of Chief Executive Officer of a Corporation and such. other powers and duties as may be fr
to ume conferred upon or assigned to hlm or her by- he Board of Directors.

The President shall serve as a member of the Fioard of Directors and shall always be i
in the list of nominations submitted by the Board of L)u—ectors w0 the stockho lders for the el¢
Directors.

The Board of Directors, by proper resolution and upon a determination that such actic
be in the best interests of the Corporation, may spfit the office of Chief Executive Off
President and the rights and duties pertaining therete between two .persons;

5034 Executive Vice President. D[on the rec onuncndatmn of the Presi
Board of Directors may appoint one or more Executive Vice Presidents. Each Executi
President shall have such powers and duties as may be assigned by the President or |
Directors. One Executive Vice President shall be desi gnated by the Board of Directors in the
ur unavailability of the President, to perform the duiies of the President.

5.03.5 Other Officers, Upontecommendation of the President, the Board of |
may appoint a Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer, Sceretary and one or more Senior Vice Pr
Vice Presidents and other officers of the Corporatioy; as, in the President's judgment, are n
or desirable for the proper operation of the Corporation. Each such officer shail have such pe
duties as may be aysigned by the President or the Board of Directors.

18

129 o) R3S




5.03.6 Treasurer. The Treasurer shall be the Chief Financial Officer
Corporation and shall be responsible for all of the filiancial systems in use in the Corporati
shall keep and maintain, or cause to be kept and main‘ained, adequate and correct books and
ofthe properties and business transactions of the Corporation, including accounts of asscts, lial
receipts, disbursements, gains, losses, capital, retained earnings and shares, and shall send o
to be sent to the stockholders of the Corporation ind the regulatory authoritics such fi
statements and reports as are by law. or these Bylaws require to be sent to them. The b
account shall at all times be open to inspection by any directors of the Corporation.

The Treasurer shall deposit all monies and other valuables in the name and to the cred
Corporation with such depositories as may be desigrated by the Board of Directors. The Tr
shall disburse funds of the Corporation as may be orcered by the Board of Directors, shall re
the President and directors, whenever they request iv, an account of all transactions engage
Treasurer and of the financial condition of the Corporation, and shall have such other pow
perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the President or the Board of Directors.

5.03.7 Assistant Treasurer. The Assistant Treasurer shall, in the absence or di
of the Treasurer, or in the event of such officer's refusal 10 act, perform the duties and exer
powers of the Treasurer and shall have such additionu powers and discharge such duties as
assigned from time to time by the President or by the Board of Directors.

5.03.8 Secretary. The Secretary shall be the same individual as the Treasur
Secretary shall keep or cause to be kept, at the principal executive office or such other plac
Board of Directors may order, a book of minutes of all meetings of the stockholders, the B
Directorg and its committees, with the time and place: of holding, whether regular or specia
special, how authorized, the notice thereof given, the names of those present or represe
stockholder's meetings and the proceedings thereof. The minutes of each meeting of stock
and of all regular and special meetings of the Board ¢ Directors shall be signed by the Char
of the Board angd attested by the Secretary. The minites of all regular zmd special meeting
Board of Directors may also be swned by each. direcior present. »

The Secretary shal] also keep, or cause to be kept, at the principal éxecutive office or b
office of the Corporation, the organizational doc iments of the Corporation, the Arti
Incorporation and all amendments thereto, the Bankiag Charter, the returns of elections, a ¢
copy of the Bylaws and all amendments thereto, the stock ledger or duplicate stock ledpe
other documents required to be kept in accordance vith Section 78.105 of the NRS,

The Sceretary shall keep, or cause to be kept, it the principal executive office or at th

of the Corporation's transfer agent or registrar, if on be appointed, a share register, or a di

share register, showing names of the stockholders aud their addresses, the number and cl

shares held by each, the number and date of certificate s issued for the same, cmd the number:
of cancellation of every certificate surrendered for cancellation.
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The Secretary shall give, or caunse to be given; notice of all meetings of the stockho
of the Board of Directors required by the Bylaws or by law to be gwen and shall keep the s
Corporation i safe custody.

5.04 OFFICER COMPENSATION

The salaries of the officers, Vice Presidents aud above, shall be fixed from time to tit
Board of Dircctors and no officer shall be prevented from receiving such componaatlon by
the fact that such officer is also a director of the Coiporation.

5.05 OFFICERS HOLDING MORE THAN ONE OFFICE

Any two or more offices may be held by the same person, but no officer shall
acknowledge or verify any instrument in more than ene capacity, and the offices of Presi
Secretary shall not be held by the same person.

5.06 INABILITY TO ACT

In the case of the absence or inability to act.of any officer of the Coxporation ar
person herein authorized to act in his ot her place, the President may, from time to-time, del
powers or duties of such officer 1o any other officer, or with approval of the Board of Dire
any director or other person whom the President may: select.

5.07 REMOVAL

Subject to the rights, if any, of an officer under any contract of employment, or any aj
law or ruling, any officer may be removed at any time, either with or without cause, by the
Directors, by the President except in the case of the internal auditor or other officer whe
dircctly to the Board of Directors, or by any officer upon whom such power may be conferr
President or Board of Directors. :

5.08 RESIGNATION

Any officer may resign at any time by giving wiitten notice to the President or the Che
of the Corporation, but without prejudice to the rights if any, of the Corporation under any
to which the officer 13 a party. Any such resignation shall take effect immediately uponreceiy
notice regardless of its specified time, unless the President or Chairperson authorizes a later
date. The acceptance of such resignation shall not be’ necessar} to make 1t cffectwc
5.09 VACANCIES

A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification or
cause may be filied by the Board of Directors, upon recommendation from the Presiden
unexpired portion of the prior officer's term. Vacancies may be filled at any meeting of the
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Directors.

ARTICLE VI
INDEMNIFIC ATION

6.01 DEFINITIONS

For purposes of this Section, "agent” includes aty person who is or was a director,
employee or other agent of the Corporation, or who is or was serving at the request
Corporation as a director, officer, employee or agert of another foreign or domestic corp
partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, or was a director, officer, employce or 2
a foreign or domestic corporation which was a prec ceessor corporation of the Corporatic
another enterprise at the request of such predeccusor corporation; "proceeding” incluc
threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proce eding, whether civil, ciminal, adminis
arbitration or investigative; and "expenses" includes, without limitation, attorneys’ fees e
expenses of establishing a right to indemnification pursuant to law.

6.02 EXTENT OF INDEMNIFICATION

The Corporation shall, to the maximum extert permitted by the NRS, advance expe
and indemnify each of its agents against expenses, judgments, fines, settlement and other a
actually and reasonably incurred in connection with any proceeding arising by reason of the -
such person is or was an agent of the Corporation. '

The Corporation shall pay the expenses of officers and directors incurred in defendin
or cririnal action, suit or proceeding as they are incurred and in advance of the final dispos
the action, suit or proceeding upon the receipt of an "indertaking by or on behalf of the dirn
officerto repay the amount if it is ultimately determined by a court of competent jurisdiction tl
officer or divector is not entitled to be indemnified by tne Corporation. The provisions of this
do not affect any rights to the advancement of expecnses to which corporate personnel otk
directors or officers may be entitled under any contrect or othemwc by law.

Notwithstanding the forgoing, the provisions o thlS Amcle Vare subj ectto therequi
and limitations sct forth in state and federal lawe, rule, regulations, or orders re
indemnification and prepayment of legal expenses, mcludmn Section 18(k) of the Federal
Insurance Act and Part 359 of the Federal Deposit Ins: arance Corporation's rules and regulat
any successor regulations thcrao :

6.03 INSURANCE
The Corporation shall have the power to purd{lasc' and maintain ipsurance on behal

agentof'the Corporation against any liability asserted azainst or incurred by the agent in such ¢
or arising out of the agent's status as such whether or not the Corporation would have the ¢
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indemnify the agent against such liability under the provisions of Section 6.02.

ARTICLE VH .
REPORTS AND RECORDS

7.01 INSPECTION OF CORPORATE RECORD!3

The Corporation shall keep at'its principal executive office, a record of its stock!
giving the names and addrcsses of all stockholders ard the number and class of shares held
stockbolder. Any person who has been a stockholder »f record of the Corporation for at Jeas
months immediately preceding his demand or anv judgment creditor or any stockhe
stockholders of the Corporation holding at least five percent (5%) in aggregate of the outs
voting shares of the Corporation shall have the right. as provided by the NKS to:

(a) Inspect and make extracts of the record of stockholders’ names and addresses a1
holdings during usual business hours upon five business days prior notice to the Corpora

() Inspect, from the transfer agent, if any, for “he Corporation, upon five business da
written demand, and upon the tender of its usual charges for such list (the amount of which
shall be stated to the stockholder by the transfer agent upon request), a list of the stockholder
and addresses who are entitled to vote for the election of directors and their stockholdings,
most recent record date for which it has been compilzd, or as of a date specn" ed by the stoc
subsequent to the date of demand.

Any delay by the Corporation or the transfer aglent in complying with a demand under
7.01(a) beyond the time limits specified therein shall give the stockholder or stockholders:
making the demand a right to obtain from a court of proper jurisdiction, upon the filing of a
complaint in the proper county, and after a hearing, 1otice of which shall be given to such
and in such manner as the court may direct, an order postponing any stockholders' mecting pr
poticed for a period equal to the period of such deley. Such right shall be 1n addition to a
legal or equitable remedies to which the stockholders may be entitied.

Any judgment creditor, stockholder or stockholders who must resort to court
information authorized to be released hereunder, and are successfu] upon final appeal in suc
shall be fully reimbursed by the Corporation for all expanses and costs, including reasonable a
fees, of bringing such action.

7.02  INSPECTION OF BYLAWS
The Corporation shall keep in its principal officc the original coi;y of these By

amended to date, which shall be open to mspc,cnon Dy stockholders at all reasonable time
office hours. .
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7.03  OTHER CORPORATE RECORDS

The accounting books and records and minutes of proceedings of the stockholders
Board of Directors shall be kept at such place or plzces designated by the Board, or in the
of such designation, at the principal executive office: of the Corporation. The minutes shall
in written form and the accounting books and records shall be kept either in written form o
other form capable of being converted into written form.

Subject to the restrictions found in Section' 7.05, the minutes and accounting box
records shall be open to inspection upon written demnand of any stockholder or holder of ¢
trust certificate, which demand is reasonably related to the holder's interests as a stockhold
the holder of a voting trust certificate. The inspecticn may be made in person or by an aut
agent or attorney, and shall include the right to copy and make extracts. These rights of ing
shall extend to the records of each subsidiary corpo* ition of thu Corporatlon

7.04 INSPECTION BY DIRECTORS

Every director shal]l have the absolut° right at any reasonable time to mspect all
records and docurments of every kind and the physical properties of the C orpc)ranon and eac
subsidiary corporations. This inspection by a directer may be made in person or by an a;
attorney and the right of inspection includes the right to copy and make extracts of docume

7.05 RESTRICTIONS ON INSPECTION

The rights of persons who are nof directors to inspect the books, records, minutes am
official records and documents of the Corporation enumerated in this Article shallnot extend t
books, records. minutes and documents which are provected by the privacy rights of deposiic
other banking customers, by state and federal laws and regulations concerning regulatory repo
matters, by laws protecting client-attorney and othe: confidenuality privileges, by the ne
management for competitive confidentiality when that confidentiality is compromised by the i«
or when, in the judgment of the President, granting the request would be detrimental to tt
interests of the Corporation. The President shall make the final management decision on gran

denying access; disputes shall be referred. to the Exccutive Commitiee or to the entire Bo
Directors for decision. ~

%R’NCLE ¥ HE
SYOCK AND STOCK CERTKE‘ICATELS

8.01 STOCK CERTIFICATES

Stock certificates or certificates for shares of the capital stock of the Corporation sk
issued to cach stockholder when those shares are fully paid. All certificates shall be signed in the
of the Corporation by the President or Vice President and by the Secretary or any Assistant Secr
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or by any other officer appointed by the Board of Directors for that purposc, certifying the n
of sharcs and the class or series of shares owned by the stockholder, o the event any officer, v
agent or registrar who has signed or whose facsimile signature has been placed on a certificat
have ceased to be that officer, transfer agent or registrar before that certificate is issued, it 1
issued by the Corporation with the same effect as if that person were an ofﬁcer transfer- ay

registrar at the date of issue.
802 TRANSFER OF STOCK

Shares of stock shall be transferable on the bioks of the Corporation, and a stock t
book, also known as a stock ledger, shall be kept in which all transfers of stock shall be rec
Every person becoming a stockholder by such transfer sha.ll in proportion to his shares, suc

- all rights of the prior holder of such shares.

803 LOST CERTIFICATES

Any person claiming a certificate of stock to be lost or destroyed shall make an affic
affirmation of that fact and advertise the same 1n such-manner as the Board of Directors may 1
and the Board of Directors may, in its discretion, require the owner of -the lost or de:
certificate, or his or her legal representative, to give the Corporation a bond sufficient to ind
the Corporation against any claim that may be made against it on account of the alleged loss
such certificate. A new certificate of the same tenor and for the same number of shares as

alleged to be lost or destroyed may be issued withoui. reqmnng any bond when in the judg
the Board of Directors, it is proper to do so. ~

8.04 GENERAL BOARD AUTHORITY

The Board of Directors shall have all of the ti zhts, power and authority conferred up
Article [V of the Articles of Incorporation and by the laws of the c«}tatc of Nevada in regar
Corporation's issuance of stock.

AR?ECLE IX ‘
é"F NERAL CORPORATE MATTERS

9.01 RECORD DATE FOR PURPOSES OTHER THAN NOTICE AND VOTING

For purposcs of determining the stockholders entitled to receive payment of any divi
other distribution or allotment of any rights or entitled to exercise any rights in respect of a
lawful action (otber than action by stockholders by written consent without a meeting), the
Directors may fix, in advance, a record date Which shall not be more than 60 or not less than
hefore any such action, and in that case only stockholders of record on the date so fixed are
10 exercise the rights, as the case may be, notwithstunding any transfer of any shares on th
of the Corporation after the record date so fixed, except as otherwise provided in the NR!
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Board of Directors does not so fix a record date, the date for determining stockholders :
purpose shall be the close of business on the day op which the Board of Directors ado

applicable resolution.
9.02 ENDORSEMENT OF DOCUMENTS; CONTRACTS:

Subject to the provisions of applicable law, ¢ny check, draft or other orders of pay:
money, note, mortgage, evidence of indebtedness, contract, share certificate, conveyance, <
instrument in writing and any assignment or endorsements thereof executed or entered into b
the Corporation and any other person, shall be signec. or endorsed by such person or person:
such manner as, from time 10 time, shall be determined by the Board of Directors and, ur
authorized by the Board of Directors, no officer, ageni or employee shall have any power or ai
to bind the Corporation by any contract or engagemeant ot to pledge its credit or to rcnder

for any purpose or amount.

Any such instruments, when signed by the President or Executive Viee Presic
Treasurer, Scnior Vice President, or Vice President, or any Assistant Treasurer of the Corp
or when stamped with a facsimile signature of such appropriate officers in the case ¢
certificates, shall be valid and binding upon the Corgoration in the absence.of actual knowl
the part of the other person that the signing officers had no authority to execute the same.

9035 REPRESENTATION OF SHARES OF OTHER.CORPORATIONS

The President or any other officer or officers authorized by the Board of Directos
President are each authorized to vote, represent and exercise on behalf of the Corporation &
incident to any and all shares of any other corporatitn or corporations standing in the nam
Corporation or the Corporation’s nominee. The authority herein granted may be exercised by ¢
officer in person or by any other person authorized to do so by proxy or power of attor:
executed by said officer.

§.04 CONSTRUCTION AND DEFINITIONS

Unless the context otherwise requires, the general provision, rules of construc
definitions contained in the NRS shall govern the construction of these Bylaws, Without lix
generality of this provision, the masculine gender includes the feminine and neuter, the
numbet includes the plural, the plural number includes the smffular and the term "person”
both a corporation and 2 natural person.

9.05 SEVERABILITY
Should any pa.rt clause or provision of these I3ylaws be void, inValid; inoperative Or

to law, such invalidity or defect shall not affect any other part, clause or provision hereof
remainder shall be cffective as though such part, claizse or provision had not been containe
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9.06 FISCAL YEAR
The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be the calendar y‘car,
©.07 CORPORATE SEAL

The President, the Executive V icc_Prssident;‘thé Senior Vice President, the Treas
Secretary, orany Assistant Secretary, or other officer thereunto designated by the Board of D
shall have authority to affix the corporate seal to any Jocument requiring such seal, and 1o :
same, Such scal shall be substantially in the following form: two concentric circles betwes
shall be the name of the Corporation, and in the center shall be inscribed the year of its incory

9.08 ANNUAL REPORT

The President shall cause an annual report cencerning the Corporation to be prep:
distributed to each director and stockholder of the Corporation prior to the annual me
stockholders. The President shall formally present such report to the stockholders and to the
at the annual mecting of stockholders. | '

. ARTICLI X
AMENDMENTS

10.01 AMENDMENTS BY STOCKHOLDERS

Subject to the approva) of the Commissioner of the Financial Institutions Divisior
State of Nevada, if such approval be required, new Bvlaws may be adopted or these Bylaw:
amended or repealed by the vote or written consent cf the holders of a majority of the out:
shares entitled to vote. ‘ - :

10.02 AMENDMENT BY DIRECTORS

Subject to the approval of the Commissioner of the Financial Institutions Divisior
State of Nevadae, if such approval be required, and subject to the rights of the stockho
provided in Section 10.01, these Bylaws other than a provision thereof changing the aw
number of directors, may be adopted, amended or rejrealed by the Board of Directors.

10.03 KECORD OF AMENDMENTS .
Whenever an amendment 10 or new Bylaws are adopted or repealed, the amended

Bylaws shall be certified by the Secretary or Assistan! Secretary of the Corporation and fik
minute book of the Corporation. :
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Dec 02 02 11:562 STEPHENS GUURLEY& BYWATER 702 B856235S p.-2

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY

1, THE UNDERSIGNED, DO HEREBY CERTIFY AS FOLLOWS:

That [ am the duly elected, qualified and acting Secretary of Valley Bank, a Nevada banking
corporation, and that the foregoing Bylaws were adopted as the Bylaws of the Corporation on
the /7 day of Nanwa Z/l . 2001, by the Board of Directors of said Corporation.

"IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, | have executed this Certificate and affixed the corporate seal this
(2% doy of "Juniwwry 2001

SEAL
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SUBSCRIPTION FOR COMMON STOCK Exhibit 4.1
VALLEY BANCORP

VALLEY BANCORP is offering for sale 320,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.73 per share (“Common Stock™), at a
subscription price of $12.50 per share.

The undersigned, having received and read the Offering Circular of VALLEY BANCORP, dated , 2002, hereby offers to
purchase the number of shares of the Common Stock of the Company set forth below at a subscription price of $12.50 per share, and
encloses herewith the full aggregate subscription price. Checks or money orders should be made payable to VALLEY BANCORP.

Shares subscribed fOr............cooeiiieiii e
(Minimum 800 Shares)

Aggregate purchase price (enclosed) ..........ccccoovoiiiiiiiienniiiii, $

SUBSCRIPTIONS MUST BE RECEIVED BY VALLEY BANCORP NOT LATER THAN 5.00 P.M. LOCAL TIME ON

, 2003, UNLESS THE OFFERING IS TERMINATED EARLIER OR EXTENDED. AS DESCRIBED ON THE

OFFERING CIRCULAR, SUBSCRIPTIONS WILL BE TREATED ON A FIRST-COME, FIRST-SERVED BASIS. THE COMPANY
RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REJECT ANY SUBSCRIPTION, IN WHOLE OR IN PART.

Shares purchased by the undersigned shall be registered as listed below. (If certificates for shares are to be issued in more than one
name, please specify whether ownership is to be as tenants in common, joint tenants, etc. If certificates for shares are to be issued in the
name of one person for the benefit of another, please indicate whether registration should be as trustee or custodian for such other person.)

How Shares To Be Registered (Please Print) No. of Shares
(at 312.50 per share)

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I/we have executed this Subscription, retaining a copy for my/our records, and returning a copy by mail or
delivery to:

VALLEY BANCORP
370 N. Stephanie Street
Henderson, NV 89014

Date: , 2003

(Signature) (Signature) (If shares to be issued in more than
one name)

Name (Please print or type) Name (Please print or type)

Street Address Street Address

City and State ZIP City and State ZIP

Telephone: Telephone:

Social Security No.: Social Security No.:

or Taxpayer L.D. No. or Taxpayer 1.D. No.

IF SHARES TO BE HELD IN JOINT OWNERSHIP, ALL JOINT OWNERS SHOULD SIGN THIS SUBSCRIPTION.
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Exhibit 6.1

RESOLUTION
OF THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF
VALLEY BANCORP

" (Meeting of April 24, 2002)

Amendment to Employee Stock Option Plan
The Amendment to Employee Stock Option Plan to increase the number of shares

- of Bancorp stock available under the plan by 45,000 to an aggregate of 210,000 shares is
approved in all respects.

Amendment to Nonqualified Stock Option Plan
The Ament to Nonqualified Stock Option Plan to increase the number of shares of

Bancorp common stock available under the plan to 90,000 shares is approved in all
respects.
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VALLEY BANK

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN
RESOLUTION

for January 26, 2000, Special Shareholders Meeting

RESOLVED, that the Employee Stock Option Plan, as described in the Bank’s Notice of
Special Meeting dated January 6, 2000, is approved in all respects.

j:c09199\m21100\00601
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VALLEY BANK

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN

1. Purpose of the Plan. The purpose of this Employee Stock Option Plan (“Plan™) is to
provide additional incentives to key employees of Valley Bank (“Bank™) and any of its
future Subsidiaries, thereby helping to attract and retain the best available personnel for
positions of responsibility with said corporations and otherwise promoting the success of
the business activities of Bank. Bank intends that Options issued pursuant to this Plan
shall constitute either Incentive Stock Options within the meaning of Section 422 of the
Code or Nonqualified Stock Options

2. Definitions. As used in this Plan, the following definitions apply:

a. “Bank” has the meaning set forth in paragraph 1 of this Plan.

b. “Board” means the Board of Directors of Bank.

C. “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

d. “Common Stock” means Bank’s common stock, $1 par value per share.

€. “Committee” has the meaning set forth in subparagraph 4(a) of this Plan.

f. “Continuous Status as Employee” means the absence of any interruption or
termination of service as an Employee. Continuous Status as an Employee shall
not be considered interrupted in the case of sick leave, military leave or any other
approved leave of absence.

g, “Date of Grant” of an Option means the date on which the Committee makes the
determination granting such Option, or such later date as the Committee may
designate. The Date of Grant shall be specified in the Option agreement.

h. “Employee” means any person employed by Bank, or a Subsidiary of Bank which
is currently in existence or is hereafter organized or is acquired by Bank.

1. “Exercise Price” has the meaning set forth in subparagraph 4(b)(2) of this Plan.

J- “Option” means a stock option granted under this Plan. Options shall include
both Incentive Stock Options as defined under Section 422 of the Code and
Nonqualified Stock Options, which refer to all stock options other than Incentive
Stock Options.

k. “Optionee” means an Employee who receives an Option.

1. “Plan” has the meaning set forth in paragraph 1 of this Plan.

§c09199\m21100\00701 1
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m. “Parent” means any corporation owning at least é‘ighty percent (80%) of the total
voting power of the issued and outstanding stock of Bank, and eighty percent
(80%) of the total value of the issued and outstanding stock of Bank.

n. “Shareholder-Employee” means an Employee who owns stock representing more
than ten percent (10%) of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock
of Bank or of any Subsidiary or parent company. For this purpose, the attribution
of stock ownership rules provided in Section 424(d) of the Code shall apply.

0. “Subsidiary” means any corporation of which not less than fifty percent (50%) of
the voting shares are held by Bank or a Subsidiary, whether or not such
corporation now exists or is hereafter organized or acquired by Bank or a
Subsidiary.

3. Stock Subject to Options.

a. Number of Shares Reserved. The maximum number of shares which may be
optioned and sold under this Plan is 120,000 shares of the Common Stock of
Bank (subject to adjustment as provided in subparagraph 6(j) of this Plan).
During the term of this Plan, Bank will at all times reserve and keep available a
sufficient number of shares of its Common Stock to satisfy the requirements of
this Plan.

b. Expired Options. If any outstanding Option expires or becomes unexercisable for
any reason without having been exercised in full, the shares of Common Stock
allocable to the unexercised portion of such Option will again become available
for other Options. ’

4, Administration of the Plan.

a. The Committee. The Board will administer this Plan directly, acting as a
Committee of the whole, or if the Board elects, by a separate Committee
appointed by the Board for that purpose and consisting of at least three Board
members. All references in the Plan to the “Committee” refers to this separate
Committee, if any is established, or if none is then in existence, refers to the
Board as a whole. Once appointed, any Committee will continue to serve until
otherwise directed by the Board. From time to time, the Board may increase the
size of the Committee and appoint additional members, remove members (with or
without cause), appoint new members in substitution, and fill vacancies however
caused. The Committee will select one of its members as chairman, and will hold
meetings at such times and places as the chairman or a majority of the Committee
may determine. At all times, the Board will have the power to remove all
members of the Committee and thereafter to directly administer this Plan as a
Committee of the whole.
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0)) Members of the Committee who are eligible for Options or who have been
' granted Options will be counted for all purposes in determining the
existence of a quorum at any meeting of the Committee and will be
eligible to vote on all matters before the Committee respecting the
granting of Options or administration of this Plan.

2) At least annually, the Committee must present a written report to the
Board indicating the persons to whom Options have been granted since the
date of the last such report, and in each case the Date of Grant, the number
of shares optioned, and the per-share Exercise Price.

b. Powers of the Committee. All actions of the Committee must be either (i) by a
majority vote of the members of the full Committee at a meeting of the
Committee, or (ii) by unanimous written consent of all members of the full
Committee’ without a meeting. All decisions, determinations and interpretations
of the Committee will be final and binding on all persons, including all Optionees
and any other holders or persons interested in any Options, unless otherwise
expressly determined by a vote of the majority of the entire Board. No member of
the Committee or of the Board will be liable for any action or determination made
in good faith with respect to the Plan or any Option: Subject to all provisions and
limitations of the Plan, the Committee will have the authority and discretion:

1) to determine the persons to whom Options are to be granted, the Dates of
Grant, and the number of shares to be represented by each Option;

) to determine the price at which shares of Common Stock are to be issued
under an Option, subject to subparagraph 6(b) of this Plan (“Exercise
Price”);

(3) to determine all other terms and conditions of each Option granted under
this Plan (including specification of the dates upon which Options become
exercisable, and whether conditioned on performance standards, periods of
service or otherwise), which terms and conditions can vary between
Options;

@) to modify or amend the terms of any Option previously granted, or to grant
substitute Options, subject to subparagraphs 6(1) and 6(m) of this Plan;

%) to authorize any person or persons to execute and deliver Option
agreements or to take any other actions deemed by the Committee to be
necessary or appropriate to effect the grant of Options by the Committee;

6) to interpret this Plan and to make all other determinations and take all
other actions which the Committee deems necessary or appropriate to
administer this Plan in accordance with its terms and conditions.
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S. Eligibility. Options may be granted only to Employees. Granting of Options under this
Plan will be entirely discretionary with the Committee. Adoption of this Plan will not
confer on any Employee any right to receive any Option or Options under this Plan unless
and until said Options are granted by the Committee in its sole discretion. Neither the
adoption of this Plan nor the granting of any Options under this Plan will confer upon any
Employee or Optionee any right with respect to continuation of employment, nor will the
same interfere in any way with his or her right or with the right of the shareholders of
Bank or any Subsidiary to terminate his or her employment at any time.

. 6. Terms and Conditions of Options. All Options granted under this Plan must be
authorized by the Committee, and must be documented in written Option agreements in
such form as the Committee will approve from time to time, which agreements must
comply with and be subject to all of the following terms and conditions:

a. Number of Shares; Annual Limitation. Each Option agreement must state
whether the Option is intended to be an Incentive Stock Option or a Nonqualified
Stock Option and the number of shares subject to Option. Any number of Options
may be granted to an Employee at any time; except that, in the case of Incentive
Stock Options, the aggregate fair market value (determined as of each Date of
Grant) of all shares of Common Stock with respect to which Incentive Stock
Options become exercisable for the first time by such Employee during any one
calendar year (under all incentive stock option plans of the Company and all of its
Subsidiaries taken together) shall not exceed $100,000. Any portion of an Option
in excess of the $100,000 limitation shall be treated as a Nonqualified Stock
Option

b. Exercise Price and Consideration. The Exercise Price shall be the price
determined by the Committee, subject to subparagraphs (1) and (2) below.

(1) In the case of Incentive Stock Options, the Exercise Price shall in no event
be less than the fair market value of the Common Stock on the Date of .
Grant. In the case of an Incentive Stock Option granted to a Employee
who, immediately before the grant of such Incentive Stock Option, is a
Shareholder-Employee, the Exercise Price shall be at least 110% of the
fair market value of the Common Stock on the Date of Grant.

2) In all cases, the Exercise Price shall be no lgss than the greater of (i) the
fair market value of the Common Stock or (i1) the net book value of the
Common Stock at the time of grant, as is determined by the Committee.

3 In all cases, the Exercise Price shall be payable either (i) in United States
dollars upon exercise of the Option, or (ii) if approved by the Board, other
consideration including without limitation Common Stock of Bank,
services, debt instruments or other property.
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c. Term of Option. No Option shall in any event be exercisable after the expiration
of ten (10) years from the Date of Grant. Further, no Incentive Stock Option
granted to a Employee who, immediately before such Incentive Stock Option is
granted, is a Shareholder-Employee shall be exercisable after the expiration of
five (5) years from the Date of Grant. Subject to the foregoing and other

~ applicable provisions of the Plan including but not limited to subparagraphs 6(g),
6(h) and 6(i), the term of each Option will be determined by the Committee in its
discretion.

d. Non-transferability of Options. No Option may be sold, pledged, assigned,"
hypothecated, transferred, or disposed of in any manner other than by will or by
the laws of descent or distribution and may be exercised, during the lifetime of the
Optionee, only by the Optionee.

e. Manner of ‘Exercise. An Option will be deemed to be exercised when written
‘notice of exercise has been given to Bank in accordance with the terms of the
Option by the person entitled to exercise the Option, together with full payment
for the shares of Common Stock subject to said notice.

f. Rights as Shareholder. An Optionee shall have none of the rights of a shareholder
with respect to any shares covered by his or her Option unless and until the
Optionee has exercised such Option and submitted full payment for the shares.

g. Death of Optionee. An Option shall be exercisable at any time prior to
termination under subparagraphs (1) or (2), below, by the Optionee’s estate or by
such person or persons (including a trustee or successor trustee of a revocable
living trust) who have acquired the right to exercise the Option by bequest or by
inheritance or by reason of the death of the Optionee. In the event of the death of
an Holder,

(1 an Incentive Stock Option shall terminate no later than the earliest of
(i) one year after the date of death of the Optionee if the Optionee had
been in Continuous Status as an Employee since the Date of Grant of the
Option, or (ii) the date specified under subparagraph 6(i) of this Plan if the
Optionee’s status as an Employee was terminated prior to his or her death,
or (iii) the expiration date otherwise provided in the applicable Option
agreement; and :

2) a Nonqualified Stock Option shall terminate no later than the earlier of (i)
one year after the date of death of the Optionee, or (ii) the expiration date
otherwise provided in the Option agreement, except that if the expiration
date of a Nonqualified Stock Option should occur during the 180-day
period immediately following the Optionee’s death, such Option shall
terminate at the end of such 180-day period.
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h. Disability of Optionee. If an Optionee’s status as an Employee is terminated at
any time during the Option period by reason of a disability (within the meaning of
Section 22(e)(3) of the Code) and if said Optionee had been in Continuous Status
as - an Employee at all times between the date of grant of the Option and the
termination of his or her status as an Employee, his or her Option shall terminate
no later than the earlier of (i) one year after the date of termination of his or her
status as an Employee, or (ii) the expiration date otherwise provided in his or her
Option agreement.

1. Termination of Status as an Emplovee.

(1) If an Optionee’s status as an Employee is terminated at any time after the
grant of an Option to such Employee for any reason other than death or
disability (as described in subparagraphs 6(g) and 6(h) above) and not for
cause, as provided in subparagraph (2) below, then such Option shall
terminate no later than the earlier of (i) the same day of the third month
after the date of termination of his or her status as an Employee, or (ii) the
expiration date otherwise provided in his or her Option agreement.

(2) If an Optionee’s status as an Employee is terminated for cause at any time
after the grant of an Option to such Employee, then such Option shall
terminate at the end of the day on the date of termination of his or her
status as an Employee. For this purpose, “cause” includes fraud or willful
misconduct or any other conduct which the Board reasonably believes will
cause or has caused Bank substantial injury as a result of gross negligence
or dishonesty.

J Adjustments Upon Changes in Capitalization. Subject to any required action by
the shareholders of Bank, the number of shares of Common Stock covered by
each outstanding Option, the number of shares of Common Stock available for
grant of additional Options, and the per-share Exercise Price in each outstanding
Option, will be proportionately adjusted. for any increase or decrease in the
number of issued shares of Common Stock resulting from any stock split or other
subdivision or consolidation of shares, the payment of any stock dividend (but
only on the Common Stock) or any other increase or decrease in the number of
such shares of Common Stock effected without receipt of consideration by Bank;
provided, however, that conversion of any convertible securities of Bank will not
be deemed to have been “effected without receipt of consideration.” Such
adjustment will be made by the Committee, whose determination in that respect
will be final, binding and conclusive.

¢)) Except as otherwise expressly provided in this subparagraph 6(j), no
Optionee will have any rights by reason of any stock split or the payment
of any stock dividend or any other increase or decrease in the number of
shares of Common Stock, and no issuance by Bank of shares of stock of
any class, or securities convertible into shares of stock of any class, will
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affect the number of shares or Exercise Price subject to any Options, and
no adjustments in Options will be made by reason thereof. The grant of an
Option under this Plan will not affect in any way the right or power of
Bank to make adjustments, reclassifications, reorganizations or changes of
its capital or business structure.

k. Conditions Upon Issuance of Shares. Shares of Common Stock will not be issued
with respect to an Option granted under this Plan unless the exercise of such
Option and the issuance and delivery of such shares pursuant thereto will comply
with all applicable provisions of law, including applicable federal and state
securities laws. As a condition to the exercise of an Option, Bank may require the
person exercising such Option to represent and warrant at the time of exercise that
the shares of Common Stock are being purchased only for investment and without
any present intention to sell or distribute such Common Stock if, in the opinion of
counsel for Bank, such a representation is required by any of the aforementioned
relevant provisions of law.

1. Corporate Sale Transactions. In the event of the merger or reorganization of Bank
with or into any other corporation, the sale of substantially all of the assets of
Bank, or a dissolution or liquidation of Bank (collectively, “Sale Transaction™),
(1) all outstanding Options that are not then fully exercisable will become
exercisable upon the date of closing of any sale transaction or such earlier date as
the Committee may fix; and (2) the Committee may, in the exercise of its sole
discretion, terminate all outstanding Options as of a date fixed by the Committee.
In such event, however, the Committee must notify each Optionee of such action
in writing not less than sixty (60) days prior to the termination date fixed by the
Committee, and each Optionee must have the right to exercise his or her Option
prior to said termination date. ‘

m. Substitute Stock Options. In connection with an internal reorganization of Bank
(e.g., formation of a holding company), the Committee is authorized, in its
discretion, to substitute for any unexercised Option, a new option for shares of the
resulting entity’s stock.

n. Tax Compliance. Bank, in its sole discretion, may take actions reasonably
believed by it to be required to comply with any local, state, or federal tax laws
relating to the reporting or withholding of taxes attributable to the grant or
exercise of any Option or the disposition of any shares of Common Stock issued
upon exercise of an Option, including, but not limited to (i) withholding from any
Optionee exercising an Option a number of shares of Common Stock having a fair
market value equal to the amount required to_be withheld by Bank under
applicable tax laws, and (ii) withholding from any form of compensation or other
amount due an Optionee, or holder, of shares of Common Stock issued upon
exercise of an Option any amount required to be withheld by Bank under
applicable tax laws. Withholding or reporting will be considered required for
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purposes of this subparagraph if the Committee, in its sole discretion, so
determines.

0. Federally Mandated Exercise of Options. If the Employer’s primary federal
regulator determines that the Employer’s capital falls below the regulator’s
minimum capital requirements and notifies the Employer in writing to require the
exercise or forfeiture of all vested Options, the Employer will so notify each
Optionee immediately in writing. Upon receipt of such written notice from the
Employer, Optionees must exercise their vested Options within 90 days. Failure
to exercise Options under this subsection (o) will result in the Optionee’s
forfeiture of his or her vested Options.

p. Holding Period for Incentive Stock Options. With regard to shares of Common
. Stock issued pursuant to an Incentive Stock Option granted under the Plan, if the
Optionee (or such other person who may exercise the Option pursuant to
subparagraph 6(g) of this Plan) makes a disposition of such shares within two
years from the Date of Grant of such Option, or within one year from the date of
issuance of such shares to the Optionee upon the exercise of such Option, then the
Optionee must notify the Company in writing of such disposition and must
cooperate with the Company in any tax compliance relating to such disposition.

q. Other Provisions. Option agreements executed under this Plan may contain such
other provisions as the Committee will deem advisable. ‘

7. Term of the Plan. This Plan will become effective and Options may be granted upon the
Plan’s approval by the Board, subject to shareholder approval and approval by the
Commissioner of the Nevada Department of Business & Industry, Financial Institutions
Division. Unless sooner terminated as provided in subparagraph 7(a) of this Plan, this
Plan will terminate on the tenth (10th) anniversary of its effective date. Options may be
granted at any time after the effective date and prior to the date of termination of this
Plan.

a. Amendment or Early Termination of the Plan. The Board may terminate this Plan
at any time. The Board may amend this Plan at any time and from time to time in
such respects as the Board may deem advisable, except that, without approval of
the shareholders, no revision or amendment will increase the number of shares of
Common Stock subject to this Plan other than in connection with an adjustment
under subparagraph 6(j) of this Plan.

b. Effect of Amendment or Termination. No amendment or termination of this Plan
will affect Options granted prior to such amendment or termination, and all such
Options will remain in full force and effect notwithstanding such amendment or
termination.

8. Regulatory and Shareholder Approvals. Adoption of this Plan will be subject to
approval by the Commissioner of the Nevada Department of Business & Industry,
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Financial Institutions Division and by the affirmative vote of shareholders owning at least
a majority of the outstanding Common Stock of Bank at a duly convened meeting. If
shareholder approval is not obtained within twelve (12) months after the date of the
Board’s adoption of this Plan, then this Plan shall terminate subject to subparagraph 7(b)
of the Plan except that any Incentive Stock Options previously granted under the Plan
shall become Nonqualified Stock Options, and no further Options shall be granted under
the Plan.

* % % %

CERTIFICATE OF ADOPTION

I certify that the foregoing Employee Stock Option Plan was approved by the Board of
Directors of Valley Bank on December 8, 1999.

I further certify that the foregoing Employee Stock Option Plan was approved by the
Commissioner of the Nevada Department of Business & Industry, Financial Institutions Division
on PECEMReR 3o 2660, /999

I further certify that the foregoing Employee Stock Option Plan was approved by the

shareholders of Valley Bank on January 26, 2000.

Barry L. _Hulin, President and CEO

3:%c09199\m21 100\00701 9

a3




/47 of 239

| i




Exhibit 6.2

INCENTIVE STOCK OPTION
(Non-transferable)

VALLEY BANK

For value received, Valley Bank, a Nevada state-chartered bank (the “Bank’) hereby grants to

(the “Holder™), subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth an

option (“Option”) to purchase 7,686 shares of the common stock of the Bank (the “Shares™). This
Option is granted pursuant to the Bank’s Employee Stock Option Plan, the terms and conditions of
which are incorporated by this reference.

1.

Term and Exercise

1.1 Term. This Option shall have a term of ten (10) years after the date of grant, which
is March 1, 2001 (the “Grant Date™).

1.2 Vesting Schedule. This Option will be 100% vested at the end of five (5) years
based on the following vesting schedule: 20% will vest on March 1, 2002, and 20%
will vest on each of the second, third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of the Grant
Date.

1.3 Exercise. The Holder shall exercise this Option, if at all, by tendering a notice in
writing at the offices of Valley Bank, Henderson, Nevada, specifying the number of
shares to be purchased, together with a certified check in favor of the Bank in an
amount equal to the full purchase price of the number of Shares so specified.

1.4 Issuance of Shares. Within ten (10) business days following the exercise of this
Option by the Holder as provided in Section 1.3, the Bank shall cause to be issued in
the name of and delivered to the Holder a certificate or certificates for the Shares.
The Bank covenants and agrees at all times to reserve and hold available a number of
shares of the authorized but unissued common stock of the Bank which is equal to or
greater than the number of shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of this
Option.

Option Price. The option price at which the Shares may be purchased upon the exercise of
this Option (the Option Price”) shall be $10.50 per share.

Non-Transferability. The Holder will not pledge, hypothecate, sell or otherwise transfer or
encumber this Option.

Notices. Any notice, offer, acceptance, demand, request, consent or other communication
required or permitted under this Option must be in writing and will be deemed to have been
duly given or made either (1) when delivered personally to the party to whom it is directed
(or any officer or agent of such party), or (2) three days after being deposited in the United
States; mail, certified or registered, postage prepaid, return receipt requested and properly
addressed to the party to whom it is directed. A communication will be deemed to be
properly addressed if sent to a party at the address provided below:
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If to the Bank:

Valley Bank

370 N. Stephanie St.

Henderson, Nevada 89014

Attention: Chairman, Compensation Committee

with a copy to:

Stephen M. Klein, Esq.

Graham & Dunn, P.C.

1420 Fifth Avenue, 33" Floor
“Seattle, WA 98101-2390

If to the Holder:

5. Governing Law. This Option will be governed by and construed and enforced in
accordance with the laws of the State of Nevada.

6. Successors and Assigns. All of the provisions of this Option will bind the Bank, its
successors and assigns, the Holder, and the Holder’s heirs, personal representatives and
guardians.

IN WITNESS OF THE PARTIES’ AGREEMENT, Valley Bank has caused this Option to be
executed in its corporate name by its duly appointed and authorized officer, as of this 1% day of
March 2001.

VALLEY BANK

By: Barry L. Hulin
Title: President and CEO

ATTEST:

By: Robert E. O’Connell
Title: Chairman

ACCEPTED:
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Exhibit 6.3

RESOLUTION
OF THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF
VALLEY BANCORP

(Meeting of April 24, 2002)

Amendment to Employee Stock Option Plan
The Amendment to Employee Stock Option Plan to' increase the number of shares

of Bancorp stock available under the plan by 45,000 to an aggregate of 210,000 shares is
approved in all respects.

Amendment to Nonqualified Stock Option Plén

The Ament to Nonqualified Stock Option Plan to increase the number of shares of
Bancorp common stock available under the plan to 90,000 shares is approved in all
respects.
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VALLEY BANK

DIRECTOR STOCK OPTION PLAN
RESOLUTION

for January 26, 2000, Special Shareholders Meeting

RESOLVED, that the Director Stock Option Plan, as described in the Bank’s Notice of
Special Meeting dated January 6, 2000, is approved in all respects.
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VALLEY BANK

NONQUALIFIED STOCK OPTION PLAN

[For Directors and Incorporators]

1. Purpose of the Plan. The purpose of this Plan is (a) to reward certain individuals who
are neither employees nor directors of the Bank for their efforts as organizers of the Bank
(the “Incorporators™), and (b) to provide additional incentives to directors of Valley Bank,
thereby helping to attract and retain the best available personnel for positions as directors
of the Bank and otherwise promoting the success of the business activities of the Bank. It
is intended that Options issued under this Plan will constitute nonqualified stock options.

2. Definitions. As used in this Plan, the following definitions apply:

a.

b.

“Bank” means Valley Bank, a Nevada banking corporation.
“Board” means the Board of Directors of the Bank.

“Common Stock” means the Bank’s common stock, currently with a par value of
$1.00 per share.

“Committee” means the Board or the Committee appointed by the Board in
accordance with Section 4(a) of this Plan.

“Continuous Status as a Director” means the absence of any interruption or
termination of service as a Director.

“Director” means any person serving as a member of the Board of the Bank.
“Incorporator” has the meaning set forth in Section 1 of this Plan.

“Option” means a stock option granted under this Plan, which constitutes a
Nonqualified Stock Option.

“Optioned Stock” means the Common Stock subject to an Option.
“Optionee” means a Director who receives an Option.
“Plan” means this Nonquahﬁéd Stock Option Plan.

“Parent” means any corporation owning at least eighty percent (80%) of the total
voting power of the issued and outstanding stock of the Bank, and eighty percent
(80%) of the total value of the issued and outstanding stock of the Bank.
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m. “Subsidiary” means any bank or other corporation of which not less than 50% of
the voting shares are held by the Bank or a Subsidiary, whether or not such
corporation now exists or is hereafter organized or acquired by the Bank or a
Subsidiary.

3 Stock Subject to Options.

a. Number of Shares Reserved. The maximum number of shares which may be
optioned and sold under this Plan is 37,500 shares of the Common Stock of the
Bank (subject to adjustment as provided in subparagraph 6(i) of this Plan).
During the term of this Plan, the Bank will at all times reserve and keep available
a sufficient number of shares of its Common Stock to satisfy the requirements of
this Plan.

b.  Expired Options. If any outstanding Option expires or becomes unexercisable for
any reason without having been exercised in full, the shares of Common Stock
allocable to the unexercised portion of such Option will again become available

for other Options.
4. Administration of the Plan.
a. The Committee. The Board will administer this Plan directly, acting as a

Committee of the whole, or if the Board elects, by a separate Committee
appointed by the Board for that purpose and consisting of at least three Board
members. All references in the Plan to the “Committee” refer to this separate
Committee, if any is established, or if none is then in existence, refer to the Board
as a whole. Once appointed, any Committee will continue to serve until otherwise
directed by the Board. From time to time, the Board may increase the size of the
Committee and appoint additional members, remove members (with or without
cause), appoint new members in substitution, and fill vacancies however caused.
The Committee will select one of its members as chairman, and will hold
meetings at such times and places as the chairman or a majority of the Committee
may determine.

Members of the Committee who are either eligible for Options or who have been
granted Options will be counted for all purposes in determining the existence of a
quorum at any meeting of the Committee and will be eligible to vote on all
matters before the Committee respecting the granting of Options or administration
of this Plan.

At least annually, the Committee must present a written report to the Board
indicating the Directors and, as applicable, Incorporators, to whom Options have
been granted since the date of the last such report, and in each case the date or
dates of Options granted, the number of shares optioned, and the Option price per
share.
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At all times, the Board has the power to remove all members of the Committee
and thereafter to directly administer this Plan as a Committee of the whole.

b. Powers of the Committee. Subject to all provisions and limitations of the Plan,
the Committee will have the authority and discretion:

(D to determine the Directors and Incorporators to whom Options are to be
granted, the times of grant, and the number of shares to be represented by
each Option,;

(2) to determine the Option price for the shares of Common Stock to be issued
according to each Option, subject to the provisions of subparagraph 6(b) of
this Plan;

3) to determine all other terms and conditions of each Option granted under
this Plan (including specifying the dates upon which Options become
exercisable), which need not be identical;

“) to modify or amend the terms of any Option previously granted, or to grant
substitute Options, subject to the provisions of subparagraphs 6(1) and
6(m) of this Plan;

(5) to interpret this Plan;

(6) to authorize any person or persons to execute and -deliver Option
agreements or to take any other actions deemed by the Committee to be
necessary or appropriate to effectuate the grant of Options by the
Committee;

N to make all other determinations and take all other actions which the
Committee deems necessary or appropriate to administer this Plan in
accordance with its terms and conditions.

All actions of the Committee must be either by (i) a majority vote of the members
of the full Committee at a meeting of the Committee, or (ii) by unanimous written
consent of all members of the full Committee without a meeting.

All decisions, determinations and interpretations of the Committee will be final
and binding on all persons, including all Optionees and any other holders or
persons interested in any Options, unless otherwise expressly determined by a
vote of the majority of the entire Board. No member of the Committee or of the
Board will be liable for any action or determination made in good faith with
respect to the Plan or any Option.

S. Eligibility. Options may be granted only to Directors and Incorporators. Granting of
Options under this Plan will be entirely discretionary with the Committee, and the
adoption of this Plan will not confer on any Director or Incorporator any right to receive

3:\c09199\m21 100700101 3

197 0f 235




any Option or Options under this Plan unless and until said Options are granted by the
Committee, in its sole discretion. Neither the adoption of this Plan nor the granting of
any Options under this Plan will confer upon any Director or Optionee any right with
respect to continuation of status as a Director, nor will the same interfere in any way with
his right or with the right of the shareholders of the Bank or any Subsidiary to terminate
his status as a Director at any time.

6. Terms and Conditions of Options. Al Options granted under this Plan must be

authorized by the Committee, and must be documented in written agreements in such
form as the Committee will from time to time approve, which agreements must comply
with and be subject to all of the following terms and conditions:

a. Number of Shares. Each Option agreement must state the number of shares
subject to Option. Any number of Options may be granted to a single eligible
Director at any time and from time to time. Incorporators will be granted Options
consistent with the policy of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

b. Option Price and Consideration. Each option agreement must state the option
price for the shares of Common Stock to be issued under the Option which price
must be not less than the greater of the market value of the Common Stock or the
net book value of the Common Stock at the time of grant as is determined by the
Committee.

The Option price is payable either (i) in United States dollars upon exercise of the
Options, or (ii) if approved by the Board or Committee, other consideration
including without limitation Common Stock of the Bank, services, or other

property.

C. Term of Option. Subject to other applicable provisions of this Plan including but
not limited to Section 6(e) in this paragraph, the term of each Option will be
determined by the Committee in its discretion.

d. Manner of Exercise; Rights as Shareholder. An Option will be deemed to be
exercised when written notice of exercise has been given to the Bank in
accordance with the terms of the Option by the person entitled to exercise the
Option, together with full payment for the shares of Common Stock subject to
said notice.

€. Death of Optionee. In the event of the death of an Optionee who was an
Incorporator or an Optionee who at the time of his death was a Director and who
had been in Continuous Status as a Director since the date of grant of the Option,
the Option will terminate on the earlier of (i) one year after the date of death of the
Optionee, or (ii) the expiration date otherwise provided in the Option agreement,
except that if the expiration date should occur during the 180-day period
immediately following the Optionee’s death, such Option will terminate at the end
of such 180-day period. The Option will be exercisable at any time prior to such
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termination by the Optionee’s estate, or by such person or persons (including a
trustee or successor trustee of a revocable living trust) who have acquired the right
to exercise the Option by bequest or by inheritance or by reason of the death of the
Optionee. '

f. Disability of Optionee. If an Optionee’s status as a Director is terminated at any
time during the Option period by reason of a disability (within the meaning of
Section 22(e)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code) and if said Optionee had been in
Continuous Status as a Director at all times between the date of grant of the
Option and the termination of his status as a Director, his Option will terminate on
the earlier of (i) one year after the date of termination of his status as a Director, or
(i1) the expiration date otherwise provided in his Option agreement.

g Termination of Status as a Director.

(1) If an Optionee’s status as a Director is terminated at any time after the
grant of his Option for any reason other than death or disability, as
provided in subparagraphs (e) and (f) above, and excepting if the Director
is removed for cause, as provided in (2) below, his Option will terminate
on the earlier of (i) the same day of the sixth month after the date of
termination of his status as a Director, or (ii) the expiration date otherwise
provided in his Option agreement.

2) If an Optionee is removed as a Director for cause at any time after the
grant of his Option, then his Option will terminate on the date of
termination of his status as a Director. For this purpose, cause will be
deemed to exist only if the Board has reasonable grounds to believe that
the Bank has suffered or will suffer substantial injury as a result of the
gross negligence or dishonesty of the Director whose removal is proposed.

h. Non-transferability of Options. No Option granted under this Plan may be sold,
pledged, assigned, hypothecated, transferred, or disposed of in any manner other
than by will or by the laws of descent or distribution and may be exercised, during
the lifetime of the Optionee, only by the Optionee.

i Adjustments Upon Changes in Capitalization. Subject to any required action by
the shareholders of the Bank, the number of shares of Common Stock covered by
each outstanding Option, the number of shares of Common Stock available for
grant of additional Options, and the price per share of Common Stock specified in
each outstanding Option, will be proportionately adjusted for any increase or
decrease in the number of issued shares of Common Stock resulting from any
stock split or other subdivision or consolidation of shares, the payment of any
stock dividend (but only on the Common Stock) or any other increase or decrease
in the number of such shares of Common Stock effected without receipt of
consideration by the Bank; provided, however, that conversion of any convertible
securities of the Bank will not be deemed to have been “effected without receipt
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of consideration.” Such adjustment will be made by the Committee, whose
determination in that respect will be final, binding and conclusive.

Except as otherwise expressly provided in this subparagraph 6(i), no Optionee
will have any rights by reason of any stock split or the payment of any stock
dividend or any other increase or decrease in the number of shares of Common
Stock. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this subparagraph 6(i), any
issue by the Bank of shares of stock of any class, or securities convertible into
shares of stock of any class, will not affect the number of shares or price of
Common Stock subject to any Options and no adjustments in Options will be
made by reason thereof. The grant of an Option under this Plan will not affect in
any way the right or power of the Bank to make adjustments, reclassifications,
reorganizations or changes of its capital or business structure.

J- Date of Grant of Option. The date of grant of an Option will, for all purposes, be
the date on which the Committee makes the determination granting such Option.
Said date of grant will be specified in the Option agreement.

k. Conditions Upon Issuance of Shares. Shares of Common Stock will not be issued
with respect to an Option granted under this Plan unless the exercise of such
Option and the issuance and delivery of such shares pursuant thereto will comply
with all applicable provisions of law, including applicable federal and state
securities laws. |

As a condition to the exercise of an Option, the Bank may require the person
exercising such Option to represent and warrant at the time of exercise that the
shares of Common Stock are being purchased only for investment and without any
present intention to sell or distribute such Common Stock if, in the opinion of
counsel for the Bank, such a representation is required by any of the
aforementioned relevant provisions of law.

1. . Merger, Sale of Assets, Etc. In the event of the merger or reorganization of the
Bank with or into any other corporation, or in the event of a proposed dissolution
or liquidation of the Bank (collectively, “sale transaction™): (1) all outstanding

"Options that are not then fully exercisable will become exercisable upon the date
of closing of any sale transaction or such earlier date as the Committee may fix;
and (2) the Committee may, in the exercise of its sole discretion, terminate all
outstanding Options as of a date fixed by the Committee. In such event, however,
the Committee must notify each Optionee of such action in writing not less than
sixty (60) days prior to the termination date fixed by the Committee, and each
Optionee must have the right to exercise his Option prior to said termination date.

m. Substitute Stock Options. In connection with an internal reorganization of the
Bank (e.g., formation of a holding company), the Committee is authorized, in its
discretion, to substitute for any unexercised Option, a new option for shares of the
resulting entity’s stock.

j\c09199%un21100\00101 6
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n. Tax Compliance. The Bank, in its sole discretion, may take actions reasonably
believed by it to be required to comply with any local, state, or federal tax laws
relating to the reporting or withholding of taxes attributable to the grant or
exercise of any Option or the disposition of any shares of Common Stock issued
upon exercise of an Option, including, but not limited to (i) withholding from any
Optionee exercising an Option a number of shares of Common Stock having a fair
market value equal to the amount required to be withheld by the Bank under
applicable tax laws, and (ii) withholding from any form of compensation or other
-amount due an Optionee or holder of shares of Common Stock issued upon
exercise of an Option any amount required to be withheld by Bank under
applicable tax laws. Withholding or reporting will be considered required for
purposes of this subparagraph if the Committee, in its sole discretion, so
determines.

0. Federally Mandated Exercise of Options. If the Employer’s primary federal
regulator determines that the Employer’s capital falls below the regulator’s
minimum capital requirements and notifies the Employer in writing to require the
exercise or forfeiture of all vested Options, the Employer will so notify each
Optionee immediately in writing. Upon receipt of such written notice from the
Employer, Optionees must exercise their vested Options within 90 days. Failure
to exercise Options under this subsection (o) will result in the Optionee’s
forfeiture of his or her vested Options.

p- Other Provisions. Option agreements executed under this Plan may contain such
other provisions as the Committee will deem advisable.

7. Term of the Plan. This Plan will become effective and Options may be granted upon the
Plan’s approval by the Board, subject to shareholder approval and approval by the
Commissioner of the Nevada Department of Business & Industry, Financial Institutions
Division. Unless sooner terminated as provided in subparagraph 7(a) of this Plan, this
Plan will terminate on the tenth anniversary of its effective date. Options may be granted
at any time after the effective date and prior to the date of termination of this Plan.

a. Amendment or Early Termination of the Plan. The Board may terminate this Plan
at any time. The Board may amend this Plan at any time and from time to time in
such respects as the Board may deem advisable, except that, without approval of
the shareholders, no revision or amendment will increase the number of shares of
Common Stock subject to this Plan other than in connection with an adjustment
under subparagraph 6(i) of this Plan. ‘

b. Effect of Amendment or Termination. No amendment or termination of this Plan
will affect Options granted prior to such amendment or termination, and all such
Options will remain in full force and effect notwithstanding such amendment or
termination.
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8. Regulatory and Shareholder Approval. Adoption of this Plan will be subject to
approval by the Commissioner of the Nevada Department of Business & Industry,
Financial Institutions Division and by the affirmative vote of shareholders owning at least
a majority of the outstanding common shares of the Bank at a duly convened meeting.

" )\c09199\m21100\00101 8
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CERTIFICATE OF ADOPTION

I certify that the foregoing Nonqualified Stock Option Plan was approved by the Board of
Directors of Valley Bank on December §, 1999.

I further certify that the foregoing Nonqualified Stock Option Plan was approved by the
Commissioner of the Nevada Department of Business & Industry, Financial Institutions Division
on DecemAe 30, 2600.1999

I further certify that the foregoing Nonqualified Stock Option Plan was approved by the

shareholders of Valley Bank on January 26, 2000.

Barry L. Hulin, President and CEO

J:\c09199\m21100M\00101 9
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Exhibit 6.4
VALLEY BANK
NONQUALIFIED STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between Valley Bank (the “Bank”) and
(“Holder”). The Bank and Holder agree as follows:

Pursuant to the Bank’s Nonqualified Stock Option Plan, as approved by the Board of
Directors on December 8§, 1999 and by the Commissioner of the Nevada Department of Business
& Industry, Financial Institutions Division on December 30, 1999, and subject to approval by the
Bank’s shareholders at a meeting to be held on January 26, 2000 (the “Plan”), the Bank hereby
grants to Holder an irrevocable nonqualified stock option to purchase 2,000 shares of common
stock (par value $1.00 per share) of the Bank an an option price of $11.00 per share, payable in
cash.

The date of grant of this option is December 8, 1999. This option will terminate on the
third anniversary of the Approval Date (defined below), unless sooner terminated by reason of
death or disability as provided in the Plan.

This option will be fully vested and exercisable on the date on which the Bank’s
shareholders approve the Plan (the “Approval Date™). From the Approval Date through the date of
its termination, this option may be exercised by Holder, in whole or in part, at any time and from
time to time. This option may only be exercised if it is exercised in the manner provided by the
Plan. Exercise must be by actual delivery to the Bank of a written notice of exercise signed by
Holder specifying the number of shares and option price and accompanied by payment of the full
amount of the option price.

All of the terms and conditions of the Plan are incorporated by this reference as part of this
Agreement as if such terms and conditions had been included in this Agreement.

EXECUTED as of January __, 2000.

HOLDER: BANK:
‘ ‘ VALLEY BANK

Barry L. Hulin
President and CEO
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Exhibit 8.1

PLAN AND AGREEMENT OF REORGANIZATION AND SHARE EXCHANGE

THIS PLAN AND AGREEMENT OF REORGANIZATION AND SHARE EXCHANGE, dated as
of January 17, 2001 (the “Agreement”), is made by and between VALLEY BANCORP, a Nevada
corporation (the “Holding Company”), and VALLEY BANK, a Nevada state-chartered bank (the “Bank”).
Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement and the provisions of 12 CFR 225.17 and NRS 666.115, (1) all of
the Bank’s issued and outstanding shares of common stock will be exchanged for shares of Holding
Company common stock (the “Share Exchange”); and (2) the Bank will become a wholly-owned subsidiary

of the Holding Company (the “Reorganization”).

RECITALS

A, The Holding Company is a business corporation duly organized under the laws of the State
of Nevada, formed for the purpose of becoming a registered bank holding company within the meaning of
the Federal Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended.

B. The Bank is a banking corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of
Nevada, with its principal office in Henderson, Clark County, Nevada. |

C. The Bank currently has stock options outstanding (the “Options”) under its Employee
Stock Option Plan and its Nonqualified Stock Option Plan (collectively, the “Plans”), and the Boards of
Directors of the Bank and the Holding Company intend that the Holding Company will adopt the Plans and
the Options.

D. The Boards of Directors of the Bank and the Holding Company believe that the Share
Exchange and Reorganization will permit greater flexibility in responding to the changing financial

requirements of banking customers and in meeting the competition of other financial institutions.

ARTICLE 1
TERMS OF EXCHANGE

1.1 Exchange Date. The Exchange Date will follow the occurrence of all events required by
Section 2.3 and will be a date agreed to by the parties.

1.2 Transfer and Exchange. On the Exchange Date, each outstanding share of common stock
of the Bank will be exchanged for one (1) share of common stock of the Holding Company without any
further action required by the holders of Bank common stock. No separate documents of assignment or

transfer will be required to effect the Share Exchange.

-1-
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1.3 Exchange of Certificates. Following the Share Exchange and subject to Section 1.4, Bank
shareholders will exchange their stock certificates evidencing Bank shares for certificates evidencing
Holding Company shares. To encourage the prompt exchange of such certificates, any dividends which
become payable with respect to Holding Company shares will be withheld, without interest, until holders of
Bank stock submit their certificates for exchange. |

14 Payment to Dissenters. Shareholders of the Bank who exercise their right to dissent must,

in accordance with state law, demand payment and surrender the stock certificates evidencing their shares in
the Bank within 30 to 60 days after the date the Bank sends them dissenter’s notice. At such time, (a) such
dissenters will cease to be shareholders of the Bank (subject to consummation of the Share Exchange);
(b) the stock formerly held by them will be transferred to the Holding Company; and (c) the sole right of
such dissenters will be to receive payment, following consummation of the Share Exchange, for the value of
their surrendered shares as provided by applicable state law. Any such payments to dissenters will be made
by the Bank.

1.5 Bank’s Articles of Incorporation. The Articles of Incorporation in effect for the Bank

immediately prior to the Exchange Date will remain in effect following the Share Exchange and

Reorganization.

1.6 Plans and Options. On the Exchange Date and pursuant to IRC § 424, the Holding

Company will assume the Plans as currently in effect for the Bank. On the Exchange Date, by virtue of the
Share Exchange and without any action on the part of any party, the Options will be converted into and
become options to purchase the like amount of Holding Company stock on the same terms and conditions as
are in effect with respect to the Options immediately prior to the Exchange Date, except that each such

Option may be exercised solely for shares of Holding Company stock.

ARTICLE 2
EVENTS PRECEDING CONSUMMATION

2.1 Presentation to Bank Shareholders. As soon as reasonably possible, the Bank will cause

this Agreement to be presented for approval by the holders of at least a majority of the outstanding capital
stock of the Bank at a meeting of the shareholders, duly called by the directors, upon notice provided in
accordance with applicable law.

2.2 Submission to Regulatory Authorities, etc.

(a) Representatives of the Bank and the Holding Company will prepare and file an

application for approval of the Share Exchange and Reorganization and will provide any required Notice of

-9.
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Change in Control to the Nevada Department of Business & Industry Financial Institutions Division and
will file with any other administrative bodies, departments, agencies, and boards which may have
jurisdiction, such other documents and instruments as may be necessary or desirable, in ihe opinion of
management acting on advice of counsel, to complete the Share Exchange and Reorganization.

(b) Representatives of the Holding Company will prepare and file with the Board of
Govemnors of the Federal Reserve System a Notice or Application, as may be appropriate, and any other
documents and instruments as may be required or desirable, in the opinion of management acting on advice
of counsel, to effect the Share Exchange and Reorganization.

(c) Representatives of the Bank will request an opinion from the Bank's special
counsel, Graham & Dunn P.C., to the effect that the Share Exchange will qualify as a tax-free exchange
within the meaning of IRC § 368. |

(d) The proper officers of the Holding Company and of the Bank may, in the name and
on behalf of the Holding Company and the Bank, make all such arrangements, do and perform all such acts
and things, and prepare, execute and deliver all such certificates, applications and other instruments and
documents as may be reasonably necessary or appropriate in order to consummate the Share Exchange and
Reorganization.

23 Required Approvals. The Share Exchange may not be consummated until each of the

following events has occurred:

(a) The Board of Directors of the Holding Company has approved this Agreement and
the Share Exchange and Reorganization.

(b) A majority of the entire Board of Directors and the holders of a majority of the
outstanding stock of the Bank has approved this Agreement and the Share Exchange and Reorganization.

© The Nevada Financial Institutions Division has approved the Share Exchange and
Reorganization.

(d) The Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System has not objected to the
Notice of the proposed Share Exchange and Reorganization or has otherwise approved an Application by
the Holding Company filed pursuant to the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended.

(e) Graham & Dunn has issued an opinion, to the effect that the Share Exchange will

qualify as a tax-free exchange within the meaning of IRC § 368.
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ARTICLE 3
TERMINATION

3.1 Right of Termination. This Agreement may be terminated and the Share Exchange and

Reorganization abandoned by either party by resolution of its Board of Directors at any time prior to the
Exchange Date if for any reason the consummation of the Share Exchange and Reorganization is considered
inadvisable in the opinion of such Board of Directors.

32 Automatic Termination. In the event that on the Exchange Date, less than eighty percent

(80%) of the Bank's outstanding shares are entitled to be exchanged for Holding Company shares, as
provided in this Agreement, then the Share Exchange will not be consummated and this Agreement will

automatically terminate and be of no further effect.

VALLEY BANK

By:

Barry Hulin, President and CEO
Attest:

Vi YR

Dick Holtzcla®, Seéretary

VALLEY BANCORP

Barry Hulin, President and CEO

Attest:

JAO S

D/ck Holtzclaw Sec
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STATE OF NEVADA )
) ss.
COUNTY OF CLARK )

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that Barry Hulin and Dick Holtzclaw are the
persons who appeared before me, and said persons acknowledged that they signed this instrument, on oath
stated that they were authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it as the Chief Executive
Officer and Secretary, respectively, of VALLEY BANK to be the free and voluntary act of such party for
the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument.

f
DATED: January 17, 2001 % % MW
Ao o [ Ia i

e OFFICIAL SEAL (Signature)
LaRae Mortensen M /
NazAd NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF NEVADA we /Norters
s CLARK COUNTY (Please print name legibly)
92-1018-1 My Appl. Expires Aug. 11, 2001

NOTARY PUBL_IC in and for the State of Nevada,
residing at las Veaas NV

My commission expires S-11-0/

STATE OF NEVADA )
) ss.
COUNTY OF CLARK )

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that Barry Hulin and Dick Holtzclaw as the
persons who appeared before me, and said persons acknowledged that they signed this instrument, on oath
stated that they were authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it as the Chief Executive
Officer and Secretary, respectively, of VALLEY BANCORP to be the free and voluntary act of such party
for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument.

DATED: Japuary 17, 2001.

My l, Avoy
(Signature)
s Likre NMogrersal
x Please print name legibl

)  LaRae MortenseEr‘a[Mm (Please print name legibly)

75 - STATE OF N '

7 1O PUCBLLligK Cs'(r)?JTNTY NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of Nevada,
92.1018-1 My Appt. Expires Aug. 11, 2001 residing at 2

My commission expires: __§ ~//-8/
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.LEB * ﬁﬁ%ﬁ7 Exhibit 8.2

§ wws2l 2000 CERTIFICATE OF VALLEY BANK FILED
PTEGRCES PURSUANT TO N.R.S. 78.207 AND 78.209

f sl
BARRY L. HULIN and DICK HOLTZCLAW, hereby certify that:

' _ A. They are President and Secretary, respectively, of Valley Bank, a Nevada corporation
(the “Company”).

B. That a Resolution proposing and declaring advisable the following changes to the
number and par value of shares of authorized common stock, have been adopted by the Company’s
Board of Directors:

1. The number of authorized shares of stock which the Company is currently
authorized to issue is Two Million Five Hundred Thousand (2,500,000) shares, which consists of
Two Million (2,000,000) shares of common stock at a par value of One Dollar ($1.00) per share and
Five Hundred Thousand (500,000) shares of preferred stock at a par value of One Dollar ($1.00) per
share. S _ ;

2. - Pursuant to Resolution approved and adopted by the Company’s Board of
Directors, the total number of authorized shares of stock which the Company is authorized to issue
is changed to Three Million (3,000,000) shares, which shall consist of Two Million Five Hundred
Thousand (2,500,000) shares of common stock at a par value of Eighty Cents ($0.80) per share and
Five Hundred Thousand (500,000) shares of preferred stock at a par value of One Dollar ($1.00) per

share. . The number and par value of the authorized preferred stock of the Company is not affected
by this change.

~

3. This change is made pursuant to N.R.S. 78.207.1 without the necessity of

' | obtaining the approval of the stockholders of the Company.
4. This change shall become effective upon the date of filing of this Certificate. -

5. This change has been separately approved by L. Scott Walshaw,
Commissioner, Financial Institutions Division, State of Nevada, by letter dated February 10, 2000.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, we do hereby execute this Certificate of Valley Bank, on the

A1+ _day of March, 2000.

Barry“L. Hulin, Presid.ent\




STATE OF NEVADA )
) ss:
COUNTY OF CLARK )

Onthe 974 _day of March, 2000, personally appeared before me, a Notary Public, in and for

said County and State, Barry L. Hulin and Dick Holtzclaw, personally known to me to be the persons

- whose names are subscribed to the foregoing instrument as President and Secretary, respectively, of
Valley Bank, who acknowledged that they executed the foregoing instrument.

il Prahiparn )

Nofary Public

OFFICIAL SEAL
5 LaRae Mortensen

=% NOTARY PUBLIC.- STATE OF NEVADA
R . CLARK COUNTY

92-1018-1 My Appt. Expires Aug. 11, 2001
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Fia ED , CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT AND RESTATEMENT

bt
INTHE OFFICEOF THE
SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE OF

STATE OF NEVADA

AUG 11 1998
Claeou

Ne The ur:(erigned hereby certifies that:
DEAM HELLEY SEC ET;%;F sTae Lhe under‘signed represent at least two-thirds of the Board of Directors of Valley
ank, a Nevada corporation (the “Company”).

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OF VALLEY BANK

2. The original Articles of Incorporation of the Company were filed in the Office of
the Nevada Secretary of State on September 15, 1997.

3. As of the date these Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation were
executed, the Company has issued no stock.

4.

The Articles of Incorporation of the Company are hereby amended and restated as
follows:

AMENDED AND RESTATED ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF
VALLEY BANK

ARTICLE I
NAME

The name of the corporation is:

Valley Bank

ARTICLE I
PURPOSE

The purpose for which this corporation is organized is to engage in any banking business
or activity not forbidden by law or these Articles of Incorporation.

ARTICLE 10
RESIDENT AGENT

The name and address of this corporation’s resident agent for service of process, which
may be changed from time to time by the Board of Directors, is:

S:1\DABS 140, NDOCSICERTIFAMEND . DOC
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Robert E. O’Connell 7225 Montecito Circle
Las Vegas, Nevada 89120

ARTICLE IV
CAPITAL STOCK

4.01 AUTHORIZED SHARES

The total number of shares of stock this corporation is authorized to issue shall be two
million five hundred thousand (2,500,000) shares. This stock shall be divided into two classes to
be designated as “Common Stock” and “Preferred Stock.”

4,02 COMMON STOCK

Two million (2,000,000) shares of the authorized stock have a par value of One Dollar
($1.00) per share and are designated Common Stock. Each share of Common Stock, when
issued, shall have one (1) vote on all matters presented to the stockholders.

4.03 PREFERRED STOCK

Five Hundred Thousand (500,000) shares of the authorized stock have a par value of One
Dollar (31.00) per share and are designated Preferred Stock. The Board of Directors shall have
the authority to authorize the issuance of the Preferred Stock from time to time in one or more
classes or series, and to state in the resolution or resolutions from time to time adopted providing
for the issuance thereof the following:

(a) Whether or not the class or series shall have voting rights, full or limited, the
nature and the qualifications, limitations and restrictions on those rights, or whether the class or
series will be without voting rights;

(b) The number of shares to constitute the class or series and the designation thereof;

(©) The preferences and relative, participating, optional or other special rights, if any,
and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, if any, with respect to any class or
series;

(d)  Whether or not the shares of any class or series shall be redeemable and if
redeemable the redemption price or prices, and the time or times at which, and the terms and
conditions upon which, such shares shall be redeemable and the manner of redemption;

(e) Whether or not the shares of a class or series shall be subject to the operation of
retirement or sinking funds to be applied to the purchase or redemption of such shares for

retirement, and if such retirement or sinking funds be established, the amount and the terms and
provisions thereof;

H The dividend rate, whether dividends are payable in cash, stock of the -
corporation, or other property, the conditions upon which and the times when such dividends are

SADAB\8140. NDOCS\CERTIFAMEND DOC
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payable, the preference to or the relation to the payment of dividends payable on any other class
or classes or series of stock, whether or not such dividend shall be cumulative or noncumulative,
and if cumulative, the date or dates from which such dividends shall accumulate;

(2) The preferences, if any, and the amounts thereof which the holders of any class or

series thereof are entitled to receive upon the voluntary or involuntary dissolution of, or upon any
distribution of the assets of, the corporation;

(h) Whether or not the shares of any class or series are convertible into, or
exchangeable for, the shares of any other class or classes or of any other series of the same or
any other class or classes of stock of the corporation and the conversion price or prices or ratio or
ratios or the rate or rates at which such exchange may be made, with such adjustments, if any, as
shall be stated and expressed or provided for in such resolution or resolutions; and

1) Such other rights and provisions with respect to any class or series as may to the
Board of Directors seem advisable.

The shares of each class or series of the Preferred Stock may vary from the shares of any other
class or series thereof in any respect. The Board of Directors may increase the number of shares
of the Preferred Stock designated for any existing class or series by a resolution adding to such
class or series authorized and unissued shares of the Preferred Stock not designated for any other
class or series. The Board of Directors may decrease the number of shares of the Preferred Stock
designated for any existing class or series of the Preferred Stock and the shares so subtracted
shall become authorized, unissued and undesignated shares of the Preferred Stock.

4.04 PREEMPTIVE RIGHTS

Holders of Common Stock shall not have preemptive rights.

4.05  ASSESSMENT OF STOCK

The capital stock of this corporation, after the amount of the subscription price has been
fully paid in, shall not be assessable for any purpose, and no stock issued as fully paid up shall
ever be assessable or assessed, except as provided by Chapter 661 of the NRS.

ARTICLE V
DIRECTORS

5.01 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The governing body of this corporation shall be the Board of Directors. The members of
the Board of Directors shall be styled as directors. Directors must be stockholders.

5.02 INITIAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The initial Board of Directors shall consist of twelve (12) members. The names and
addresses of the initial members of the Board of Directors are:

S:DAB'8140. NDOCS\CERTIFAMEND.DOC
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Name Address

Robert E. O’Connell - 7225 Montecito Circle
Chairman Las Vegas, Nevada 89120

Thomas J. Krob 1533 Champion Hills Lane
Vice Chairman Las Vegas, Nevada 89134

George A. Brizendine 3650 S. Eastern Avenue
Suite 220 .
Las Vegas, Nevada 89109

Don Hamilton 3418 S. Seneca Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89109

Mary E. Hausch 1139 South Fifth Place
Las Vegas, Nevada 89104

Barry L. Hulin 9425 San Laguna Court, #104
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134

' James A. McKellar, Sr. 3340 S. Topaz
Suite 240
' Las Vegas, Nevada 89121
| William E. Snyder 709 Valley Verde Court
' Henderson, Nevada 89014

Dan H. Stewart P.O. Box 2065
Henderson, Nevada 89009

Gary Vause 3020 Plaza De Monte
Las Vegas, Nevada 89102

David F. Welles 2480 East Tompkins Avenue
‘ Suite 222
Las Vegas, Nevada 89121

John R. Wible 1434 Angola Avenue .
La Habra Heights, California 90631

ARTICLE VI
INCORPORATORS

The individuals set forth in Section 5.02 of Article V above are incorporators of this
corporation. The names and addresses of the additional incorporators, who are not directors, are:
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Name Address
Ned Bearden 2314 S. Western Avenue
Las Vegas, Nevada 89102
Harold L. Boyer 630 South Rancho Drive
Suite E
Las Vegas, Nevada 89106
C. Neal Johnson P.O. Box 6070
Incline Village, Nevada 89450-6070
Christopher Scripps 12526 High Bluff Drive
McKellar Suite 100
San Diego, California 92030
Henry and Margarete E. 8275 El Paseo
Sandstede La Jolla, California 92037
Mona J. Steen 3860 Riviera Drive, #102

La Jolla, California 92109
Chris A. Wible 2312 Carinth Way
Henderson, Nevada 89014

ARTICLE VII
LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY

7.01 DIRECTOR AND OFFICER LIABILITY

No director or officer of this corporation shall be personally liable to this corporation or
to any of its stockholders for damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director or officer
involving any act or omission of any such director or officer; provided, however, that the
foregoing provision shall not eliminate the liability of a director or officer for: (i) acts or
omissions which involve intentional misconduct, fraud or a knowing violation of law; or (ii) the
unlawful payment of distributions. Any repeal or modification of this Article VII by the
stockholders of this corporation shall be prospective only, and shall not adversely affect any

limitation on the personal liability of a director or officer of this corporation for acts or omissions
prior to such repeal or modification.

7.02  STOCKHOLDER LIABILITY

The holders of this corporation’s capital stock shall not be individually responsible or
liable for the debts, contracts or liabilities of this corporation. Notwithstanding anything in these

Articles of Incorporation to the contrary, however, stockholders shall be liable as provided in
Chapter 661 of the NRS.
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ARTICLE VIII
INDEMNIFICATION

Every person who was or is a party to, or is threatened to be made a party to, or is
involved in any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or
investigative, by reason of the fact that he, or a person of whom he is the legal representative, is
or was a director or officer of this corporation, or is or was serving at the request of this
corporation as a director or officer of another corporation, or as its representative in a
partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, shall be indemnified and held harmless to the
fullest extent legally permissible under the laws of the State of Nevada from time to time against
all expenses, liability and loss (including attorneys’ fees, judgments, fines and amounts paid or to
be paid in settlement) reasonably incurred or suffered by him in connection therewith, Such
right of indemnification shall be a contract right which may be enforced in any manner desired
by such person. The expenses of officers and directors incurred in defending a civil or criminal
action, suit or proceeding must be paid by this corporation as they are incurred and in advance of
the final disposition of the action, suit or proceeding, upon receipt of an undertaking by or on
behalf of the director or officer to repay the amount if it is ultimately determined by a court of
competent jurisdiction that he is not entitled to be indemnified by this corporation. Such right of
indemnification shall not be exclusive of any other right which such directors, officers or
representatives may have or hereafter acquire, and, without limiting the generality of such
statement, they shall be entitled to their respective rights of indemnification under any bylaw,

agreement, vote of stockholders, provision of law or otherwise, as well as their rights under this
Article VIIL

Without limiting the application of the foregoing, the Board of Directors may adopt
bylaws from time to time with respect to indemnification, to provide at all times the fullest
indemnification permitted by the laws of the State of Nevada, and may cause this corporation to
purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a director or officer of
this corporation, or is or was serving at the request of this corporation as director or officer of
another corporation, or as its representative in a partnership, joint venture, trust or other
enterprises against any liability asserted against such person and incurred in any such capacity or

arising out of such status, whether or not this corporation would have the power to indemnify
such person.

The indemnification provided in this Article VIII shall continue as to a person who has

ceased to be a director, officer, employee or agent, and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs,
executors and administrators of such person.

Notwithstanding the forgoing, the provisions of this Article VIII are subject to the
requirements and limitations set forth in state and federal laws, rule, regulations, or orders
regarding indemnification and prepayment of legal expenses, including Section 18(k) of the
Federal Deposit Insurance Act and Part 359 of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation’s rules
and regulations, or any successor regulations thereto.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we the undersigned Board of Directors of the Company have duly
executed these Articles of Incorporation as of the 20th day of November, 1997.

a1

Barry L. Hulin

e A

J ame&A McKellar, Sr.

A. Brizendine

%‘/ == //é/;m(/v

fud

ausch

Dan H. Stewart

John R. Wible

Williag E. Snyder

/

S\DAB\8140.\DOCS\CERTIFAMEND.DOC

| of 39




STATE OF NEVADA
SS
COUNTY OF CLARK

On thisyday of November, 1997, before me, the undersigned, personally appeared Robert E.

O’Connell known to me to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing
instrument and acknowledged that he executed the same.

KIMBERLY SCHROEDER \\\ N -
Notary Public - Nevads No% Pgi IC IN AND FOR SAID COUNTY

My appt. exp. fuly 18, 2000
No. 96-4320-1 AND STATE

STATE OF NEVADA
SS
COUNTY OF CLARK

On thiss\h day of November, 1997, before me, the undersigned, personally appeared George A.

Brizendine known to me to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing
instrument and acknowledged that he executed the same.

KIMBERLY SCHROEDER \>\\\\\® -

Notary Public - Nevada NOTFARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR SAID COUNTY
My appt. exp. July 18, 2000 AND STATE
No. 96-4320-1

STATE OF NEVADA
ss
COUNTY OF CLARK

On thisiwday of November, 1997, before me, the undersigned, personally appeared Mary E.

Hausch known to me to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument
and acknowledged that he executed the same.

-~

KIMBERLY SCHROEDER \W—_
Notary Public - Nevada NO % LIC IN FOR SAID COUNTY

My appt. exp. July 18, 2000 AND STATE
No. 96-4320-1
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STATE OF NEVADA
533
COUNTY OF CLARK

On thisgwday of November, 1997, before me, the undersigned, personally appeared Barry L.

Hulin known to me to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument and
acknowledged that he executed the same.

KIMBERLY SCHROEDER o N
Notary Public - Nevada NO%Y P§LIC IN AND FOR SAID COUNTY

My appt. exp. July 18, 2000
No. 06-4320-1 AND STATE

STATE OF NEVADA
Ss
COUNTY OF CLARK

On thisday of November, 1997, before me, the undersigned, personally appeared William

E. Snyder known to me to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing
instrument and acknowledged that he executed the same.

ER®\  KIMBERLY SCHROEDER \f\\&m

) Notary Public - Nevada NOTARY RUBLIC IN AND FOR SAID COUNTY
My appt. exp. July 18, 2000 AND STATE
No. 96-4320-1

STATE OF NEVADA
S$S
COUNTY OF CLARK

On thisy Nday of November, 1997, before me, the undersigned, personally appeared James A.

McKellar, Sr. known to me to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing
instrument and acknowledged that he executed the same.

KIMBERLY SCHROEDER &3~ g t§ ‘% §E ; E\.\
Notary Public - Nevada NO Y P LIC IN AND FOR SAID COUNTY

My appt. exp. July 18, 2000 AND STATE
No, 96-4320-1
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STATE OF NEVADA
ss
COUNTY OF CLARK

On thiscR®¥ day of November, 1997, before me, the undersigned, personally appeared Gary

- Vause known to me to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument
and acknowledged that he executed the same.

KIMBERLY SCHROEDER N\

Natary Public - Neveda NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR SAID COUNTY
My appt. exp. July 18, 2000

No. 96-4320-1 AND STATE

STATE OF NEVADA
SS
COUNTY OF CLARK

On this ____ day of November, 1997, before me, the undersigned, personally appeared Dan H.

Stewart known to me to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument
and acknowledged that he executed the same.

NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR SAID COUNTY
AND STATE

STATE OF NEVADA
ss
COUNTY OF CLARK

On thisxxw day of November, 1997, before me, the undersigned, personally appeared John R.

Wible known to me to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument
and acknowledged that he executed the same.

K!MBERLY SCHROEDER « \\

Notary Public - Nevada NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR SAID COUNTY

My appt. exp. July 18, 2000 AND STATE
No. 96-4320-1
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' THIS FORM SHOULD ACCOMPANY AMENDED AND RESTATED ARTICLES
OF INCORPORATION FOR A NEVADA CORPORATION

- .
%

= l
Fé;‘fﬂ%%edoption of Amended and Restated Articles... . November 20, 1997
IN THE OF R /
SECRETARY QF STATE OF THE

STATE OF lWEYAAes were amended, please indicate what changes have been made:
(a) Was there a name change? Yes (3 NotH  if yes, what is the new name?

auG 111998 () AL06L 91

(b) Did you change the resident agent? Yes (0 No&k
I No _agent and address.

P Tl

DEAM HiELLER, SECRETARY TF STATE

I‘ 1. Name of corporation Valley Bank

lf yes, please indicate the new resident

Please attach the resident agent acceptance certificate.

(¢) Did you change the purposes? Yes[J Nokk Did you add Banking? O  Gaming? O
Insurance? (J Nene of these? (O

(d) Did you change the capital stock? Yes [l NoEX If yes, what is the new capital stock?

(e) Did you ~hange the directors? Yes [J No @X If yes, indicate the change:

() Did you add the directors liability provision? Yes®¥¥ No [J

(g) Did you change the period of existence? Yes[d No &KX If yes, what is the new existence?

(h) 1f none of the above apply, and you have amended or modified the articles, how did you change your
articles?

W BAMVL.H‘VUN & >enT s CE€ED

Name and Title of Officer

z/?{??

ate

| l

State of / \/Q(,Zfdb
County of C{Ufl‘-' }ss.

7
On O/f’f\/ Z : /{75////? - 8/7/4K . persqnally appeared before me, a Notary Public,

|
|
| " Dtsiclnt 5. Ceo
i
i
|

f , who acknowledged
that he/she executed the above instrument.

ey | m)/}z/% /@@

=y Notary Public-State Of Nevadal Notary SdBiic

County Ot Clark

: |
norSARML W Nany |
ay 5, 2001 |

il 35 of A3

[{+3 3]




! FQE}SE;Q THE

<IN THE ICEQF THE

L JRETARY OF STATE OF THE
STATE OFNEVADA

SEP 15 1997 ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
v ' o of the '
B C)/ Qfﬂ C=77 VALLEY BANK
oy A

ZAN HELLER SECRETARY OF STATE

The undersigned, for the purpose of forming a Corporation, pursuant to and by virtue of Chapter 78
of the Nevada Revised Statutes, hereby certify and adopt the following Articles of Incorporation.
ARTICLE
NAME

The name of the Corporation shall be: VALLEY BANK.

ARTICLE IT
DURATION

The Corporation shall have perpetual existence.

ARTICLE II1

The purpose for which this Corporation is organized is to engage in any banking business or activity
not forbidden by law; banking regulation, or these Articles of Incorporation.
ARTICLE IV
RESIDENT AGENT

The designated Resident Agent for the Corporation, which may be changed from time to time by the
Board of Directors, shall be:

‘Robert E. O’Connell 7225 Montecito Circle
Las Vegas, NV 89120

(Rev. 08/09/97) Articles of Incorporation - 1
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ARTICLE Y
PRINCIPAL OFFICE

The location of the principal office of the Corporation in the State of Nevada is 461 North Stephanie
Rd., Henderson, Nevada 89014. The Corporation may also maintain an office or offices at such other
place or places, either within or without the State of Nevada, as may be determined, from time to
time, by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VI
CAPITAL STOCK

SECTION 1. Authorized Shares. The aggregate sum of shares which the Corporation shall have
the authority to issue is 2,000,000 shares of voting Common Stock, with a par value of $1.00 per
share and 500,000 shares of non-voting Preferred Stock, with a par value of $1.00 per share. The
Board of Directors may, from time to time by proper resolution, increase or decrease the number of
authorized shares of voting Common Stock and the number of authorized shares of non-voting
Preferred Stock, and may create any new class or series of stock and may prescribe the classes, series
and the number of each class or series of stock and the voting powers, designations, preferences,
limitations, restrictions and relative rights of each class or series of stock.

SECTION 2. Consideration for Shares. The Common and Preferred Stock authorized by Section
1 of this Article shall be issued for such consideration as shall be fixed, from time to time, by the
Board of Directors. In the absence of fraud, the judgment of the Directors as to the value of any
property received in full or partial payment for shares shall be conclusive.

SECTION 3. Preemptive Rights. Holders of Common Stock of the Corporation will have
preemptive rights. Accordingly, upon any increased issue of stock, the stockholders shall have the
pro rata preferential right to subscribe therefor at such price and on such terms as the Board of
Directors may in each instance fix.

SECTION 4. Assessment of Stock. The capital stock of the Corporation, after the amount of the
subscription price has been fully paid in, shall not be assessable for any purpose, and no stock issued
as fully paid up shall ever be assessable or assessed, except as provided by Nevada Revised Statutes
(NRS) Section 661.085 concerning the assessment, liability and possible sale of a stockholder’s stock
to restore impairment in the capital of the Corporation.

SECTION 5. Initial Subscribers of Stock. The initial subscribers for stock in the Corporation are
the members of the first Board of Directors and other Non-Director Organizers, each of whom is
listed in Article VII immediately below, together with their proposed subscriptions for stock. The
aggregate of their subscriptions for stock in the Corporation is 166,000 shares.

(Rev. 08/09/97) ' Articles of Incorporation - 2
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ARTICLE VII

ORGANIZER-INCORPORATORS
AND
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECTION 1: Organizers and Incorporators. The Corporation is being organized by all of the
individuals whose names and addresses appear in Sections 3 and 4 of this Article VII. These
Organizers are also the Incorporators of the Corporation, a majority of whom shall sign these Articles
in accordance with NRS Section 659.025.4.

SECTION 2: Board of Directors. The governing body of the Corporation shall be the Board of
Directors. The members of the Board of Directors of the Corporation shall be styled as Directors.
Directors must be stockholders. The number of Directors shall be at least five (5), except when
otherwise permitted by NRS Section 78.115, in cases where all the shares of the Corporation are
owned beneficially and of record by less than three (3) stockholders. The number of Directors may
bg changed from time to time in such manner as shall be provided by the By-Laws of the Corporation.
“é‘-" ‘*\gu Me»\r 637&%90&% Shall be 13, i ’ ’ ’

SECTION 3: Initial Board of Directors. The names, addresses and initial subscriptions of stock
in the Corporation of the Directors constituting the first Board of Directors are:

Name Address Stock Subscription
Robert E. O’Connell 7225 Montecito Circle 10,000 shares
Chairman Las Vegas, NV 89120
Thomas J. Krob 1533 Champion Hills Lane 10,000 shares
Vice Chairman Las Vegas, NV 89134
George A. Brizendine 3650 S. Eastern Ave. 10,000 shares

Suite 220
Las Vegas, NV 89109
Don Hamilton 3418 S. Seneca Dr. 10,000 shares

Las Vegas, NV 89109

Mary E. Hausch 1139 South Fifth Place 10,000 shares
Las Vegas, NV 89104
Barry L. Hulin 9425 San Laguna Ct., #104 2,500 shares

Las Vegas, NV 89134

(Rev. 08/09/97) Articles of Incorporation - 3
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James A. McKellar, Sr.

William E. Snyder

Dan H. Stewart

Gary Vause

David F. Welles

John R. Wible

3340 S. Topaz 10,000 shares
Suite 240

Las Vegas, NV 89121

709 Valley Verde Court 10,000 shares

Henderson, NV 89014

P.O. Box 2065
Henderson, NV 89009

3020 Plaza De Monte
Las Vegas, NV 89102

10,000 shares

2480 East Tompkins Ave.
Suite 222
Las Vegas, NV 89121

10,000 shares

1434 Angola Ave. 8,500 shares

La Habra Heights, CA 90631

10,000 shares

SECTION 4: Non-Director Organizers. The names, addresses and initial subscriptions of stock
in the Corporation of the Non-Director Organizers are:

Name

Ned Bearden

Harold L. Boyer

C. Neal Johnson

Christopher Scripps
McKellar

Henry and Margarete
E. Sandstede

(Rev. 08/09/97)

Address

Stock Subscription

2314 S. Western Ave.
Las Vegas, NV 89102

10,000 shares

630 South Rancho Dr. 10,000 shares
Suite E

Las Vegas, NV 89106

P.O. Box 6070 3,500 shares
Incline Village, NV 89450-6070

12526 High Bluff Dr. 10,000 shares
Suite 100

San Diego, CA 92030

8275 El Paseo 10,000 shares

La Jolla, CA 92037

Articles of Incorporation - 4
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Mona J. Steen ' 3860 Riviera Dr., #102 10,000 shares
La Jolla, CA 92109

Chris A. Wible 2312 Carinth Way 1,500 shares
Henderson, NV 89014

ARTICLE VIII

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

SECTION 1: Director and Officer Liability. No Director or Officer of the Corporation shall be
personally liable to the Corporation or to any of its stockholders for damages for breach of fiduciary
duty as a Director or Officer involving any act or omission of any such Director or Officer, provided,
however, that the foregoing provision shall not eliminate the liability of a Director or Officer for: (1)
acts or omissions which involve intentional misconduct, fraud or a knowing violation of law; or (2)
the payment of dividends in violation of NRS Section 78.300. Any repeal or modification of this
Article by the stockholders of the Corporation shall be prospective only, and shall not adversely affect
any limitation on the personal liability of a Director or Officer of the Corporation for acts or
omissions prior to such repeal or modification.

SECTION 2: Stockholder Liability. The holders of Common and Preferred Stock in the
Corporation shall not be individually responsible or liable for the debts, contracts or liabilities of the
Corporation. Notwithstanding anything in these Articles to the contrary, however, stockholders shall
be liable as provided in NRS Section 661.085 concerning the assessment, liability and possible sale
of a stockholder’s stock to restore impairment in the capital of the Corporation.

ARTICLE IX
INDEMNIFICATION
In addition to any other powers provided by law or by these Articles of Incorporation, the
Corporation shall have the power to indemnify Directors, Officers, employees and agents of the

Corporation under such circumstances and conditions as may from time to time be determined by the
Board of Directors.

(Rev. 08/09/97) Articles of Incorporation - 3
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ARTICLE X
AMENDMENTS
The Articles of Incorporation may be amended from time to time by a majority vote of the
‘stockholders at a properly convened meeting of stockholders or by vote of holders of a majority of

the voting shares of the Corporation without a meeting, and all rights conferred upon stockholders
herein are granted subject to this reservation.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we the undersigned ¢ rganizer-Incorporators have duly executed these
Articles of Incorporation this .4/ ¥’ day of 1 /ﬂf L, , 1997.

/ orge A. Brizendine Don Hamilton

\ BarryL Hulm

s u\@v VR

Ja McKellar, Sr.

( #/%ML

Dan H. Stewart

™~

C]‘/ary Vause David F. Welles
Of%w %%//& //m X. /1],/}-’9
. Jofin R. Wible Chris A. Wible
' (Rev. 08/09/97) Articles of Incorporation - 6
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STATE OF NEVADA )
: ) ss.
COUNTY OF CLARK )

AF 7
On this -,Jlg A'rc/iay of /{"Zu;‘,ﬂf , 1997, before me, the undersigned, personally
appeared Robert E. O’Connell}nown to me to be the person described in and who executed the
foregoing instrument and acknowledged that he executed the same.

MWW$
5 PUBLIC u‘
Y s#%é@é NEVADA &
e ., County of Cliﬂ; R /o .
&ZYJ OVEALEAWMITE NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR SAID
\c-urnent¥E’fFl""35 Fab. 11,1
e COUNTY AND STATE
STATE OF NEVADA )
) ss.
COUNTY OF CLARK )

On this ;7{ day of/zb,.,/ ,ZL

, 1997, before me, the undersigned, personally

appeared Thomas J. Krolc)k)énown to me to be the person described in and who executed the

foregoing instrument and a

z = PR ZRL
- NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF NEVADA
County of Clark
OVEA LEAWHITE

My Appointment Em:res Feb. 11, 1999

ZTE FIREER &SP XD

STATE OF NEVADA )

COUNTY OF CLARK )

On this /3¢ day of W

nowledged that he executed the same.

&> / /—""4 —

NOTARY PUBIAC 1IN AND FOR SAID

COUNTY AND STATE

, 1997, before me, the undersigned, personally

appeared George A. Brizendin&known to me to be the person described in and who executed the
foregoing instrument and acknowledged that he executed the same.

THELENE VAMOE ]
Notary Public - Stats of Nevada  §

s g) Aoguirtran Pecored i Cat Cory
g wwmmﬂ.lm ’

(Rev. 08/09/97)

NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR SAID
COUNTY AND STATE
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STATE OF NEVADA )

) ss.
COUNTY OF CLARK )

On this ozf@ay of 4 el , 1997, before me, the undersigned, personally
appeared Don Hamilton knowi¥to me to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing

instrument and acknowledged that he executed the same.

DELORES MIHOVICH
Notary Public - Nevada

%~ My appt. exp. Doc. 9, 2000 /% / ,
>‘p y No. 96-5473-1 ,oé-bw

NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR SAID

COUNTY AND STATE
STATE OF NEVADA )
) ss.
COUNTY OF CLARK )
/“.
On this 7“/""’/21ay of /, 4;44,4}4 , 1997, before me, the undersigned, personally

appeared Mary E. Hausch kyfown to me to be the person described in and who executed the
foregoing instrument and acknowledged that she executed the same.

NOTARY PUBLIC 2
STATE OF NEVADA ; /?L
County of Clark a / £

BT OEEC

L LLlE ok, Vit
DA ‘NOFARY PUBLIC' IN AND FOR SAID
Yoracanino oo e COUNTY AND STATE
STATE OF NEVADA )
) ss.

COUNTY OF CLARK )

On this,é( 47/§ay of %/{/,44}4 , 1997, before me, the undersigned, personally
rry

appeared Barry L. Hulin Tclno(?/ to me to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing
instrument and acknowledged that he executed the same.

7 ,

NOTARY PUBLIC ' ‘

\  STATE OF NEVADA /

/ County of Clark \ / Z. Al LY -
OVEALEAWHITE N PUBLIC IN AND FOR SAID

gt Eies £ 11,1989 § COUNTY AND STATE

(Rev. 08/09/97) Articles of Incorporation - 8
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STATE OF NEVADA )

) ss.

COUNTY OF WASHOE )

On this /

| day of /;" (reyd ”—P , 1997, before me, the undersigned, personally
appeared C.

Neal Johnson knéwn to me to be the person described in and who executed the

foregoing instrument and acknowledged that he executed the same.

e n
&3 3._ Notary Public - State of Nevada " / {,’ . J x.,/ @ / ,,,L, 7 !

I

THERESA CHAPMAN /) -

] Recorded in W, -
i it bt NOTARY PUBLIC TN AKD FOR SAID

COUNTY AND STATE

STATE OF NEVADA )

) ss.

COUNTY OF CLARK )

On thxs 97

< /fiay of / g /),/;‘J,}L , 1997, before me, the undersigned, personally

appeared James A. McKellar Kknown to me to be the person described in and who executed the

foregoing instrument and ackniowledged that he executed the same.

T r‘:rzxwgi-uwmg
NOTARY FUBLIC ‘
STATE OF NEVADA S

County of Clark // 7,

OVEA LEA WHITE NOTARY PthLI(f IN AND TOR SADD

My intmem Expiras Fab. 11,1999 § COUNTY AND STATE

Sorperemr T PR T TIR LIS s

STATE OF NEVADA )

) ss.

COUNTY OF CLARK )

On this O #A4 day of ,3@22‘2‘_73 Lﬂ( ) , 1997, before me, the undersigned, personally
appeared William E. Snyder known to me to be the person described in and who executed the
foregoing instrument and acknowledged that he executed the same.

‘q het..ry ~ubfic - State cf Nevada
#4y Comm. Expires Oct. 29, 1998

CroALsol .
w210 A WiERceR xﬂ%(/w, ,ﬂ /7?%&0\

/NOTARY/PUBLIC IN AND FOR SAID
COUNTY AND STATE

CLARK COUNTY

(Rev. 08/09/97)
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STATE OF NEVADA )

) ss.
COUNTY OF CLARK )

On this :—ﬁ day of //;,/74,/, )Z , 1997, before me, the undersigned, personally

appeared Dan H. Stewart wn to me to be the person described in and who executed the
foregoing instrument and ackriowledged that he executed the $ame.

\
\

NOTAHYPUBL!C X
n STATE OF NEVADA §

County of Clark
OVEALEAWHITE

Jh 7=

“NOTARY PﬁLIc IN° AND FOR SAID

MYInmentEmEes Feb. 11,1999 § COUNTY AND STATE
STATE OF NEVADA )
: ) ss.
COUNTY OF CLARK )
. VN ;
On this 2& day of M\Uﬁt , 1997, before me, the undersigned, personally

appeared Gary Vause known to me to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing
instrument and acknowledged that he executed the same.

OFFICIAL SEAL =
DIANE MARKLE \/VY\CU/ 1 Q
NOTARY PUBLIC - NEVADA /
PRINCIPAL OFFICE IN -

" CLARK COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR SAID
No.97.1678-1 My Comm. Exp. Apt. 29, 2001 COUNTY AND STATE

STATE OF NEVADA )
) ss.
COUNTY OF CLARK )

On this FJ¢f)day of W , 1997, before me, the undersigned, personally
appeared David F. Welles knéwn to me to be the person described in and who executed the
foregoing instrument and acknowledged that he executed the same.

Rlebew £ Unhado

NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR SAID
COUNTY AND STATE

(Rev. 08/09/97) Articles of Incorporation - 10
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STATE OF NEVADA )

} ss.
COUNTY OF CLARK )

5
On this iﬁ /ﬁay of _/ 2‘ ) zand , 1997, before me, the undersigned, personally
appeared John R. Wible known fo me to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing
instrument and acknowledged that he executed the same.

3 YR T

< TAHY PUBUIC
“E OF NEVADA

Caunty of Clark
J"r ALEAWHITE

rpepat e Tpliag Fab, 11, 1999

COUNTY AND STATE

STATE OF NEVADA )
COUNTY OF CLARK )
On this é[’ﬁfday of {/, A e / , 1997, before me, the undersigned, personally

appeared Chris A. Wible knowryto me to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing
instrument and acknowledged that he executed the same. "

NOTAHY PUBLIC

STATE OF NEVADA f% NOTARY BUBLIC [N AND FOR SAID
OVEA LEA WHITE X COUNTY AND STATE
N M Anecmrmant Expfres Fab. 11,1999 §
e :
(Rev. 08/09/97) _ _ Articles of Incorporation - 11
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B suED

IN THE OFFICE | DF THE
SECHRETARY OF STATE OF THE

BSTATE OF NEVADA
' CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE

SEP 151997 of
APPOINTMENT OF RESIDENT AGENT
B &/ 9wc-97

' EAN HE Zﬁl';?clr}c}ééjéﬂ‘ T E. O°CONNELL, of 7225 Montecito Circle, Las Vegas, Nevada 89120, hereby accept
appomtment as Resndent Agent for the Valley Bank of Henderson, Nevada.

Executed the ~2/ day of Z/ij’ , 1997.

7 Qb

Rob E. O’Connell

STATE OF NEVADA )

‘ ) ss.
COUNTY OF CLARK )

o e oo LT .
On this =/* =/*" day of 44, //' , 1997, before me, the undersigned, personally
appeared Robert E. O’ Conné)f known to me to be the person described in and who executed the

foregoing instrument and acknowledged that he executed the same.
County of Clark

///
et OVEALEAWHITE § \ A U’éTfCl IN AND FOR SAID
My Appointment Eernc Fabte 11 1988 éf COUNTY AND STATE
Yezzaoeoe:

TR AT T e s

-’m:z‘zarv WETARF VS
& HOTASTY PUBLIL
) STATECFNEVAD: ¢

(Rev. 08/09/97)
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Exhibit 8.3

CORPORATE RESOLUTIQN AMENDINQ BYLAWS OF VALLEY BANK
AND CERTIFICATE OF CORPORATE SECRETARY

WHEREAS, on or about September 24, 1998 the Board of Directors of VALLEY BANK, a
Nevada corporation (the “Corporation”) adopted bylaws for the Corporation; and

WHEREAS, the Corporation desires to amend its bylaws in accordance with Section 10.02 of
the bylaws to give the Corporation’s Board of Directors discretion in setting the date, time and place
of the Corporation’s Annual Meetings, and to clarify the term of service for each Director;

NOW THEREFORE, it is hereby RESOLVED:  Section 2.01 of the Corporatron s bylaws
is deleted and the following new Section 2.01 is substituted therefor:

“2.01 ANNUAL MEETINGS

, The stockholders of the Corporation shall meet,‘ at least annually, at such date, time
and place, either within or outside the State of Nevada, as is designated by the Board of

Directors of the Corporation. At such annual meeting, directors shall be elected and any other
proper business may be transacted.”

RESOLVED FURTHER: The second full paragraph under Section 3.02 of the
Corporation’s bylaws is deleted and the following new paragraph is substituted therefor:

“The exact number of directors shall be fixed from time to time by resolution of a
majority of the full Board of Directors. The number of directors may be increased or
decreased from time to time by resolution of the Board of Directors or stockholders or by
amendment to the Bylaws, but no decrease shall have the effect of shortening the term of any
incumbent director, nor decrease the number of directors to less than five (5). Directors need
not be residents of the State of Nevada.”

I, DICK HOLTZCLAW, secretary of VALLEY BANK, A Nevada corporation, do hereby
certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of a Resolution of the Board of Directors of
said corporation, duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of said
corporation, duly and regularly called and held in all respects as required by the law and by the ,
bylaws of said corporation at the office thereof on the _Z2 2~ day of March, 2000, at which meeting a

majority of the Board of D1rectors of said corporation was present and voted in favor of said
Resolution.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have executed this Certificate and affixed the corporate seal this

Secretary

22 day of March, 2000.

SEAL
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CORPORATE RESOLUTION AMENDING BYLAWS OF VALLEY BANK
AND CERTIFICATE OF CORPORATE SECRETARY

WHEREAS, on or about September 24, 1998 the Board of Directors of VALLEY BANK, a
Nevada corporation (the “Corporatlon”) adopted bylaws for the Corporation; and

WHEREAS, the Corporatlon desires to amend its bylaws in accordance with Section 10.02 of
the bylaws with regards to cumulative voting.

NOW THEREFORE, it is hereby RESOLVED:  That the last paragraph of Section 2.10 of
the Corporation’s bylaws is hereby repealed, and replaced by a new paragraph as follows:

“2.10 VOTING

Cumulative voting shall not exist with respect to shares of common stock of the bank.”

I, DICK HOLTZCLAW, secretary of VALLEY BANK, A Nevada corporation, do hereby
certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of a Resolution of the Board of Directors of
said corporation, duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of said
corporation, duly and regularly called and held in all respects as required by the law and by the
bylaws of said corporation at the office thereof on the i‘i day of February, 1999, at which
meeting a majority of the Board of Directors of said corporation was present and voted in favor of
said Resolution.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have executed this Certificate and affixed the corporate seal this
f day of February, 1999.

SEAL
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BYLAWS
of
VALLEY BANK

A Nevada Banking Corporation

ARTICLE I
OFFICES

1.01 PRINCIPAL OFFICE

The Board of Directors shall fix the location of the principal executive office of Valley
Bank (hereinafter, the "Bank" or the "Corporation") at any place within the State of Nevada.

1.02 OTHER OFFICES

Branch or other subordinate offices may at any time be established by the Board of
Directors at such other places, either within or outside the State of Nevada, as it deems
appropriate.

ARTICLE I
MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

2.01 ANNUAL MEETINGS

The annual meeting of stockholders shall be held on a day in the second quarter of each
calendar year, at such time and place, either within or outside the State of Nevada, as may be
determined by the Board of Directors. At such annual meeting, directors shall be elected and any
other proper business may be transacted.

2.02 SPECIAL MEETINGS

Special meetings of the stockholders may be called at any time by the Board of Directors,
the Chairman of the Board, the President, or by any two or more stockholders owning in the
aggregate, not less than twenty-five percent (25 %) of the outstanding stock of the Corporation.
Notice of every special meeting, unless otherwise provided by law, shall be given in the same
manner as for annual meetings of stockholders.

2.03 QUORUM
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No business may be transacted at any meeting of stockholders, annual or special, unless
a quorum shall be present. The presence in person or by proxy of the holders of a majority of the
outstanding shares entitled to vote at any meeting shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of
business. If such majority is not present or represented at any meeting of the stockholders, the
stockholders entitled to vote thereat, present in person or by proxy, shall have power to adjourn
the meeting from time to time until such requisite amount of voting stock shall be present.

2.04 ADJOURNED MEETING AND NOTICE THEREOF

Any meeting of stockholders, whether or not a quorum is present, may be adjourned from
time to time by the vote of the majority of the shares, the holders of which are either present or
represented by proxy thereat, but in the absence of a quorum, except as provided in Section 2.03,
no other business may be transacted at such meeting.

When any meeting of stockholders, either annual or special, is adjourned to another time
or place, notice need not be given of the adjourned meeting if the time and place are announced
at the meeting at which the adjournment is taken. However, when any meeting of stockholders is
adjourned for more than 45 days from the date set for the original meeting or, if after
adjournment, a new record date is fixed for the adjourned meeting, notice of any such adjourned
meeting shall be given as in the case of an original meeting. At any adjourned meeting the
Corporation may transact any business which may have been transacted at the original meeting.

2.05 NOTICE OF MEETINGS ¢

All notices of meetings of stockholders shall be sent or otherwise given in accordance with
Section 2.06 to each stockholder entitled to vote thereat not less than 10 or more than 60 days
before the date of the meeting. Such notice shall state the place, date and hour of the meeting and:

(a) In the case of a special meeting, the general nature of the business to be transacted,
and no other business may be transacted; or

(b) In the case of the annual meeting, those matters which the Board of Directors, at the
time of the mailing of the notice, intends to present for action by the stockholders, but, subject to
the provisions of applicable law, any proper matter may be presented at the meeting for such
action. The notice of any meeting at which directors are to be elected shall include the proposed
number of directors and the names of nominees intended at the time of the notice to be presented
by the Board of Directors for election, and the procedure for making written nominations.

If action is proposed to be taken at any meeting for approval of (i) a contract or transaction
in which a director has a direct or indirect interest, pursuant to Section 78.140 of the Nevada
Revised Statutes ("NRS"), (ii) an amendment of the Articles of Incorporation, (iii) a reorganization
of the Corporation, (iv) a voluntary dissolution of the Corporation, or (v) a distribution in
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dissolution other than in accordance with the rights of outstanding preferred shares, the notice
shall also state the general nature of that proposal.

2.06 MANNER OF GIVING NOTICE

Notice of a meeting of stockholders shall be given either personally or by first class mail,
facsimile or telegraphic or other written communication, charges prepaid, addressed to the
stockholder at the address of that stockholder appearing on the books of the Corporation or given
by the stockholder to the Corporation for the purpose of notice. Notice shall be deemed to have
been given at the time when delivered personally or deposited in the mail or sent by facsimile or
by telegram or other means of written communication.

An affidavit of mailing or other means of giving any notice in accordance with the above
provisions, executed by the Secretary, Assistant Secretary or other transfer agent shall be prima
facie evidence of the giving of the notice.

2.07 PROXIES

Every person entitled to vote shares or execute written consents has the right to do so either
in person or by one or more persons authorized by a written proxy executed and dated by such
stockholder and filed with the Secretary of the Corporation prior to the convening of any meeting
of the stockholders at which any such proxy is to be used or prior to the use of such written
consent. A validly executed proxy which does not state that it is irrevocable continues in full force
and effect unless (a) revoked by the person executing it, before the vote pursuant thereto, by a
writing delivered to the Corporation stating that the proxy is revoked or by a subsequent proxy
executed by, or by attendance at the meeting and voting in person by, the person executing the
proxy; or (b) written notice of the death or incapacity of the maker of the proxy is received by the
Corporation before the vote pursuant thereto is counted; provided, however, that no proxy shall
be valid after the expiration of six months from the date of its execution unless otherwise provided
in the proxy or otherwise provided in Section 78.355 of the NRS.

2.08 VOTING LIST

The officer or agent having charge of the stock ledger (also known as the stock transfer
book) for shares of the Corporation shall make, at least 10 days before each meeting of
stockholders, or any adjournment thereof, arranged in alphabetical order, with the address of and
the number of shares held by each, which list, for a period of 10 days prior to the meeting, shall
be kept on file at the principal office of the Corporation and shall be subject to inspection by any
stockholder at any time during usual business hours.

(a) The list shall also be produced and kept open at the time and place of the stockholders
meeting and shall be subject to the inspection of any stockholder during the whole time of the

meeting.
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(b) The original stock ledger shall be prima facie evidence as to who are the stockholders
entitled to examine the lists or stock ledger or to vote at any meeting of stockholders.

© Failure to comply with the requirements of this Section does not affect the validity
of any action taken at the meeting. v

(d) An agent in charge of the stock ledger who fails to prepare the list of stockholders,
or to keep it on file for a period of 10 days, or produce and keep it open for inspection at the
meeting, as provided in this Section, is liable to any stockholder suffering damage on account of
the failure to the extent of the damage.

2.09 NOMINATIONS FOR DIRECTORS

Nominations for election of members of the Board of Directors may be made by the Board
of Directors or by any stockholder of any outstanding class of capital stock of the Corporation
entitled to vote for the election of directors. Nominations shall be made in writing and shall be
delivered or mailed to the Chairman of the Board of the Corporation not less than 21 days nor
more than 60 days prior to any meeting of the stockholders called for the election of the directors,
provided, however, that if less than 21 days notice of the meeting is given to stockholders, such
nomination shall be mailed or delivered to the Chairman of the Board not later than the close of
business of the tenth day following the day on which the notice of the meeting was mailed.

Such nomination shall contain the following information, to the extent known to the
notifying stockholder: (a) the name and address of each proposed nominee; (b) the principal
occupation of each proposed nominee; (c) the number of shares of capital stock of the Corporation
owned by each proposed nominee; and (d) the name and residence address of the nominating
stockholder.

2.10 VOTING

The stockholders entitled to notice of any meeting or to vote at any such meeting shall only
be those persons in whose name shares stand on the stock ledger of the Corporation on the record
date determined in accordance with Section 2.11, subject to any provisions of law relating to
voting of shares held by a fiduciary in the name of a corporation or in joint ownership.

The stockholders' vote may be by voice or ballot. On any matter, any stockholder may vote
part of the shares in favor of the proposal and refrain from voting the remaining shares or vote
them against the proposal, but if the stockholder fails to specify the number of shares which the
stockholder is voting affirmatively, it will be conclusively presumed that the stockholder's
approving vote is with respect to all shares that the stockholder is entitled to vote.

In deciding on questions at meetings of stockholders, each stockholder shall be entitled to
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one vote for each share of stock held. If a quorum is present, the affirmative vote of a majority
of the votes cast shall decide each matter submitted to the stockholders, shares presented at the
meeting and entitled to vote on any matter shall be the act of the stockholders, unless a larger vote
or voting by class is required by the NRS, the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws.

In the election of directors, the candidates receiving the highest number of votes cast, up
to the number of directors to be elected, shall be elected.

Cumulative voting shall not exist with respect to shares of Common Stock of the Bank,
except as hereinafter provided. Cumulative voting rights shall exist with regard to the election of
directors, but only if at least one stockholder gives notice prior to the commencement of voting
of his or her intention to cumulate votes. If such notice is given, each stockholder has a number
of votes equal to the number of shares owned by such stockholder, multiplied by the number of
directors to be elected, and each stockholder may cumulate such votes for a single candidate or
distribute such votes among as many candidates as the stockholder deems appropriate.

2.11 RECORD DATE

The Board of Directors may fix, in advance, a record date for the determination of the
stockholders entitled to notice of any meeting or to vote, or entitled to receive payment of any
dividend or other distribution, or any allotment of rights, or to exercise rights in respect of any
other lawful action. The record date so fixed shall not be more than 60 days nor less than 10 days
prior to the date of the meeting, nor more than 60 days prior to any other action. When a record
date is so fixed, only stockholders of record on that date are entitled to notice of and to vote at the
meeting, or to receive the dividend, distribution or allotment of rights, or to exercise the rights,
as the case may be, notwithstanding any transfer of shares on the books of the Corporation after
the record date. A determination of stockholders of record entitled to notice of or to vote at a
meeting of stockholders shall apply to any adjournment of the meeting unless the Board of
Directors fixes a new record date for the adjourned meeting. The Board of Directors shall fix a
new record date if the meeting is adjourned for more than 45 days.

If no record date is fixed by the Board of Directors, the record date for determining
stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of stockholders shall be at the close of
business on the business day next preceding the day on which notice is given, or, if notice is
waived, the close of business on the business day next preceding the day on which the meeting is
held. The record date for determining stockholders for any purpose shall be at the close of
business on the day on which the Board of Directors adopts the resolution related thereto, or if
later, the sixtieth (60th) day prior to the date of such other action.

2.12 CONDUCT OF MEETINGS

The President or, in his absence, the Chairperson of the Board of Directors shall act as
Chairperson at all meetings of the stockholders.

5
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The Chairperson shall conduct each meeting in a business like and fair manner, but shall
not be obliged to follow any technical, formal or parliamentary rules or principles of procedure.
The Chairperson's rulings on procedural matters shall be conclusive. Without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, the Chairperson shall have all the powers usually vested in the
Chairperson of a meeting of stockholders.

2.13 CONSENT OF ABSENTEES

The transactions of any meeting of stockholders, however called and noticed, and wherever
held, are as valid as though done at a meeting duly held after regular call and notice, if a quorum
is present either in person or by proxy, and if, either before or after the meeting, each of the
persons entitled to vote, not present in person or by proxy, signs a waiver of notice or a consent
to the holding of the meeting or any approval of the minutes thereof. All such waivers, consents
or approvals shall be filed with the records of the Corporation or made part of the minutes of the
meeting.

Attendance of a person at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of and presence at
such meeting, except when the person objects, at the beginning of the meeting, to the transaction
of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened and except that attendance
at a meeting is not a waiver of any right to object to the consideration of matters required to be
included in the notice but not so included, if such objection is expressly made at the meeting.

Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of, any regular or special meeting
of stockholders need be specified in any written waiver of notice, except that if action is taken or
proposed to be taken for approval of any of those matters specified in the second paragraph of
Section 2.05 the waiver of notice or consent shall state the general nature of the proposal.

2.14 ACTION BY WRITTEN CONSENT WITHOUT A MEETING

Any action which may be taken at any annual or special meeting of stockholders may be
taken without a meeting and without prior notice, if a consent in writing, setting forth the action
so taken, is signed by the holders of the outstanding shares having not less than the minimum
number of votes that would be necessary to authorize to take such action at a meeting at which all
shares entitled to vote thereon were present and voted, or their proxies.

In the case of the election of directors, such written consent shall be effective only if signed
by the holders of all the outstanding shares entitled to vote for election of directors.

All such consents shall be filed with the Secretary of the Corporation and shall be
maintained in the records of the Corporation. Any stockholder giving a written consent may
revoke the consent by a writing received by the Secretary of the Corporation before written
consents of the number of shares required to authorize the proposed action have been filed with
the Secretary.
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If the unanimous written consent of all stockholders entitled to vote shall not have been
received, the Secretary shall give prompt notice of the corporate action approved by the
stockholders without meeting. In the case of approval of (a) contracts or transactions in which a
Director has a direct or indirect financial interest, (b) indemnification of agents of the Corporation,
(c) a reorganization of the Corporation, and (d) a distribution in dissolution other than in
accordance with the rights of the outstanding preferred shares, the notice shall be given at least
10 days before the consummation of any action authorized by that approval, pursuant to Section
2.05 .

2.15 INSPECTORS OF ELECTION

In advance of any meeting of stockholders, the Board of Directors may appoint any persons
other than nominees for office as inspectors of election to act at such meeting and any adjournment
thereof. If no inspectors of election are appointed, or if any persons so appointed fail to appear
or fail or refuse to act, the Chairperson of any such meeting, and on the request of any stockholder
or stockholder's proxy, shall appoint inspectors of election at the meeting. The number of
inspectors shall be three. A vacancy may be filled by the Chairperson.

The duties of such inspectors shall include: determining the number of shares outstanding
and the voting power of each; the shares represented at the meeting; the existence of a quorum,;
the authenticity, validity and the effect of the proxies; receiving votes, ballots or consents; hearing
and determining all challenges and questions in any way arising in connection with the right to
vote; counting and tabulating all votes or consents; determining when the polls shall close;
determining the result; and doing such acts as may be proper to conduct the election or vote with
fairness to all stockholders. The decision, act or certification of a majority of the inspectors is
effective in all respects as the decision, act or certification of all.

ARTICLE III
DIRECT

3.01 STANDARD OF CARE

Each director shall exercise such powers and otherwise perform such duties in good faith
and in a manner such director reasonably believes to be in or not opposed to the best interests of

“the Corporation, and with such care, including reasonable inquiry, using ordinary prudence, as

a person in like position would use under similar circumstances.
3.02 NUMBER AND QUALIFICATIONS OF DIRECTORS

The property and business of this Corporation shall be managed generally by the Board of
Directors. Except as otherwise permitted by the banking laws and regulations applicable to the
Corporation, the number of directors shall not be less than five nor more than 15 with no more
than two being employees of the Corporation, until changed by amendment to these Bylaws or by
a resolution of the stockholders at any annual or special meeting thereof. The initial directors shall

7

Q1 4 239

e ————,—— ]



l

hold office until the first meeting of the Annual Stockholders Meeting, which meeting shall occur
on a day in the second quarter of 1999.

The exact number of directors shall be fixed from time to time by resolution of a majority
of the full Board of Directors. The number of directors may be increased or decreased from time
to time by resolution of the Board of Directors or stockholders or by amendment to these Bylaws
but no decrease shall have the effect of shortening the term of any incumbent director. The term
of each director shall be until the next annual meeting of stockholders, and each director shall hold
office for the term for which he is elected and until his successor has been elected and qualified.
Directors need not be residents of the State of Nevada.

The directors shall be elected each year at the annual meeting of stockholders or at a
special meeting called and held for that purpose. Each director shall be appointed to serve for a
term of three years until his successor shall be appointed and qualified. The terms of the directors
shall be fixed such that approximately one-third of the total number of directors is elected each
year.

No person is eligible to serve as a director of this Corporation unless he or she is a bona
fide owner of the stock of the Corporation or its parent corporation. The stock owned must have
a total fair market value of $1,000 or more as of the date it was purchased or the date the person
becomes a director. The stock must be fully paid and not pledged.

Without the prior consent of a majority of the Board of Directors, no person shall be a
member of the Board of Directors of this Corporation:

(a) Who is a director, officer, employee, agent, nominee or attorney of any banking
corporation, bank holding company, thrift, savings and loan association or other type of institution
engaged in business in Nevada and providing financial services in competition to the Corporation,
or of any affiliate or subsidiary thereof, other than this Corporation or any of its subsidiaries or
affiliates; or '

(b) Who has or is the nominee of anyone who has a contract, arrangement or understanding
with any such business or with any officer, director, employee, agent, nominee, attorney or other
representative thereof that he will reveal or in any way utilize information obtained as a director
or that he will, directly or indirectly, attempt to effect or encourage any action of this Corporation.

3.03 POWERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Subject to the provisions of Chapters 78, 659 and 661 of the NRS and any limitations in
the Articles of Incorporation and these Bylaws relating to an action required to be approved by the
stockholders or by the outstanding shares, the business and affairs of the Corporation shall be

managed and all corporate powers shall be exercised by or under the direction of the Board of
Directors. The Board of Directors may delegate the management of the day to day operation of

8
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the business of the Corporation to the officers of the Corporation, provided that the business and
affairs of the Corporation shall be managed and all corporate powers shall be exercised under the
ultimate direction of the Board of Directors. Without prejudice to such general powers, but subject
to the same limitations, it is hereby expressly declared that the Board of Directors shall have the
following powers in addition to the other powers enumerated in these Bylaws and in the laws of
the State of Nevada:

(a) To select and remove any officer, agent or employee of the Corporation; to prescribe
any powers and duties for each person that are consistent with law and with the Articles of
Incorporation and these Bylaws; to fix such person's compensation; and to require from such
person security for faithful service;

(b) To conduct, manage and control the affairs and business of the Corporation and to make
such rules and regulations therefor not inconsistent with law, or with the Articles of Incorporation
or these Bylaws as they deem best;

(c) To adopt, make and use a corporate seal, and to prescribe the forms of certificates of
stock, and to alter the form of such seal and of such certificates from time to time as in their
judgment they may deem best;

(d) To authorize the issuance of shares of stock of the Corporation from time to time, upon
such terms and for such consideration as may be lawful and to take such other actions in regard
thereto as may be authorized by the Articles of Incorporation;

(e) To borrow money and incur indebtedness for the purposes of the Corporation, and to
cause to be executed and delivered therefor, in the corporate name, promissory and capital notes,
bonds, debentures, deeds of trust, mortgages, pledges, hypothecations or other evidences of debt
and securities therefor and any agreements pertaining thereto;

® To prescribe the manner in which, and the person or persons by whom, any or all
of the checks, drafts, notes, contracts and other corporate instruments shall be executed;

(g) To appoint and designate, by resolution adopted by a majority of the authorized number
of directors, one or more committees, each consisting of two or more directors, including the
appointment of alternate members of any committee who may replace any absent member at any
meeting of the committee; and '

(h) Generally, to do and perform every act or thing whatever that may pertain to or be
authorized by the Board of Directors of a commercial bank under the laws of the State of Nevada.

3.04 OATH: SUBSCRIPTION AND FILING

Each director of this Corporation, upon taking office, after the Corporation's receipt of a
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Certificate of Authority to transact business as a bank from the Nevada Commissioner of Financial
Institutions, shall make an oath or affirmation that:

(a) He or she will, so far as the duty devolves upon him, diligently and honestly administer
the affairs of the Corporation, and will not knowingly violate, or willingly permit to be violated,
any of the provisions of law applicable to the Corporation; and

(b)  He or she is the owner, in good faith and in his or her own right, of the number of
shares of stock standing in his or her name on the books of the Corporation, and that the stock is
not hypothecated or in any way pledged as security for any loan or debt.

Such oath shall be subscribed by the director and certified by the officer before whom it
is taken or by the Secretary of the Corporation.

3.05 LOCATION OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at any place within the State of
Nevada which has been designated in the notice of meeting or if there is no notice, at the principle
executive office of the Corporation, or at a place designated by resolution of the Board of
Directors or by the written consent of all members of the Board of Directors. Any regular or
special meeting is valid wherever held if held upon written consent of all members of the meeting
and filed with the Secretary.

3.06 ORGANIZATION MEETING

The President or in his absence, the Chairperson of the Board, upon receiving the certification of
the inspectors of election of the result of the appointment shall notify the directors-elect of their
appointment and of the time and day at which they are required to meet at the office of the
Corporation for the purpose of organizing the new Board of Directors and electing and appointing
officers of the Corporation for the succeeding year. Such meeting shall be held on the day of the
election or as soon thereafter as practicable, and in any event, within 30 days thereof If, at the
time fixed for such meeting, there shall not be a quorum present, the directors present may adjourn
the meeting, from time to time, until a quorum is obtained.

3.07 REGULAR MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held without notice, no less than
quarterly, at a time and place to be fixed by the Board of Directors ; provided, however, should
said day fall upon a legal holiday observed by the Corporation at its principal office, then said

meeting shall be held at the same time and place on the next succeeding full business day. Notice
of all such regular meetings of the Board of Directors is not required.

3.08 SPECIAL MEETINGS

Special meetings of the Board of Directors for any purpose or purposes may be called at
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any time by the Chairperson of the Board, the President, the Secretary or by the lesser of either
a majority of the Board of Directors or any five directors.

Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held upon four (4) days written notice
by mail or 48 hours notice delivered personally or by telephone, facsimile or telegraph. Any such
notice shall be addressed or delivered to each director at such director's address as it is shown
upon the records of the Corporation or as may have been given to the Corporation by the director
for purposes of notice or, if such address is not shown on such records or is not readily
ascertainable, at the place in which the meeting of the directors are regularly held. Such notice
may, but need not, specify the purpose of the meetings, nor the place if the meeting is to be held
at - the principal executive office of the Corporation. Notice of any meeting of the Board of
Directors need not be given to any director who attends the meeting without protesting the lack
of notice to such director, either prior thereto or at its commencement.

Notice by mail shall be deemed to have been given at the time a written notice is deposited
in the U.S. mail, postage prepaid. Any other written notice shall be deemed to have been given
at the time it is personally delivered to the recipient or is delivered to a common carrier for
transmission, or is actually transmitted by the person giving the notice by electronic means to the
recipient.

Oral notice shall be deemed to have been given at the time it is communicated, in person,
by telephone, facsimile or wireless, to the recipient or to a person at the office of the recipient
whom the person giving the notice has reason to believe will promptly communicate it to the
recipient.

3.09 WAIVER OF NOTICE
The transactions of any meeting of the Board of Directors, however called and noticed or
wherever held, shall be as valid as though had at a meeting held after regular call and notice if a

quorum is present and if, either before or after the meeting, each of the directors not present signs
a written waiver of notice, a consent to holding a meeting, or an approval of the minutes. "

The waiver of notice or consent need not specify the purpose of the meeting. All such
waivers, consents and approvals shall be filed with the records of the Corporation or made a part
of the minutes of the meeting. Notice of a meeting shall also be deemed given to any director who
attends the meeting protesting before or at its commencement, the lack of notice to that meeting.

3.10 ADJOURNMENT

A majority of the directors present, whether or not constituting a quorum, may adjourn any
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meeting to another time and place.
3.11 NOTICE OF ADJOURNMENT

Notice of the time and place of holding an adjourned meeting need not be given, unless the
meeting is adjourned for more than 24 hours, in which case notice of the time and place shall be
given before the time of the adjourned meeting, in the manner specified in Section 3.08, to the
directors who were not present at the time of the adjournment. '

3.12 ACTION WITHOUT MEETING

Any action required or permitted to be taken by the Board of Directors may be taken
without a meeting, if all members of the Board of Directors shall individually or collectively
consent in writing to that action. Such action by written consent shall have the same force and
effect as a unanimous vote of the Board of Directors. Such written consent or consents shall be
filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the Board of Directors.

3.13 VACANCIES

A vacancy or vacancies in the Board of Directors shall be deemed to exist in the event of
the death, resignation or removal of any director, or if the Board of Directors by resolution
declares vacant the office of a director for cause, or if the authorized number of directors is
increased, or if the stockholders fail, at any meeting of stockholders at which any director or
directors are elected, to elect the number of directors to be voted for at the meeting.

3.14 RESIGNATION

Any director may resign his or her office at any time. Such resignation shall be made in
writing and shall take effect immediately upon delivery to the President, Secretary or the Board
of Directors, or at the time specified therein. No acceptance of a resignation shall be necessary
or required to make it effective, unless expressly so provided in the resignation. If the resignation
of a director is effective at a future time, the Board of Directors may elect a successor to take
office when the resignation becomes effective.

3.15 REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

Any director of the Corporation may be removed at any time, either with or without cause,
by the vote or written consent of stockholders representing not less than two-thirds of the issued
and outstanding capital stock entitled to voting power, pursuant to the terms of Section 78.335 of
the Nevada Revised Statutes.

No reduction of the authorized number of directors shall have the effect of removing any
director before that director’s term of office expires.
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3.16 FILLING BOARD VACANCIES

Vacancies in the Board of Directors may be filled by a majority of the remaining directors,
though less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining director, except that a vacancy created by the
removal of a director by the vote or written consent of the stockholders or by a court order may
be filled by the vote of a majority of the shares entitled to vote represented at a duly held meeting
of stockholders at which a quorum is present, or by unanimous written consent of holders of the
outstanding shares entitled to vote. Each director so elected shall hold office until the next annual
meeting of the stockholders and until a successor has been elected and qualified.

In the event a vacancy on the Board of Directors has not been filled by the directors within
60 days of the vacancy, a director may be elected to fill the vacancy by written consent of the
holders of a majority of the outstanding shares entitled to vote for the election of directors,
excepting in-the case of a removal of a director pursuant to Section 78.335 of the NRS.

3.17 FEES AND COMPENSATION

Directors and members of committees may receive such compensation, if any, for their
services, and such reimbursement for expenses, as may be fixed or determined from time to time
by resolution of the Board of Directors. This Section 3.17 shall not be construed to preclude any
director from serving the Corporation in any other capacity as an officer, agent, employee or
otherwise, and receiving compensation for those services.

3.18 QUORUM AT BOARD MEETINGS

A majority of the authorized number of directors shall constitute a quorum of the Board
of Directors for the transaction of business, except to adjourn as hereinafter provided. Every act
or decision done or made by a majority of the directors present at a meeting duly held at which
a quorum is present shall be regarded as the act of the Board of Directors, unless (a) a greater
number is required by law, by the Articles of Incorporation or by these Bylaws or (b) the Board
of Directors is approving committee appointments, indemnification of directors or contracts or
transactions in which a director has a direct or indirect material personal or financial interest, in
which events the terms of Section 3.21 below shall apply.

A meeting at which a quorum is initially present may continue to transact business,
notwithstanding the voluntary withdrawal of directors, if any action taken is approved by at least
a majority of the required quorum for such meeting.

3.19 MANIFESTATION OF DISSENT

A director who is present at a meeting of the Board of Directors at which action on any
corporate matter is taken shall be presumed to have assented to the action taken unless his dissent
shall be entered in the minutes of the meeting or unless he shall file his written dissent to such
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action with the Secretary of the meeting before the adjournment thereof or shall forward such
dissent by registered mail to the Secretary of the Corporation immediately after the adjournment
of the meeting. Such right to dissent shall not apply to a director who voted in favor of such
action.

3.20 INSPECTION BY DIRECTORS

Every director shall have the absolute right at any reasonable time to inspect all books,
records and documents of every kind and the physical properties of the Corporation and each of
its subsidiary corporations. This inspection by a director may be made in person or by an
authorized agent or attorney and the right of inspection includes the right to copy and make
extracts of documents.

3.21 TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN DIRECTORS AND CORPORATION

3.21.1 No contract or other transaction between the Corporation and one or more of its
directors or officers, or between the Corporation and any corporation, firm, partnership or
association in which one or more of its directors or officers are directors or officers or are
financially interested, is either void or voidable solely for this reason or solely because any such
director or officer is present at the meeting of the Board of Directors or a committee thereof which
authorizes or approves the contract or transaction, or because the vote or votes of common or
interested directors are counted for such purpose, if (a) the contract or transaction is fair to the
Corporation at the time it is authorized or approved, and (b) the circumstances specified in either
of the following exist:

@) The fact of the common directorship or financial interest is disclosed or
known to the Board of Directors or committee and noted in the minutes,
and the Board of Directors or committee authorizes, approves or ratifies the
contract or transaction in good faith by a vote sufficient for the purpose
without counting the vote or votes of such director or directors.

(i) The fact of the common directorship or financial interest is disclosed or
- known to the stockholders, and they approve or ratify the contract or
transaction in good faith by a majority vote or written consent of
stockholders holding a majority of the shares entitled to vote; the votes of
the common or interested directors or officers shall be counted in any such

vote of stockholders.

3.21.2 Common or interested directors may be counted in determining the presence of a
quorum at a meeting of the Board of Directors or a committee thereof which authorizes, approves
or ratifies a contract or transaction, and if the votes of the common or interested directors are not
counted at such meeting, then a majority of the disinterested directors may authorize, approve or
ratify a contract or transaction.
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3.21.3 Unless otherwise provided m the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws, the
Board of Directors may fix the compensation of directors for services in any capacity.

ARTICLE IV
BOARD COMMITTEES

4.01 GENERAL AUTHORITY

The Chairperson of the Board of Directors shall, from time to time, appoint such
committees of the Board of Directors as are deemed necessary to fulfill the needs of the
Corporation, which appointments shall be approved by the Board of Directors. The membership
of such committees shall be composed of directors and/or officers or employees of the
Corporation. '

Each committee so appointed and approved shall keep minutes of its proceedings which
will be available to the Board of Directors for review at any and all times.

4.02 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors may, in its discretion, by resolution, constitute an Executive
Committee of the Board of Directors. The members of such Executive Committee shall be
appointed by the Chairperson of the Board of Directors. Such Executive Committee shall be
comprised of three to five members of the Board of Directors who will serve at the pleasure of the
Chairperson of the Board of Directors, but must be appointed at least annually. The Executive
Committee shall have the power of immediate oversight and management of the business affairs
of the Corporation, including the power to advise, direct and assist the officers and employees of
the Corporation in daily management and decisions involving, but not limited to, the solvency,
liquidity and financial stability of the Corporation. The Executive Committee shall investigate,
consider and recommend actions and procedures to the Board of Directors on issues of major
significance to the Corporation. The Executive Committee shall have such other powers and shall
perform such other duties as the Board of Directors may indicate to it in writing from time to time.
The Executive Committee, however, shall have no power to declare dividends or to adopt, amend
or repeal the Bylaws of the Corporation.

In the absence of a duly constituted Board of Directors Investment Committee, the
Executive Committee shall have the power to ensure adherence to the investment policy of the
Corporation, as determined by the Board of Directors, to recommend amendments thereto, to -
purchase and sell securities, to exercise authority regarding investments, and to exercise, when
the Board of Directors is not in session, all other powers of the Board of Directors regarding
investments and securities that may be lawfully delegated.

The Executive Committee shall act by a majority of the members thereof, and any action
duly taken by the Executive Committee within the course of its authority shall be binding on the
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Corporation.

The Chairperson of the Board of Directors shall appoint the Chairperson of the Executive
Committee.

The Executive Committee shall keep minutes of its meetings, and its actions shall be
reported at the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors at which a quorum is present and
any action taken by the Board of Directors with respect thereto shall be entered into the minutes
of the Board of Directors.

4.03 BOARD LOAN COMMITTEE

There shall be a Loan Committee comprised of the President and three or more outside
directors appointed by the Chairperson of the Board of Directors and approved by the Board of
Directors at least annually. The Loan Committee shall have the power to discount and purchase
bills, notes and other evidences of debt, to buy and sell bills of exchange, to examine and approve
loans and discounts, to exercise authority regarding loans and discounts, and to exercise when the
Board of Directors is not in session, all other powers of the Board of Directors that may lawfully
be delegated. The Loan Committee shall keep minutes of its meetings, and such minutes shall be
submitted at the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors at which a quorum is present, and
any action taken by the Board of Directors with respect thereto shall be entered into the minutes
of the Board of Directors. The Loan Committee will recommend the Bank's house lending limits
to the Board of Directors for final approval as appropriate.

4.04 BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee shall consist of not less than three outside directors who are neither
officers nor employees of the Corporation and are free from any relationship that, in the opinion
of the Board of Directors, would interfere with the exercise by such director of independent
judgment as a committee member. No director who is an affiliate of the Corporation or an officer
or employee of the Corporation shall be qualified for Audit Committee membership. A majority
-of the Audit Committee shall constitute a quorum.

The Audit Committee shall assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling its responsibilities for
the Corporation's accounting and financial reporting practices and provide a channel of
communication between the Board of Directors and the Corporation's independent auditors.

4.05 COMPENSATION AND NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE

The Compensation and Nominations Committee shall consist of the Chairperson of the

- Board, the President and no less than three outside directors appointed by the Chairperson of the

Board of Directors and approved by the Board of Directors at least annually. The Compensation
and Nominations Committee shall be responsible for studying and reviewing compensation and
benefits for all existing and new employees of the Bank and for recommending compensation and
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benefit levels to the Board of Directors for officers and employees, except that the compensation
and benefits of the President shall be considered by the Compensation and Nominations Committee
outside the President’s presence. The absence of the President from the Compensation and
Nominations Committee while it is considering the President’s compensation and benefits shall not
prevent a quorum from being present. The Compensation and Nominations Committee shall also
study, review, interview and recommend prospective candidates for nomination to the Board of
Directors.

The Compensation and Nominations Committee shall act by a majority of the members
thereof, and any action duly taken by the Compensation and Nominations Committee shall be
binding on the Corporation.

The Compensation and Nominations Committee shall keep minutes of its meetings, and its
actions shall be reported at the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors at which a quorum
is present and any action taken by the Board of Directors with respect thereto shall entered into
the minutes of the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE V
OFFICERS

5.01 OFFICERS

The officers of the Corporation shall be a Chairperson of the Board, a President, a
Secretary, a Chief Financial Officer, one or more Vice Presidents, and such other officers as from
time to time may be recommended by the President and approved by the Board of Directors as
necessary or desirable to properly manage the business of the Corporation.

5.02 ELECTION AND TERM

All officers of the Corporation shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors at its
regular organizational meeting held immediately after the annual meeting of the stockholders. If
the election of officers is not held at such meeting, such election shall be held as soon thereafter
as may be convenient. Each officer shall hold office until his or her successor has been duly
elected and qualified, until his or her death, until he or she shall resign, or until he or she shall
be removed from office as hereinafter provided. An officer elected or appointed shall serve at
will; such election or appointment shall not of itself create any contract rights. Nothing contained
herein however, shall restrict the Board of Directors or the President, with the approval of the
Board of Directors, from entering into an employment contract with an officer, provided such
contract specifically defines the rights and duties of the parties thereto in the event that the officer
is not reelected to his or her position during the term of the contract.

5.03 DUTIES AND POWERS OF OFFICERS
The duties and powers of officers of the Corporation shall be as follows and as may from
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time to time be set by resolution of the Board of Directors.

5.03.1 Chairperson of the Board. The Board of Directors shall elect one of its
members to be Chairperson of the Board of Directors to serve at the pleasure of the Board of
Directors. The Chairperson, if present, shall preside over all meetings of the Board of Directors.
The Chairperson of the Board of Directors shall supervise the carrying out of the policies adopted
or approved by the Board of Directors, shall have the specific powers conferred by these Bylaws,
and shall also have and may exercise such further powers and duties as from time to time may be
conferred upon, or assigned by the Board of Directors.

5.03.2 Vice Chairperson of the Board. The Board of Directors may appoint one of
its members to be Vice Chairperson to serve at the pleasure of the Board. In the absence of the
Chairperson, the Vice Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors, will
supervise the carrying out of policies adopted or approved by the Board of Directors, and will
have the powers of the Chairperson. The Vice Chairperson shall have and may exercise such
powers and duties as from time to time may be conferred upon or assigned by the Chairperson or
by the Board of Directors.

5.03.3 President. Subject to such powers, if any, as may be given by the Board of
Directors to the Chairperson of the Board, the Board of Directors shall elect a President who shall
be the Chief Executive Officer and shall have, subject to the control of the Board of Directors,
general supervision, direction and control of the business, officers and staff of the Corporation.
In the absence of both the Chairperson of the Board and the Vice Chairperson, or if there is none,
the President shall preside at all meetings of the stockholders and at all meetings of the Board of
Directors.

The President has the general powers and duties of management usually vested in the office
of Chief Executive Officer of a Corporation and such other powers and duties as may be from time
to time conferred upon or assigned to him or her by the Board of Directors.

The President shall serve as a member of the Board of Directors and shall always be
included in the list of nominations submitted by the Board of Directors to the stockholders for the
election of Directors.

The Board of Directors, by proper resolution and upon a determination that such action
would be in the best interests of the Corporation, may split the office of Chief Executive Officer
and President and the rights and duties pertaining thereto between two persons.

5.034 Executive Vice President. Upon the recommendation of the President, the
Board of Directors may appoint one or more Executive Vice Presidents. Each Executive Vice
President shall have such powers and duties as may be assigned by the President or Board of
Directors. One Executive Vice President shall be designated by the Board of Directors in the
absence or unavailability of the President, to perform the duties of the President.
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5.03.5 Other Officers. Upon recommendation of the President, the Board of
Directors may appoint a Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer, Secretary and one or more Senior Vice
Presidents, Vice Presidents and other officers of the Corporation as, in the President's judgment,
are necessary or desirable for the proper operation of the Corporation. Each such officer shall
have such power and duties as may be assigned by the President or the Board of Directors.

5.03.6 Treasurer. The Treasurer shall be the Chief Financial Officer of the
Corporation and shall be responsible for all of the financial systems in use in the Corporation, and
shall keep and maintain, or cause to be kept and maintained, adequate and correct books and
records of the properties and business transactions of the Corporation, including accounts of
assets, liabilities, receipts, disbursements, gains, losses, capital, retained earnings and shares, and
shall send or cause to be sent to the stockholders of the Corporation and the regulatory authorities
such financial statements and reports as are by law or these Bylaws require to be sent to them. The
books of account shall at all times be open to inspection by any directors of the Corporation.

The Treasurer shall deposit all monies and other valuables in the name and to the credit
of the Corporation with such depositories as may be designated by the Board of Directors. The
Treasurer shall disburse funds of the Corporation as may be ordered by the Board of Directors,
shall render to the President and directors, whenever they request it, an account of all transactions
engaged in as Treasurer and of the financial condition of the Corporation, and shall have such
other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the President or the Board
of Directors.

5.03.7 Assistant Treasurer. The Assistant Treasurer shall, in the absence or
disability of the Treasurer, or in the event of such officer's refusal to act, perform the duties and
exercise the powers of the Treasurer and shall have such additional powers and discharge such
duties as may be assigned from time to time by the President or by the Board of Directors.

5.03.8 . Secretary. The Secretary shall be the same individual as the Treasurer. The
Secretary shall keep or cause to be kept, at the principal executive office or such other place as
the Board of Directors may order, a book of minutes of all meetings of the stockholders, the Board
of Directors and its committees, with the time and place of holding, whether regular or special
and, if special, how authorized, the notice thereof given, the names of those present or represented
at stockholder's meetings and the proceedings thereof. The minutes of each meeting of
stockholders and of all regular and special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be signed by
the Chairperson of the Board and attested by the Secretary. The minutes of all regular and special
meetings of the Board of Directors may also be signed by each director present.

The Secretary shall also keep, or cause to be kept, at the principal executive office or
business office of the Corporation, the organizational documents of the Corporation, the Articles
of Incorporation and all amendments thereto, the Banking Charter, the returns of elections, a
certified copy of the Bylaws and all amendments thereto, the stock ledger or duplicate stock
ledger, or all other documents required to be kept in accordance with Section 78.105 of the NRS.
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The Secretary shall keep, or cause to be kept, at the principal executive office or at the
office of the Corporation's transfer agent or registrar, if one be appointed, a share register, or a
duplicate share register, showing names of the stockholders and their addresses, the number and
classes of shares held by each, the number and date of certificates issued for the same, and the
number and date of cancellation of every certificate surrendered for cancellation.

The Secretary shall give, or cause to be given, notice of all meetings of the stockholders
and of the Board of Directors required by the Bylaws or by law to be given and shall keep the seal
of the Corporation in safe custody.

5.04 OFFICER COMPENSATION

The salaries of the officers, Vice Presidents and above, shall be fixed from time to time
by the Board of Directors and no officer shall be prevented from receiving such compensation by
reason of the fact that such officer is also a director of the Corporation.

5.05 OFFICERS HOLDING MORE THAN ONE OFFICE

Any two or more offices may be held by the same person, but no officer shall execute,
acknowledge or verify any instrument in more than one capacity, and the offices of President and
Secretary shall not be held by the same person.

5.06 INABILITY TO ACT

In the case of the absence or inability to act of any officer of the Corporation and of any
person herein authorized to act in his or her place, the President may, from time to time, delegate
the powers or duties of such officer to any other officer, or with approval of the Board of
Directors, to any director or other person whom the President may select.

5.07 REMOVAL

Subject to the rights, if any, of an officer under any contract of employment, or any
applicable law or ruling, any officer may be removed at any time, either with or without cause,
by the Board of Directors, by the President except in the case of the internal auditor or other
officer who reports directly to the Board of Directors, or by any officer upon whom such power
may be conferred by the President or Board of Directors.

5.08 RESIGNATION

Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the President or the
Chairperson of the Corporation, but without prejudice to the rights if any, of the Corporation
under any contract to which the officer is a party. Any such resignation shall take effect

immediately upon receipt of such notice regardless of its specified time, unless the President or
Chairperson authorizes a later effective date. The acceptance of such resignation shall not be
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necessary to make it effective.
5.09 VACANCIES

A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification or any
other cause may be filled by the Board of Directors, upon recommendation from the President,
for the unexpired portion of the prior officer's term. Vacancies may be filled at any meeting of
the Board of Directors. '

ARTICLE VI
INDEMNIFICATION

6.01 DEFINITIONS

For purposes of this Section, "agent” includes any person who is or was a director, officer,
employee or other agent of the Corporation, or who is or was serving at the request of the
Corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another foreign or domestic corporation,
partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, or was a director, officer, employee or agent
of a foreign or domestic corporation which was a predecessor corporation of the Corporation or
of another enterprise at the request of such predecessor corporation; "proceeding” includes any
threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal,
administrative, arbitration or investigative; and "expenses” includes, without limitation, attorneys'
fees and any expenses of establishing a right to indemnification pursuant to law.

6.02 EXTENT OF INDEMNIFICATION

The Corporation shall, to the maximum extent permitted by the NRS, advance expenses
to and indemnify each of its agents against expenses, judgments, fines, settlement and other
amounts actually and reasonably incurred in connection with any proceeding arising by reason of
the fact any such person is or was an agent of the Corporation.

The Corporation shall pay the expenses of officers and directors incurred in defending a
civil or criminal action, suit or proceeding as they are incurred and in advance of the final
disposition of the action, suit or proceeding upon the receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of
the director or officer to repay the amount if it is ultimately determined by a court of competent
jurisdiction that such officer or director is not entitled to be indemnified by the Corporation. The
provisions of this Section do not affect any rights to the advancement of expenses to which
corporate personnel other than directors or officers may be entitled under any contract or
otherwise by law.

Notwithstanding the forgoing, the provisions of this Article VIII are subject to the
requirements and limitations set forth in state and federal laws, rule, regulations, or orders -
regarding indemnification and prepayment of legal expenses, including Section 18(k) of the
Federal Deposit Insurance Act and Part 359 of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation's rules
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and regulations, or any successor regulations thereto.
6.03 INSURANCE

The Corporation shall have the power to purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any
agent of the Corporation against any liability asserted against or incurred by the agent in such
capacity or arising out of the agent's status as such whether or not the Corporation would have the
power to indemnify the agent against such liability under the provisions of Section 6.02.

ARTICLE VII
REPORTS AND RECORDS

7.01 INSPECTION OF CORPORATE RECORDS

The Corporation shall keep at its principal executive office, a record of its stockholders,
giving the names and addresses of all stockholders and the number and class of shares held by each
stockholder. Any person who has been a stockholder of record of the Corporation for at least six
(6) months immediately preceding his demand or any judgment creditor or any stockholder or
stockholders of the Corporation holding at least five percent (5%) in aggregate of the outstanding
voting shares of the Corporation shall have the right, as provided by the NRS to:

(a) Inspect and make extracts of the record of stockholders' names and addresses and share
holdings during usual business hours upon five business days prior notice to the Corporation; or

(b) Inspect, from the transfer agent, if any, for the Corporation, upon five business days
prior, written demand, and upon the tender of its usual charges for such list (the amount of which
charges shall be stated to the stockholder by the transfer agent upon request), a list of the
stockholders' names and addresses who are entitled to vote for the election of directors and their
stockholdings, as of the most recent record date for which it has been compiled, or as of a date
specified by the stockholder subsequent to the date of demand.

Any delay by the Corporation or the transfer agent in complying with a demand under
Section 7.01(a) beyond the time limits specified therein shall give the stockholder or stockholders
properly making the demand a right to obtain from a court of proper jurisdiction, upon the filing
of a verified complaint in the proper county, and after a hearing, notice of which shall be given
to such persons and in such manner as the court may direct, an order postponing any stockholders'
meeting previously noticed for a period equal to the period of such delay. Such right shall be in
addition to any other legal or equitable remedies to which the stockholders may be entitled.

Any judgment creditor, stockholder or stockholders who must resort to court to obtain
information authorized to be released hereunder, and are successful upon final appeal in such
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action, shall be fully reimbursed by the Corporation for all expenses and costs, including
reasonable attorney's fees, of bringing such action.

7.02 INSPECTION OF BYLAWS

The Corporation shall keep in its principal office the original copy of these Bylaws, as
amended to date, which shall be open to inspection by stockholders at all reasonable times during
office hours.

7.03 OTHER CORPORATE RECORDS

The accounting books and records and minutes of proceedings of the stockholders and the
Board of Directors shall be kept at such place or places designated by the Board, or in the absence
of such designation, at the principal executive office of the Corporation. The minutes shall be kept
in written form and the accounting books and records shall be kept either in written form or in any
other form capable of being converted into written form.

Subject to the restrictions found in Section 7.05, the minutes and accounting books and
records shall be open to inspection upon written demand of any stockholder or holder of a voting
trust certificate, which demand is reasonably related to the holder's interests as a stockholder or
as the holder of a voting trust certificate. The inspection may be made in person or by an
authorized agent or attorney, and shall include the right to copy and make extracts. These rights
of inspection shall extend to the records of each subsidiary corporation of the Corporation.

7.04 INSPECTION BY DIRECTORS

Every director shall have the absolute right at any reasonable time to inspect all books,
records and documents of every kind and the physical properties of the Corporation and each of
its subsidiary corporations. This inspection by a director may be made in person or by an agent
or attorney and the right of inspection includes the right to copy and make extracts of documents.

7.05 RESTRICTIONS ON INSPECTION

The rights of persons who are not directors to inspect the books, records, minutes and
other official records and documents of the Corporation enumerated in this Article shall not extend
to those books, records, minutes and documents which are protected by the privacy rights of
depositors and other banking customers, by state and federal laws and regulations concerning
regulatory reports and matters, by laws protecting client-attorney and other confidentiality
privileges, by the need for management for competitive confidentiality when that confidentiality
is compromised by the request, or when, in the judgment of the President, granting the request
would be detrimental to the best interests of the Corporation. The President shall make the final
management decision on granting or denying access; disputes shall be referred to the Executive
Committee or to the entire Board of Directors for decision. '
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: ARTICLE VIII
STOCK AND STOCK CERTIFICATES

8.01 STOCK CERTIFICATES

Stock certificates or certificates for shares of the capital stock of the Corporation shall be
issued to each stockholder when those shares are fully paid. All certificates shall be signed in the
name of the Corporation by the President or Vice President and by the Secretary or any Assistant
Secretary, or by any other officer appointed by the Board of Directors for that purpose, certifying
the number of shares and the class or series of shares owned by the stockholder. In the event any
officer, transfer agent or registrar who has signed or whose facsimile signature has been placed
on a certificate shall have ceased to be that officer, transfer agent or registrar before that certificate
is issued, it may be issued by the Corporation with the same effect as if that person were an
officer, transfer agent or registrar at the date of issue.

8.02 TRANSFER OF STOCK

Shares of stock shall be transferable on the books of the Corporation, and a stock transfer
book, also known as a stock ledger, shall be kept in which all transfers of stock shall be recorded.
Every person becoming a stockholder by such transfer shall, in proportion to his shares, succeed
to all rights of the prior holder of such shares.

8.03 LOST CERTIFICATES

Any person claiming a certificate of stock to be lost or destroyed shall make an affidavit
or affirmation of that fact and advertise the same in such manner as the Board of Directors may
require, and the Board of Directors may, in its discretion, require the owner of the lost or
destroyed certificate, or his or her legal representative, to give the Corporation a bond sufficient
to indemnify the Corporation against any claim that may be made against it on account of the
alleged loss of any such certificate. A new certificate of the same tenor and for the same number
of shares as the one alleged to be lost or destroyed may be issued without requiring any bond,
when in the judgment of the Board of Directors, it is proper to do so.

8.04 GENERAL BOARD AUTHORITY
The Board of Directors shall have all of the rights, power and authority conferred upon it
by Article IV of the Articles of Incorporation and by the laws of the State of Nevada in regard to

the Corporation's issuance of stock.

ARTICLE IX
GENERAL CORPORATE MATTERS

9.01 RECORD DATE FOR PURPOSES OTHER THAN NOTICE AND VOTING
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For purposes of determining the stockholders entitled to receive payment of any dividend
or other distribution or allotment of any rights or entitled to exercise any rights in respect of any
other lawful action (other than action by stockholders by written consent without a meeting), the
Board of Directors may fix, in advance, a record date which shall not be more than 60 or not less
than 10 days before any such action, and in that case only stockholders of record on the date so
fixed are entitled to exercise the rights, as the case may be, notwithstanding any transfer of any
shares on the books of the Corporation after the record date so fixed, except as otherwise provided
in the NRS. If the Board of Directors does not so fix a record date, the date for determining
stockholders for any purpose shall be the close of business on the day on which the Board of
Directors adopts the applicable resolution.

9.02 ENDORSEMENT OF DGCUMENTS; CONTRACTS

Subject to the provisions of applicable law, any check, draft or other orders of payment
of money, note, mortgage, evidence of indebtedness, contract, share certificate, conveyance, or
other instrument in writing and any assignment or endorsements thereof executed or entered into
between the Corporation and any other person, shall be signed or endorsed by such person or
persons and in such manner as, from time to time, shall be determined by the Board of Directors
and, unless so authorized by the Board of Directors, no officer, agent or employee shall have any
power or authority to bind the Corporation by any contract or engagement or to pledge its credit
or to render it liable for any purpose or amount.

Any such instruments, when signed by the President or Executive Vice President, or
Treasurer, Senior Vice President, or Vice President, or any Assistant Treasurer of the
Corporation, or when stamped with a facsimile signature of such appropriate officers in the case
of share certificates, shall be valid and binding upon the Corporation in the absence of actual
knowledge on the part of the other person that the signing officers had no authority to execute the
same.

9.03 REPRESENTATION OF SHARES OF OTHER CORPORATIONS

The President or any other officer or officers authorized by the Board of Directors or the
President are each authorized to vote, represent and exercise on behalf of the Corporation all rights
incident to any and all shares of any other corporation or corporations standing in the name of the
Corporation or the Corporation's nominee. The authority herein granted may be exercised by any
such officer in person or by any other person authorized to do so by proxy or power of attorney
duly executed by said officer.

9.04 CONSTRUCTION AND DEFINITIONS

Unless the context otherwise requires, the general provision, rules of construction and
definitions contained in the NRS shall govern the construction of these Bylaws. Without limiting
the generality of this provision, the masculine gender includes the feminine and neuter, the
singular number includes the plural, the plural number includes the singular, and the term
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"person" includes both a corporation and a natural person.
9.05 SEVERABILITY

Should any part, clause or provision of these Bylaws be void, invalid, inoperative or
contrary to law, such invalidity or defect shall not affect any other part, clause or provision
hereof, and the remainder shall be effective as though such part, clause or provision had not been
contained herein.

9.06 FISCAL YEAR
The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be the calendar year.
9.07 CORPORATE SEAL

The President, the Executive Vice President, the Senior Vice President, the Treasurer, the
Secretary, or any Assistant Secretary, or other officer thereunto designated by the Board of
Directors, shall have authority to affix the corporate seal to any document requiring such seal, and
to attest the same. Such seal shall be substantially in the following form: two concentric circles
between which shall be the name of the Corporation, and in the center shall be inscribed the year
of its incorporation.

9.08 ANNUAL REPORT

The President shall cause an annual report concerning the Corporation to be prepared and
distributed to each director and stockholder of the Corporation prior to the annual meeting of
stockholders. The President shall formally present such report to the stockholders and to the
directors at the annual meeting of stockholders.

ARTICLE X
AMENDMENTS

10.01 AMENDMENTS BY STOCKHOLDERS

Subject to the approval of the Commissioner of the Financial Institutions Division for the
State of Nevada, if such approval be required, new Bylaws may be adopted or these Bylaws may
be amended or repealed by the vote or written consent of the holders of a majority of the
outstanding shares entitled to vote.

10.02 AMENDMENT BY DIRECTORS
Subject to the approval of the Commissioner of the Financial Institutions Division for the
State of Nevada, if such approval be required, and subject to the rights of the stockholders as

provided in Section 10.01, these Bylaws other than a provision thereof changing the authorized
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number of directors, may be adopted, amended or repealed by the Board of Directors.
10.03 RECORD OF AMENDMENTS

Whenever an amendment to or new Bylaws are adopted or repealed, the amended or new
Bylaws shall be certified by the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Corporation and filed in
the minute book of the Corporation.
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CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, DO HEREBY CERTIFY AS FOLLOWS:

That I am the duly elected, qualified and acting Secretary of Valley Bank, a Nevada
banking corporation, and that the foregoing Bylaws were adopted as the Bylaws of the Corporation
onthe 24 day of Sep+om bex , 1998, by the Board of Directors of said Corporation.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have executed this Certificate and affixed the corporate seal

this 15 day of Octolosv' , 1998.
L4

C‘SE)frEtary

SEAL
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Exhibit 10.1

MCGLADREY&PULLEN, LLP

Certified Public Accountants

International

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S CONSENT

We consent to the use in this Registration Statement of Valley Bancorp on Form 1-A filed on or about
December 5, 2002, of our report, dated February 6, 2002, appearing in the Offering Circular, which is part of
this Registration Statement.

We also consent to the reference to our Firm under the caption “Experts” in such Offering Circular.

NG v
Las Vegas, Nevada
December 4, 2002

McGladrey & Pullen, LLP

is an independent member

firm of RSM International,

an affiliation of independent
accounting and consulting firms.
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Exhibit 11.1

STEPHENS, GOURLEY & BYWATER
An Association of Professional Corporations

3636 North Rancho Drive
David A. Stephens Las Vegas, Nevada 89130
R. Vaughn Gourley* Telephone (702) 656-2355
Gordon E. Bywater Facsimile (702) 656-2776
* Also Admitted in Utah E-Mail: Gbywater@lvem.com

December 2, 2002

VIA REGULAR U.S. MAIL

Board of Directors

Valley Bancorp

370 North Stephanie Street
Henderson, Nevada 89014

RE: Legality of Securities to be Issued

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have acted as Nevada special counsel to Valley Bancorp, a Nevada corporation (the
“Company™), in connection with the offering of a maximum of 320,000 shares of the company’s
common stock, $0.73 par value per share (the “Shares”) to be sold by the Company in an offering
to the public, as described in an Offering Statement on Form 1-A (the “Offering Statement™) to
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). The Offering Statement
will be filed pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended (“1933 Act”).

In connection with the opinion rendered hereby, we have examined (a) the Company’s
Articles of Incorporation; (b) the Offering Statement; and (c) such other documents as we have
deemed necessary to form the opinion hereinafter expressed. As to various questions of fact
material to such opinions, where relevant facts were not independently established, we have
relied upon statements of officers of the Company.

Based and relying solely upon the foregoing, we advise you that in our opinion the
Shares, or any portion thereof, when sold by the Company pursuant to the terms of the Offering
Statement and after the Offering Statement has been qualified by the SEC, will be legally issued
under the laws of the state of Nevada, fully paid and non-assessable.
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Board of Directors
Valley Bancorp
December 2, 2002
Page 2

Consent is hereby given to the filing of this opinion as an Exhibit to the Offering
Statement and to the reference in the Offering Circular contained therein to this firm under the
caption “Legal Matters” as having passed upon the legality of the Shares. In giving this consent,
we do not admit that we are experts within the meaning of the 1933 Act, to the extent it may

apply.
Very Truly Yours,

STEPHENS, GOURLEY & BYWATER

Ao & Gt

GORDON E. BYWATER, ESQ.

GEB/pt
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Exhibit 99.1

[VALLEY BANCORP LETTERHEAD)]

December __, 2002

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS AND POTENTIAL INVESTORS:

We are pleased to advise you that the Board of Directors of Valley Bancorp, the
parent company of Valley Bank, has authorized a stock offering of up to 320,000 shares
of common stock at $12.50 per share. The new capital from this offering will be used to
support our recent and anticipated future growth, including potential branch expansion.

The offering will be made to our current shareholders and the public at large, and
will continue until February 28, 2003, unless terminated earlier or extended. Our shares
will be offered on a “first come, first served” basis. Purchasers who are not current
shareholders must purchase a minimum of 800 shares ($10,000).

Please review the enclosed offering circular, which has been filed with the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission, for a full explanation of the offering. If you are
interested in purchasing stock, complete the subscription agreement and return it with
your check or money order payable to Valley Bancorp.

To our current shareholders, on behalf of the directors, management and staff, we
would like to thank you for the continued support you have shown us in the past. Asto
those of you who are not currently shareholders, we appreciate the interest you have
expressed in the Company. If you have any questions regarding this offering, please feel
free to contact me.

Sincerely,

Barry L. Hulin
President and Chief Executive Officer

m26504-397031.doc
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